
 
 

  
   

  
 

 
 

  
    

             
       

 
 

     
     

 
    

 
 

  
    

 
      

 
 

    
  
  
   

  
   

  
   
     
      

 
 

 
 

  
  

    
  

  
 

pfm 

Davenport Road South 
Community Development District 
12051 Corporate Boulevard, Orlando, FL  32817; 407.723.5900 

www.davenportroadsouthcdd.com 

The following is the proposed agenda for the Board of Supervisors’ Meeting for the Davenport Road 
South Community Development District, scheduled to be held on Wednesday, October 16, 2019 at 
9:45 a.m. at the Offices of Cassidy Homes, 346 East Central Ave., Winter Haven, Florida 33880.
As always, the personal attendance of three (3) Board Members will be required to constitute quorum 

If you would like to attend the Board Meeting by phone, you may do so by dialing: 
Call-in Number: 1-844-621-3956 
Access Code: 790 393 986 # 

PROPOSED BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MEETING AGENDA 

Administrative Matters 
• Roll Call to Confirm Quorum 
• Public Comment Period [for any members of the public desiring to speak on any proposition 

before the Board] 
1. Consideration of the Minutes of the August 21, 2019 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

Business Matters 
2. Public Hearing on the Adoption of the Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure 

o Public Comments and Testimony 
o Board Comments 
o Consideration of Resolution 2020-01, Adopting the Amended and Restated 

Rules of Procedure 
3. Consideration of Agreement between the District and VGlobalTech for Website Auditing 

Services 
4. Ratification of Lease Agreement between the District and Navitas for Shade Structure 
5. Ratification of Payment Authorization Nos. 20 – 26 
6. Review of Monthly Financials 

Other Business 
Staff Reports

District Counsel 
District Engineer 
District Manager 

o Field Management Update – Dog gate, security cameras, fan in electrical 
room, etc. 

Supervisor Requests and Audience Comments
Adjournment 

www.davenportroadsouthcdd.com


  
 

 

Davenport Road South
Community Development District 

Minutes 



  

 
 

  
  

      
 

  
  

 
  

 
        

    
   

    
        

  
 

 
    
    

       
     

 
 

   
 

      
 

 
 

  
 

  
 
 

   
   
 

 
    

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MEETING 
Wednesday August 21, 2019 at 9:51 a.m. 
Offices of Cassidy Homes, 
346 East Central Avenue, 
Winter Haven, Florida 33880 

Board Members present at roll call: 

Rennie Heath Board Member (joined @ 9:52 a.m.) 
Lauren Schwenk Board Member 
Andrew Rhinehart Board Member 
Patrick Marone Board Member 
Scott Shapiro Board Member (via phone) 

Also Present: 

Jane Gaarlandt PFM 
Dexter Glasgow PFM 
Amy Champagne PFM (via phone) 
Roy Van Wyk Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order and Roll Call 

The meeting was called to order approximately at 9:51 a.m. Those in attendance are outlined 
above. 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period 

There were no members of the public present. 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of the Minutes of the 
July 24, 2019 Board of Supervisors’ 
Meeting 

The Board reviewed the Minutes of the July 24, 2019 Board of Supervisors’ Meeting. 

Page 1 of 5 



  

 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

              
   

      
 

          
        

   
   

 
        

  
 
 

   
   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

 
   

     
   

 
          

          

 
          

    
 

 
    

      
 

 

Ms. Gaarlandt noted for the record that Mr. Heath joined the meeting in person.

On MOTION by Ms. Schwenk, seconded by Mr. Rhinehart, with all in favor, the Board approved 
the Minutes of the July 24, 2019 Board of Supervisors’ Meeting. 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Memorandum of 
Updated Provisions of the District’s 
Rules of Procedure 

Mr. Heath joined the meeting in progress at 9:52 a.m. 

Mr. Van Wyk explained that District staff reviewed the Rules of Procedure and did an outline of 
both the major and minor changes. The legislature now requires a Financial Disclosure Coordinator 
and District staff will develop a resolution and policies on who that will be. Currently, it is the District 
Manager. District staff will redefine the meeting materials to minimize the materials that the District 
needs to put onto the website. The District must develop policies for internal controls to prevent 
fraud, waste, and abuse. There are changes regarding the bidding process. Contract periods will 
be expanded, and more information regarding denial of qualifications for prequalified Contractors, 
and the exclusion of security and fire safety information from public record. 

Mr. Van Wyk requested that the Board authorize District staff to get advertised for Amended and 
Restated Rules of Procedure and set the public hearing for a future meeting date. 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2019-13, 
Public Hearing to Adopt Amended and 
Restated Rules of Procedure 

Ms. Gaarlandt suggested October 16, 2019 as the public hearing date. 

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Mr. Rhinehart, with all in favor, the Board approved 
Resolution 2019-13, Setting Public Hearing to adopt Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure 
on October 16, 2019. 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals for the 
Installation of Security Cameras 

Ms. Patil collected three proposals for the Security Cameras. The first proposal from ADT is slightly 
under $2,000.00 for 8 cameras. The second proposal from SWS Protection is approximately 
$4,500.00 for 8 cameras. The third proposal is a little over $10,000.00 for 8 cameras. 

A discussion regarding the three proposals ensued. Ms. Gaarlandt asked Ms. Champagne how 
much the District has in the 2020 budget for Security, Janitorial services and maintenance staff. 

Page 2 of 5 

https://10,000.00
https://4,500.00
https://2,000.00


  

   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

 
 

         
    

    
    

     
      

  
 

   
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
  

 
    

          
  

 
  

    
 
 
 
 

 
        

 
 

 
            

           
   

 

Ms. Champagne responded that there is $7,500.00 for Security, $15,000.00 for Janitorial Services 
and nothing for maintenance staff. 

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Mr. Marone, with all in favor, the Board approved the 
Proposal from SWS Protection in the amount of $4,500.00 for the Installation of Security Cameras. 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals for 
Installation of Fan/Vent in Electrical 
Room 

Mr. Glasgow stated that there is no ventilation in the electrical room and more equipment will be 
put in the electrical room for the cameras. He asked SWS Protection for recommendations. They 
recommended a portable AC unit with a dehumidifier that would vent into the crawl space and cool 
and dehumidify the room. The other option is to put a vent in the door itself. It is no as affective but 
it is less expensive. Henkleman provided a proposal in the amount of $1,214.00 for the door vent 
and an option of $7,500-$8500.00 for an air conditioning system. The proposal from SWS 
Protection with the portable system is $589.00. 

Mr. Glasgow will reach out to the A & R Contracting & Cleaning LLC for a less expensive 
suggestion. 

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Ms. Schwenk, with all in favor, the Board approved the 
Proposals for Installation of Fan/Vent in Electrical Room in a not to exceed amount of $2,000.00 
authorizing the Chair to sign off on the final proposal. 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals of Shade 
Structures on Pool Deck 

Ms. Patil explained that the District was provided two different options for the pool deck. The first 
option is for two hanging cantilever shades. The second option is for one triangular sun sail in two 
different areas of the pool. The price is comparable. Ms. Patil is looking to add this to the lease 
agreement. 

A discussion took place regarding the contingency line items in the budget and carry over. Mr. 
Heath suggested doing one of the cantilevers this year and the other next year. 

Page 3 of 5 

https://2,000.00
https://7,500-$8500.00
https://1,214.00
https://4,500.00
https://15,000.00
https://7,500.00


  

 
 
 
 

      
   

 
 

   
    

 
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

 
 
 

     
 

    
 

     
 

    
   

       
       

    
  
 

    
 

 
  

 
 

     
 

 
       

    
 

 
      

         
   

 

Ms. Patil will bring back a revised proposal and actual numbers for the addition to the Lease 
Agreement. Mr. Shapiro asked Ms. Champagne to get back to the Board regarding carry over.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Mr. Rhinehart, with all in favor, the Board approved the 
Proposal from Pro Playgrounds for Shade Structures on Pool Deck choosing one cantilever this 
year and the second cantilever next year. 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Payment Authorization 
Nos. 16 - 19 

The Board reviewed payment authorizations numbers 16 - 19. 

On MOTION by Mr. Marone, seconded by Ms. Schwenk, with all in favor, the Board ratified Payment 
Authorization Nos. 16 – 19. 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Review of Monthly Financials 

The Board reviewed the monthly financials. There was no action required by the Board. 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

District Counsel – No Report 

District Engineer – Not Present 

District Manager – Mr. Glasgow must reach out to a builder on site. On their model home 
there is a leak and it washed out the soil under their parking lot. He brought 
it to their attention and they fixed the irrigation leak but have not filled it 
and if they don’t it will undermine their parking lot and it is not problem for 
the District. It is up to the builder to make that repair. 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests and Audience 
Comments 

There were no Supervisor requests or audience comments. 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 

Page 4 of 5 



  

   
 
 
 
 

             
      

  

 
 
 
 

    
      

______________________________ _____________________________ 

There were no other questions or comments. Ms. Gaarlandt requested a motion to adjourn. 

ON MOTION by Mr. Marone, seconded by Mr. Rhinehart, with all in favor, the August 21, 2019 
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting for the Davenport Road South Community Development District was 
adjourned. 

Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman / Vice Chairman 

Page 5 of 5 



  
 

 

Davenport Road South
Community Development District 

Resolution 2020-01 



 

 

      

   

   

   

   

 

  

     

      

  

 

    

    

 

 

    

 

 

      

     

   

   

 

    

  

 

    

       

 

 

      

     

   

    

  

 

      

  

 

   

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 2020-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

THE DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING AMENDED AND 

RESTATED RULES OF PROCEDURE; PROVIDING A 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Davenport Road South Community Development District (“District”) is a 
local unit of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 

Statutes, being situated entirely within the City of Davenport, Florida; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt rules to govern 

the administration of the District and to adopt resolutions as may be necessary for the conduct of 

District business; and 

WHEREAS, the District has previously adopted Rules of Procedure to govern the 

administration of the District; and 

WHEREAS, to provide for efficient and effective District operations and to maintain 

compliance with recent changes to Florida law, the Board of Supervisors finds that it is in the best 

interests of the District to adopt by resolution the Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure 

attached hereto as Exhibit A for immediate use and application; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has complied with applicable Florida law 

concerning rule development and adoption. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 

OF SUPERVISORS OF THE DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

SECTION 1. The attached Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure are hereby adopted 

pursuant to this resolution as necessary for the conduct of District business. These Amended and 

Restated Rules of Procedure replace all prior versions of the Rules of Procedure, and shall stay in 

full force and effect until such time as the Board of Supervisors may amend these rules in 

accordance with Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 2. If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 3. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 

effect unless rescinded or repealed. 



     

 

        

  

 

   

      

 

   

  

_____________________________ ____________________________________ 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October, 2019. 

ATTEST: DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Secretary Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

Exhibit A: Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure 



  

  

 

EXHIBIT A: 

AMENDED AND RESTATED RULES OF PROCEDURE 



 

 
 

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

    

    

  

   

    

    

    

    

     

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

   

     

AMENDED AND RESTATED 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

EFFECTIVE AS OF OCTOBER 16, 2019 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Rule  1.0 General.......................................................................................................................... 2 

Rule 1.1 Board of Supervisors; Officers and Voting. ............................................... 3 

Rule 1.2 District Offices; Public Information and Inspection of Records; Policies; 

Service Contract Requirements; Financial Disclosure Coordination. ........ 7 

Rule 1.3 Public Meetings, Hearings, and Workshops. ............................................ 10 

Rule 1.4 Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse.............................. 15 

Rule 2.0 Rulemaking Proceedings. ........................................................................................... 16 

Rule 3.0 Competitive Purchase. ................................................................................................ 22 

Rule 3.1 Procedure Under the Consultants' Competitive Negotiations Act. ........... 27 

Rule 3.2 Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection. .................................................. 31 

Rule 3.3 Purchase of Insurance. .............................................................................. 36 

Rule 3.4 Pre-qualification........................................................................................ 38 

Rule 3.5 Construction Contracts, Not Design-Build. .............................................. 43 

Rule 3.6 Construction Contracts, Design-Build. ..................................................... 47 

Rule 3.7 Payment and Performance Bonds. ............................................................ 52 

Rule 3.8 Goods, Supplies, and Materials. ............................................................... 53 

Rule 3.9 Maintenance Services. .............................................................................. 57 

Rule 3.10 Contractual Services. ................................................................................ 60 

Rule 3.11 Protests with Respect to Proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 

3.6, 3.8, and 3.9......................................................................................... 61 

Rule 4.0 Effective Date. ............................................................................................................ 64 

1 



 

 
 

  

 

    

    

 

    

 

 

      

 

 

     

   

 

 

         

     

     

    

     

    

     

       

     

 

 
       

       

 

Rule  1.0 General. 

(1) The Davenport Road South Community Development District (the “District”) was 
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes, and was 

established to provide for the ownership, operation, maintenance, and provision of 

various capital facilities and services within its jurisdiction. The purpose of these 

rules (the “Rules”) is to describe the general operations of the District. 

(2) Definitions located within any section of these Rules shall be applicable within all 

other sections, unless specifically stated to the contrary. 

(3) Unless specifically permitted by a written agreement with the District, the District 

does not accept documents filed by electronic mail or facsimile transmission.  

Filings are only accepted during normal business hours. 

(4) A Rule of the District shall be effective upon adoption by affirmative vote of the 

District Board. After a Rule becomes effective, it may be repealed or amended 

only through the rulemaking procedures specified in these Rules.  

Notwithstanding, the District may immediately suspend the application of a Rule 

if the District determines that the Rule conflicts with Florida law. In the event 

that a Rule conflicts with Florida law and its application has not been suspended 

by the District, such Rule should be interpreted in the manner that best effectuates 

the intent of the Rule while also complying with Florida law. If the intent of the 

Rule absolutely cannot be effectuated while complying with Florida law, the Rule 

shall be automatically suspended. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

2 



 

 
 

  

 

    

    

     

   

       

      

      

        

 

 

      

   

    

         

      

 

 

        

        

    

  

  

 

            

   

   

       

 

 

         

    

    

 

 

         

     

 

 

           

    

      

       

      

       

Rule 1.1 Board of Supervisors; Officers and Voting. 

(1) Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors of the District (the “Board”) shall 
consist of five (5) members. Members of the Board (“Supervisors”) appointed by 
ordinance or rule or elected by landowners must be citizens of the United States 

of America and residents of the State of Florida. Supervisors elected or appointed 

by the Board to elector seats must be citizens of the United States of America, 

residents of the State of Florida and of the District and registered to vote with the 

Supervisor of Elections of the county in which the District is located and for those 

elected, shall also be qualified to run by the Supervisor of Elections. The Board 

shall exercise the powers granted to the District under Florida law. 

(a) Supervisors shall hold office for the term specified by Section 190.006 of 

the Florida Statutes. If, during the term of office, any Board member(s) 

vacates their office, the remaining member(s) of the Board shall fill the 

vacancies by appointment for the remainder of the term(s). If three or 

more vacancies exist at the same time, a quorum, as defined herein, shall 

not be required to appoint replacement Board members. 

(b) Three (3) members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the purposes 

of conducting business, exercising powers and all other purposes. A 

Board member shall be counted toward the quorum if physically present at 

the meeting, regardless of whether such Board member is prohibited from, 

or abstains from, participating in discussion or voting on a particular item. 

(c) Action taken by the Board shall be upon a majority vote of the members 

present, unless otherwise provided in the Rules or required by law.  

Subject to Rule 1.3(10), a Board member participating in the Board 

meeting by teleconference or videoconference shall be entitled to vote and 

take all other action as though physically present. 

(d) Unless otherwise provided for by an act of the Board, any one Board 

member may attend a mediation session on behalf of the Board. Any 

agreement resulting from such mediation session must be approved 

pursuant to subsection (1)(c) of this Rule. 

(2) Officers. At the first Board meeting held after each election where the newly 

elected members take office, the Board shall select a Chairperson, Vice-

Chairperson, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, and Treasurer. 

(a) The Chairperson must be a member of the Board. If the Chairperson 

resigns from that office or ceases to be a member of the Board, the Board 

shall select a Chairperson. The Chairperson serves at the pleasure of the 

Board. The Chairperson shall be authorized to execute resolutions and 

contracts on the District’s behalf. The Chairperson shall convene and 
conduct all meetings of the Board. In the event the Chairperson is unable 

3 



 

 
 

   

      

    

  

 

          

  

   

 

    

     

  

 

       

         

     

     

          

      

     

    

     

 

 

          

      

    

      

      

     

      

       

    

 

 

     

     

   

   

 

  

    

    

 

 

to attend a meeting, the Vice-Chairperson shall convene and conduct the 

meeting. The Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson may delegate the 

responsibility of conducting the meeting to the District’s manager 
(“District Manager”) or District Counsel, in whole or in part. 

(b) The Vice-Chairperson shall be a member of the Board and shall have such 

duties and responsibilities as specifically designated by the Board from 

time to time. The Vice-Chairperson has the authority to execute 

resolutions and contracts on the District’s behalf in the absence of the 

Chairperson. If the Vice-Chairperson resigns from office or ceases to be a 

member of the Board, the Board shall select a Vice-Chairperson. The 

Vice-Chairperson serves at the pleasure of the Board. 

(c) The Secretary of the Board serves at the pleasure of the Board and need 

not be a member of the Board. The Secretary shall be responsible for 

maintaining the minutes of Board meetings and may have other duties 

assigned by the Board from time to time. An employee of the District 

Manager may serve as Secretary. The Secretary shall be bonded by a 

reputable and qualified bonding company in at least the amount of one 

million dollars ($1,000,000), or have in place a fidelity bond, employee 

theft insurance policy, or a comparable product in at least the amount of 

one million dollars ($1,000,000) that names the District as an additional 

insured. 

(d) The Treasurer need not be a member of the Board but must be a resident 

of the State of Florida. The Treasurer shall perform duties described in 

Section 190.007(2) and (3) of the Florida Statutes, as well as those 

assigned by the Board from time to time. The Treasurer shall serve at the 

pleasure of the Board. The Treasurer shall either be bonded by a reputable 

and qualified bonding company in at least the amount of one million 

dollars ($1,000,000), or have in place a fidelity bond, employee theft 

insurance policy, or a comparable product in at least the amount of one 

million dollars ($1,000,000) that names the District as an additional 

insured. 

(e) In the event that both the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson are absent 

from a Board meeting and a quorum is present, the Board may designate 

one of its members or a member of District staff to convene and conduct 

the meeting. In such circumstances, any of the Board members present are 

authorized to execute agreements, resolutions, and other documents 

approved by the Board at such meeting. In the event that the Chairperson 

and Vice-Chairperson are both unavailable to execute a document 

previously approved by the Board, the Secretary or any Assistant 

Secretary may execute such document. 

4 



 

 
 

    

   

 

 

      

   

 

 

      

  

     

     

 

 

        

    

     

 

 

     

    

    

   

        

   

 

        

   

      

      

   

     

  

   

     

      

       

 

 

      

       

     

      

  

 

(f) The Board may assign additional duties to District officers from time to 

time, which include, but are not limited to, executing documents on behalf 

of the District. 

(g) The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and any other person authorized by 

District Resolution may sign checks and warrants for the District, 

countersigned by the Treasurer or other persons authorized by the Board. 

(3) Committees. The Board may establish committees of the Board, either on a 

permanent or temporary basis, to perform specifically designated functions. 

Committees may include individuals who are not members of the Board. Such 

functions may include, but are not limited to, review of bids, proposals, and 

qualifications, contract negotiations, personnel matters, and budget preparation. 

(4) Record Book. The Board shall keep a permanent record book entitled “Record of 

Proceedings,” in which shall be recorded minutes of all meetings, resolutions, 

proceedings, certificates, and corporate acts. The Records of Proceedings shall be 

located at a District office and shall be available for inspection by the public.  

(5) Meetings. For each fiscal year, the Board shall establish a schedule of regular 

meetings, which shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

county in which the District is located and filed with the local general-purpose 

governments within whose boundaries the District is located. All meetings of the 

Board and Committees serving an advisory function shall be open to the public in 

accord with the provisions of Chapter 286 of the Florida Statutes.  

(6) Voting Conflict of Interest. The Board shall comply with Section 112.3143 of the 

Florida Statutes, so as to ensure the proper disclosure of conflicts of interest on 

matters coming before the Board for a vote. For the purposes of this section, 

"voting conflict of interest" shall be governed by the Florida Constitution and 

Chapters 112 and 190 of the Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time. 

Generally, a voting conflict exists when a Board member is called upon to vote on 

an item which would inure to the Board member’s special private gain or loss or 

the Board member knows would inure to the special private gain or loss of a 

principal by whom the Board member is retained, the parent organization or 

subsidiary of a corporate principal, a business associate, or a relative including 

only a father, mother, son, daughter, husband, wife, brother, sister, father-in-law, 

mother-in-law, son-in-law, and daughter-in-law. 

(a) When a Board member knows the member has a conflict of interest on a 

matter coming before the Board, the member should notify the Board’s 

Secretary prior to participating in any discussion with the Board on the 

matter. The member shall publicly announce the conflict of interest at the 

meeting.  This announcement shall appear in the minutes.  

5 



 

 
 

            

     

      

  

     

 

 

  

        

   

    

 

 

        

     

   

     

     

    

      

   

 

 

      

     

 

 

       

     

    

       

      

    

 

 
       

        

 

If the Board member was elected at a landowner’s election or appointed to 
fill a vacancy of a seat last filled at a landowner’s election, the Board 

member may vote or abstain from voting on the matter at issue. If the 

Board member was elected by electors residing within the District, the 

Board member is prohibited from voting on the matter at issue. In the 

event that the Board member intends to abstain or is prohibited from 

voting, such Board member shall not participate in the discussion on the 

item subject to the vote. 

The Board’s Secretary shall prepare a Memorandum of Voting Conflict 

(Form 8B) which shall then be signed by the Board member, filed with the 

Board’s Secretary, and provided for attachment to the minutes of the 

meeting within fifteen (15) days of the meeting.   

(b) If a Board member inadvertently votes on a matter and later learns he or 

she has a conflict on the matter, the member shall immediately notify the 

Board’s Secretary. Within fifteen (15) days of the notification, the member 

shall file the appropriate Memorandum of Voting Conflict, which will be 

attached to the minutes of the Board meeting during which the vote on the 

matter occurred. The Memorandum of Voting Conflict shall immediately 

be provided to other Board members and shall be read publicly at the next 

meeting held subsequent to the filing of the Memorandum of Voting 

Conflict. The Board member’s vote is unaffected by this filing. 

(c) It is not a conflict of interest for a Board member, the District Manager, or 

an employee of the District to be a stockholder, officer or employee of a 

landowner or of an entity affiliated with a landowner.  

(d) In the event that a Board member elected at a landowner’s election or 
appointed to fill a vacancy of a seat last filled at a landowner’s election, 
has a continuing conflict of interest, such Board member is permitted to 

file a Memorandum of Voting Conflict at any time in which it shall state 

the nature of the continuing conflict. Only one such continuing 

Memorandum of Voting Conflict shall be required to be filed for each 

term the Board member is in office. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 112.3143, 190.006, 190.007, Fla. Stat. 

6 



 

 
 

       

 

 

          

      

   

       

  

 

   

 

    

 

   

 

 

    

 

   

 

   

 

        

 

 

        

 

 

    

 

   

 

   

 

      

  

 

         

  

 

 

  

       

      

    

      

Rule 1.2 District Offices; Public Information and Inspection of Records; Policies; 

Service Contract Requirements; Financial Disclosure Coordination. 

(1) District Offices. Unless otherwise designated by the Board, the official District 

office shall be the District Manager’s office identified by the District Manager. If 

the District Manager’s office is not located within the county in which the District 
is located, the Board shall designate a local records office within such county 

which shall at a minimum contain, but not be limited to, the following documents: 

(a) Agenda packages for prior 24 months and next meeting; 

(b) Official minutes of meetings, including adopted resolutions of the Board; 

(c) Names and addresses of current Board members and District Manager, 

unless such addresses are protected from disclosure by law; 

(d) Adopted engineer’s reports; 

(e) Adopted assessment methodologies/reports; 

(f) Adopted disclosure of public financing; 

(g) Limited Offering Memorandum for each financing undertaken by the 

District; 

(h) Proceedings, certificates, bonds given by all employees, and any and all 

corporate acts; 

(i) District policies and rules; 

(j) Fiscal year end audits; and 

(k) Adopted budget for the current fiscal year. 

The District Manager shall ensure that each District records office contains the 

documents required by Florida law. 

(2) Public Records. District public records include all documents, papers, letters, 

maps, books, tapes, photographs, films, sound recordings, data processing 

software, or other material, regardless of the physical form, characteristics, or 

means of transmission, made or received in connection with the transaction of 

official business of the District. All District public records not otherwise restricted 

by law may be copied or inspected at the District Manager’s office during regular 
business hours. Certain District records can also be inspected and copied at the 

District’s local records office during regular business hours. All written public 
records requests shall be directed to the Secretary who by these rules is appointed 

7 



 

 
 

  

      

    

       

    

      

   

  

 

         

       

         

       

 

 

        

     

    

     

     

      

    

    

     

 

   

  

      

       

 

       

    

        

        

       

       

     

    

       

        

     

     

    

   

 

    

as the District’s records custodian. Regardless of the form of the request, any 

Board member or staff member who receives a public records request shall 

immediately forward or communicate such request to the Secretary for 

coordination of a prompt response. The Secretary, after consulting with District 

Counsel as to the applicability of any exceptions under the public records laws, 

shall be responsible for responding to the public records request. At no time can 

the District be required to create records or summaries of records, or prepare 

opinions regarding District policies, in response to a public records request. 

(3) Service Contracts. Any contract for services, regardless of cost, shall include 

provisions required by law that require the contractor to comply with public 

records laws. The District Manager shall be responsible for initially enforcing all 

contract provisions related to a contractor’s duty to comply with public records 

laws. 

(4) Fees; Copies. Copies of public records shall be made available to the requesting 

person at a charge of $0.15 per page for one-sided copies and $0.20 per page for 

two-sided copies if not more than 8 ½ by 14 inches. For copies of public records 

in excess of the sizes listed in this section and for outside duplication services, the 

charge shall be equal to the actual cost of reproduction. Certified copies of public 

records shall be made available at a charge of one dollar ($1.00) per page. If the 

nature or volume of records requested requires extensive use of information 

technology resources or extensive clerical or supervisory assistance, the District 

may charge, in addition to the duplication charge, a special service charge that is 

based on the cost the District incurs to produce the records requested.  This charge 

may include, but is not limited to, the cost of information technology resource, 

employee labor, and fees charged to the District by consultants employed in 

fulfilling the request. In cases where the special service charge is based in whole 

or in part on the costs incurred by the District due to employee labor, consultant 

fees, or other forms of labor, those portions of the charge shall be calculated based 

on the lowest labor cost of the individual(s) who is/are qualified to perform the 

labor, taking into account the nature or volume of the public records to be 

inspected or copied. The charge may include the labor costs of supervisory and/or 

clerical staff whose assistance is required to complete the records request, in 

accordance with Florida law. For purposes of this Rule, the word “extensive” 
shall mean that it will take more than 15 minutes to locate, review for confidential 

information, copy and re-file the requested material. In cases where extensive 

personnel time is determined by the District to be necessary to safeguard original 

records being inspected, the special service charge provided for in this section 

shall apply. If the total fees, including but not limited to special service charges, 

are anticipated to exceed twenty-five dollars ($25.00), then, prior to commencing 

work on the request, the District will inform the person making the public records 

request of the estimated cost, with the understanding that the final cost may vary 

from that estimate. If the person making the public records request decides to 

proceed with the request, payment of the estimated cost is required in advance. 

Should the person fail to pay the estimate, the District is under no duty to produce 

8 



 

 
 

   

       

    

   

 

 

         

 

 

      

 

 

       

    

    

    

 

   

        

     

       

       

       

       

      

    

 

 
       

          

the requested records. After the request has been fulfilled, additional payments or 

credits may be due. The District is under no duty to produce records in response 

to future records requests if the person making the request owes the District for 

past unpaid duplication charges, special service charges, or other required 

payments or credits. 

(5) Records Retention. The Secretary of the District shall be responsible for retaining 

the District’s records in accordance with applicable Florida law. 

(6) Policies. The Board may adopt policies related to the conduct of its business and 

the provision of services either by resolution or motion.  

(7) Financial Disclosure Coordination. Unless specifically designated by Board 

resolution otherwise, the Secretary shall serve as the Financial Disclosure 

Coordinator (“Coordinator”) for the District as required by the Florida 

Commission on Ethics (“Commission”). The Coordinator shall create, maintain 

and update a list of the names, e-mail addresses, physical addresses, and names of 

the agency of, and the office or position held by, all Supervisors and other persons 

required by Florida law to file a statement of financial interest due to his or her 

affiliation with the District (“Reporting Individual”). The Coordinator shall 

provide this list to the Commission by February 1 of each year, which list shall be 

current as of December 31 of the prior year. Each Supervisor and Reporting 

Individual shall promptly notify the Coordinator in writing if there are any 

changes to such person’s name, e-mail address, or physical address. Each 

Supervisor and Reporting Individual shall promptly notify the Commission in the 

manner prescribed by the Commission if there are any changes to such person’s e-

mail address. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 112.31446(3), 112.3145(8)(a)1., 119.07, 119.0701, 190.006, Fla. Stat. 

9 



 

 
 

  

 

      

         

      

      

       

       

   

   

      

    

    

     

        

      

     

      

 

 

    

 

   

 

 

        

         

  

 

     

    

  

    

   

   

       

 

 

      

  

   

   

        

       

 

 

Rule 1.3 Public Meetings, Hearings, and Workshops. 

(1) Notice. Except in emergencies, or as otherwise required by statute or these Rules, 

at least seven (7) days, but no more than thirty (30) days public notice shall be 

given of any public meeting, hearing or workshop of the Board. Public notice 

shall be given by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the District 

and in the county in which the District is located. “General circulation” means a 
publication that is printed and published at least once a week for the preceding 

year, offering at least 25% of its words in the English language, qualifies as a 

periodicals material for postal purposes in the county in which the District is 

located, is for sale to the public generally, is available to the public generally for 

the publication of official or other notices, and is customarily containing 

information of a public character or of interest or of value to the residents or 

owners of property in the county where published, or of interest or of value to the 

general public. The annual meeting notice required to be published by Section 

189.015 of the Florida Statutes, shall be published in a newspaper not of limited 

subject matter, which is published at least five days a week, unless the only 

newspaper in the county is published less than five days a week. Each Notice 

shall state, as applicable: 

(a) The date, time and place of the meeting, hearing or workshop; 

(b) A brief description of the nature, subjects, and purposes of the meeting, 

hearing, or workshop; 

(c) The District office address for the submission of requests for copies of the 

agenda, as well as a contact name and telephone number for verbal 

requests for copies of the agenda; and 

(d) The following or substantially similar language: “Pursuant to provisions of 

the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 

accommodations to participate in this meeting/hearing/workshop is asked 

to advise the District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the 

meeting/hearing/workshop by contacting the District Manager at (407) 

723-5900. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the 

Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 955-8770 or 1 (800) 955-8771, who can 

aid you in contacting the District Office.” 

(e) The following or substantially similar language: “A person who decides to 

appeal any decision made at the meeting/hearing/workshop with respect to 

any matter considered at the meeting/hearing/workshop is advised that 

person will need a record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the 

person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 

made including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be 

based.” 

10 



 

 
 

         

      

  

 

      

     

        

 

 

    

   

     

     

       

      

   

    

   

   

        

    

     

   

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(f) The following or substantially similar language: “The meeting [or hearing 

or workshop] may be continued in progress without additional notice to a 

time, date, and location stated on the record.” 

(2) Mistake. In the event that a meeting is held under the incorrect assumption that 

notice required by law and these Rules has been given, the Board at its next 

properly noticed meeting shall cure such defect by considering the agenda items 

from the prior meeting individually and anew.  

(3) Agenda. The District Manager, under the guidance of District Counsel and the 

Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, shall prepare an agenda of the 

meeting/hearing/workshop.  The agenda and any meeting materials available in an 

electronic format, excluding any confidential and any confidential and exempt 

information, shall be available to the public at least seven days before the 

meeting/hearing/workshop, except in an emergency. Meeting materials shall be 

defined as, and limited to, the agenda, meeting minutes, resolutions, and 

agreements of the District that District staff deems necessary for Board approval. 

Inclusion of additional materials for Board consideration other than those defined 

herein as “meeting materials” shall not convert such materials into “meeting 

materials.” For good cause, the agenda may be changed after it is first made 

available for distribution, and additional materials may be added or provided 

under separate cover at the meeting. The requirement of good cause shall be 

liberally construed to allow the District to efficiently conduct business and to 

avoid the expenses associated with special meetings. 

The District may, but is not required to, use the following format in preparing its 

agenda for its regular meetings: 

Call to order 

Roll call 

Public comment 

Organizational matters 

Review of minutes 

Specific items of old business 

Specific items of new business 

Staff reports 

(a)  District Counsel 

(b) District Engineer 

(c)  District Manager 

1. Financial Report 

2. Approval of Expenditures 

Supervisor’s requests and comments 

Public comment 

Adjournment 

11 



 

 
 

   

      

         

  

 

      

    

      

  

 

     

  

    

   

       

       

   

     

     

     

       

        

  

      

      

  

 

       

       

        

       

        

 

 

       

     

   

   

      

 

 

        

     

    

        

      

(4) Minutes. The Secretary shall be responsible for preparing and keeping the minutes 

of each meeting of the Board. Minutes shall be corrected and approved by the 

Board at a subsequent meeting. The Secretary may work with other staff 

members in preparing draft minutes for the Board’s consideration. 

(5) Special Requests. Persons wishing to receive, by mail, notices or agendas of 

meetings, may so advise the District Manager or Secretary at the District Office. 

Such persons shall furnish a mailing address in writing and shall be required to 

pre-pay the cost of the copying and postage. 

(6) Emergency Meetings. The Chairperson, or Vice-Chairperson if the Chairperson is 

unavailable, upon consultation with the District Manager and District Counsel, if 

available, may convene an emergency meeting of the Board without first having 

complied with sections (1) and (3) of this Rule, to act on emergency matters that 

may affect the public health, safety, or welfare. Whenever possible, the District 

Manager shall make reasonable efforts to provide public notice and notify all 

Board members of an emergency meeting twenty-four (24) hours in advance.  

Reasonable efforts may include telephone notification. Notice of the emergency 

meeting must be provided both before and after the meeting on the District’s 

website, if it has one. Whenever an emergency meeting is called, the District 

Manager shall be responsible for notifying at least one newspaper of general 

circulation in the District. After an emergency meeting, the Board shall publish in 

a newspaper of general circulation in the District, the time, date and place of the 

emergency meeting, the reasons why an emergency meeting was necessary, and a 

description of the action taken. Actions taken at an emergency meeting may be 

ratified by the Board at a regularly noticed meeting subsequently held. 

(7) Public Comment. The Board shall set aside a reasonable amount of time at each 

meeting for public comment and members of the public shall be permitted to 

provide comment on any proposition before the Board. The portion of the 

meeting generally reserved for public comment shall be identified in the agenda. 

Policies governing public comment may be adopted by the Board in accordance 

with Florida law. 

(8) Budget Hearing. Notice of hearing on the annual budget(s) shall be in accord with 

Section 190.008 of the Florida Statutes. Once adopted in accord with Section 

190.008 of the Florida Statutes, the annual budget(s) may be amended from time 

to time by action of the Board. Approval of invoices by the Board in excess of 

the funds allocated to a particular budgeted line item shall serve to amend the 

budgeted line item. 

(9) Public Hearings. Notice of required public hearings shall contain the information 

required by applicable Florida law and by these Rules applicable to meeting 

notices and shall be mailed and published as required by Florida law.  The District 

Manager shall ensure that all such notices, whether mailed or published, contain 

the information required by Florida law and these Rules and are mailed and 

12 



 

 
 

        

 

 

      

     

      

  

   

      

    

    

 

 

       

       

      

      

       

       

 

 

         

 

 

      

  

 

        

 

 

          

      

        

 

 

   

  

     

         

      

     

   

  

       

  

published as required by Florida law. Public hearings may be held during Board 

meetings when the agenda includes such public hearing. 

(10) Participation by Teleconference/Videoconference. District staff may participate 

in Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference. Board members may 

also participate in Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference if in the 

good judgment of the Board extraordinary circumstances exist; provided however, 

at least three Board members must be physically present at the meeting location to 

establish a quorum. Such extraordinary circumstances shall be presumed when a 

Board member participates by teleconference or videoconference, unless a 

majority of the Board members physically present determines that extraordinary 

circumstances do not exist. 

(11) Board Authorization. The District has not adopted Robert’s Rules of Order. For 

each agenda item, there shall be discussion permitted among the Board members 

during the meeting. Unless such procedure is waived by the Board, approval or 

disapproval of resolutions and other proposed Board actions shall be in the form 

of a motion by one Board member, a second by another Board member, and an 

affirmative vote by the majority of the Board members present. Any Board 

member, including the Chairperson, can make or second a motion. 

(12) Continuances. Any meeting or public hearing of the Board may be continued 

without re-notice or re-advertising provided that: 

(a) The Board identifies on the record at the original meeting a reasonable 

need for a continuance; 

(b) The continuance is to a specified date, time, and location publicly 

announced at the original meeting; and 

(c) The public notice for the original meeting states that the meeting may be 

continued to a date and time and states that the date, time, and location of 

any continuance shall be publicly announced at the original meeting and 

posted at the District Office immediately following the original meeting. 

(13) Attorney-Client Sessions. An Attorney-Client Session is permitted when the 

District’s attorneys deem it necessary to meet in private with the Board to discuss 

pending litigation to which the District is a party before a court or administrative 

agency or as may be authorized by law. The District’s attorney must request such 

session at a public meeting. Prior to holding the Attorney-Client Session, the 

District must give reasonable public notice of the time and date of the session and 

the names of the persons anticipated to attend the session. The session must 

commence at an open meeting in which the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson 

announces the commencement of the session, the estimated length of the session, 

and the names of the persons who will be attending the session. The discussion 

during the session is confined to settlement negotiations or strategy related to 

13 



 

 
 

       

   

     

     

   

     

        

      

    

  

 

       

       

     

    

      

   

      

   

  

 
       

             

litigation expenses or as may be authorized by law. Only the Board, the District’s 
attorneys (including outside counsel), the District Manager, and the court reporter 

may attend an Attorney-Client Session. During the session, no votes may be 

taken and no final decisions concerning settlement can be made. Upon the 

conclusion of the session, the public meeting is reopened, and the Chairperson or 

Vice-Chairperson must announce that the session has concluded. The session 

must be transcribed by a court-reporter and the transcript of the session filed with 

the District Secretary within a reasonable time after the session. The transcript 

shall not be available for public inspection until after the conclusion of the 

litigation. 

(14) Security and Firesafety Board Discussions. Portions of a meeting which relate to 

or would reveal a security or firesafety system plan or portion thereof made 

confidential and exempt by section 119.071(3)(a), Florida Statutes, are exempt 

from the public meeting requirements and other requirements of section 286.011, 

Florida Statutes, and section 24(b), Article 1 of the State Constitution. Should the 

Board wish to discuss such matters, members of the public shall be required to 

leave the meeting room during such discussion. Any records of the Board’s 

discussion of such matters, including recordings or minutes, shall be maintained 

as confidential and exempt records in accordance with Florida law. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 189.069(2)(a)16, 190.006, 190.007, 190.008, 286.0105, 286.011, 286.0113, 286.0114, Fla. Stat. 

14 



 

 
 

  

 

       

 

 

      

  

    

 

   

  

  

 

        

  

  

 

 
       

      

 

Rule 1.4 Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse 

(1) Internal Controls. The District shall establish and maintain internal 

controls designed to: 

(a) Prevent and detect “fraud,” “waste” and “abuse” as those terms are 
defined in section 11.45(1), Florida Statutes; and 

(b) Promote and encourage compliance with applicable laws, rules 

contracts, grant agreements, and best practices; and 

(c) Support economical and efficient operations; and 

(d) Ensure reliability of financial records and reports; and 

(e) Safeguard assets. 

(2) Adoption. The internal controls to prevent fraud, waste and abuse shall be 

adopted and amended by the District in the same manner as District 

policies. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: § 218.33(3), Fla. Stat. 

15 



 

 
 

  

 

    

         

     

   

     

     

     

   

   

 

 

  

 

        

      

  

       

      

      

         

         

   

     

       

 

 

          

 

 

  

 

       

    

   

      

     

      

      

    

      

    

    

       

       

Rule 2.0 Rulemaking Proceedings. 

(1) Commencement of Proceedings. Proceedings held for adoption, amendment, or 

repeal of a District rule shall be conducted according to these Rules. Rulemaking 

proceedings shall be deemed to have been initiated upon publication of notice by 

the District. A “rule” is a District statement of general applicability that 

implements, interprets, or prescribes law or policy, or describes the procedure or 

practice requirements of the District (“Rule”). Nothing herein shall be construed 

as requiring the District to consider or adopt rules unless required by Chapter 190 

of the Florida Statutes. Policies adopted by the District which do not consist of 

rates, fees, rentals or other monetary charges may be, but are not required to be, 

implemented through rulemaking proceedings. 

(2) Notice of Rule Development. 

(a) Except when the intended action is the repeal of a Rule, the District shall 

provide notice of the development of a proposed rule by publication of a 

Notice of Rule Development in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

District before providing notice of a proposed rule as required by section 

(3) of this Rule. Consequently, the Notice of Rule Development shall be 

published at least twenty-nine (29) days prior to the public hearing on the 

proposed Rule. The Notice of Rule Development shall indicate the subject 

area to be addressed by rule development, provide a short, plain 

explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed rule, cite the specific 

legal authority for the proposed rule, and include a statement of how a 

person may promptly obtain, without cost, a copy of any preliminary draft, 

if available. 

(b) All rules as drafted shall be consistent with Sections 120.54(1)(g) and 

120.54(2)(b) of the Florida Statutes. 

(3) Notice of Proceedings and Proposed Rules. 

(a) Prior to the adoption, amendment, or repeal of any rule other than an 

emergency rule, the District shall give notice of its intended action, setting 

forth a short, plain explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed 

action, a reference to the specific rulemaking authority pursuant to which 

the rule is adopted, and a reference to the section or subsection of the 

Florida Statutes being implemented, interpreted, or made specific. The 

notice shall include a summary of the District’s statement of the estimated 

regulatory costs, if one has been prepared, based on the factors set forth in 

Section 120.541(2) of the Florida Statutes, and a statement that any person 

who wishes to provide the District with a lower cost regulatory alternative 

as provided by Section 120.541(1), must do so in writing within twenty-

one (21) days after publication of the notice. The notice shall additionally 

include a statement that any affected person may request a public hearing 

16 



 

 
 

      

   

      

     

 

 

        

    

    

        

 

 

   

     

     

     

       

     

 

 

        

     

       

      

 

 

      

   

   

 

      

       

   

      

      

    

  

      

    

    

 

 

      

        

  

 

by submitting a written request within twenty-one (21) days after the date 

of publication of the notice. Except when intended action is the repeal of 

a rule, the notice shall include a reference to both the date on which and 

the place where the Notice of Rule Development required by section (2) of 

this Rule appeared. 

(b) The notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

District and each county in which the District is located not less than 

twenty-eight (28) days prior to the intended action. The proposed rule 

shall be available for inspection and copying by the public at the time of 

the publication of notice. 

(c) The notice shall be mailed to all persons named in the proposed rule and to 

all persons who, at least fourteen (14) days prior to such mailing, have 

made requests of the District for advance notice of its rulemaking 

proceedings. Any person may file a written request with the District 

Manager to receive notice by mail of District proceedings to adopt, 

amend, or repeal a rule. Such persons must furnish a mailing address and 

may be required to pay the cost of copying and mailing.  

(4) Rule Development Workshops. Whenever requested in writing by any affected 

person, the District must either conduct a rule development workshop prior to 

proposing rules for adoption or the Chairperson must explain in writing why a 

workshop is unnecessary. The District may initiate a rule development workshop 

but is not required to do so. 

(5) Petitions to Initiate Rulemaking. All Petitions to Initiate Rulemaking proceedings 

must contain the name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner, the 

specific action requested, the specific reason for adoption, amendment, or repeal, 

the date submitted, the text of the proposed rule, and the facts showing that the 

petitioner is regulated by the District or has a substantial interest in the 

rulemaking. Not later than sixty (60) calendar days following the date of filing a 

petition, the Board shall initiate rulemaking proceedings or deny the petition with 

a written statement of its reasons for the denial. If the petition is directed to an 

existing policy that the District has not formally adopted as a rule, the District 

may, in its discretion, notice and hold a public hearing on the petition to consider 

the comments of the public directed to the policy, its scope and application, and to 

consider whether the public interest is served adequately by the application of the 

policy on a case-by-case basis, as contrasted with its formal adoption as a rule. 

However, this section shall not be construed as requiring the District to adopt a 

rule to replace a policy. 

(6) Rulemaking Materials. After the publication of the notice referenced in section 

(3) of this Rule, the Board shall make available for public inspection and shall 

provide, upon request and payment of the cost of copies, the following materials: 

17 



 

 
 

    

 

 

  

  

 

        

  

 

   

 

     

   

       

 

        

     

    

     

      

   

 

       

      

 

 

          

     

       

      

    

     

     

         

 

 

         

   

    

      

 

 

        

  

 

(a) The text of the proposed rule, or any amendment or repeal of any existing 

rules; 

(b) A detailed written statement of the facts and circumstances justifying the  

proposed rule; 

(c) A copy of the statement of estimated regulatory costs if required by 

Section 120.541 of the Florida Statutes; and 

(d) The published notice. 

(7) Hearing. The District may, or, upon the written request of any affected person 

received within twenty-one (21) days after the date of publication of the notice 

described in section (3) of this Rule, shall, provide a public hearing for the 

presentation of evidence, argument, and oral statements, within the reasonable 

conditions and limitations imposed by the District to avoid duplication, irrelevant 

comments, unnecessary delay, or disruption of the proceedings. The District shall 

publish notice of the public hearing in a newspaper of general circulation within 

the District either in the text of the notice described in section (3) of this Rule or in 

a separate publication at least seven (7) days before the scheduled public hearing.  

The notice shall specify the date, time, and location of the public hearing, and the 

name, address, and telephone number of the District contact person who can 

provide information about the public hearing. Written statements may be submitted 

by any person prior to or at the public hearing. All timely submitted written 

statements shall be considered by the District and made part of the rulemaking 

record. 

(8) Emergency Rule Adoption. The Board may adopt an emergency rule if it finds 

that immediate danger to the public health, safety, or welfare exists which 

requires immediate action. Prior to the adoption of an emergency rule, the District 

Manager shall make reasonable efforts to notify a newspaper of general 

circulation in the District. Notice of emergency rules shall be published as soon as 

possible in a newspaper of general circulation in the District. The District may 

use any procedure which is fair under the circumstances in the adoption of an 

emergency rule as long as it protects the public interest as determined by the 

District and otherwise complies with these provisions. 

(9) Negotiated Rulemaking. The District may use negotiated rulemaking in 

developing and adopting rules pursuant to Section 120.54(2)(d) of the Florida 

Statutes, except that any notices required under Section 120.54(2)(d) of the 

Florida Statutes, may be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

county in which the District is located. 

(10) Rulemaking Record. In all rulemaking proceedings, the District shall compile 

and maintain a rulemaking record.  The record shall include, if applicable: 

18 



 

 
 

   

 

    

 

     

 

   

 

     

 

 

    

 

       

 

          

    

 

         

    

      

    

  

       

  

     

  

       

  

       

    

    

    

  

       

 

        

      

    

 

     

(a) The texts of the proposed rule and the adopted rule; 

(b) All notices given for a proposed rule; 

(c) Any statement of estimated regulatory costs for the rule; 

(d) A written summary of hearings, if any, on the proposed rule; 

(e) All written comments received by the District and responses to those 

written comments; and 

(f) All notices and findings pertaining to an emergency rule. 

(11) Petitions to Challenge Existing Rules. 

(a)  Any person substantially affected by a rule may seek an administrative 

determination of the invalidity of the rule on the ground that the rule is an 

invalid exercise of the District’s authority. 

(b) The petition seeking an administrative determination must state with 

particularity the provisions alleged to be invalid with sufficient 

explanation of the facts or grounds for the alleged invalidity and facts 

sufficient to show that the person challenging a rule is substantially 

affected by it. 

(c) The petition shall be filed with the District. Within 10 days after receiving 

the petition, the Chairperson shall, if the petition complies with the 

requirements of subsection (b) of this section, designate any member of 

the Board (including the Chairperson), District Manager, District Counsel, 

or other person as a hearing officer who shall conduct a hearing within 30 

days thereafter, unless the petition is withdrawn or a continuance is 

granted by agreement of the parties. The failure of the District to follow 

the applicable rulemaking procedures or requirements in this Rule shall be 

presumed to be material; however, the District may rebut this presumption 

by showing that the substantial interests of the petitioner and the fairness 

of the proceedings have not been impaired. 

(d) Within 30 days after the hearing, the hearing officer shall render a 

decision and state the reasons therefor in writing.  

(e) Hearings held under this section shall be de novo in nature. The petitioner 

has a burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that the 

existing rule is an invalid exercise of District authority as to the objections 

raised. The hearing officer may: 

(i) Administer oaths and affirmations; 

19 



 

 
 

 

     

 

         

 

 

     

 

      

       

  

 

       

      

      

    

   

 

          

      

      

  

    

    

   

      

   

  

 

         

   

  

 

      

 

    

 

         

 

          

 

 

     

  

(ii) Rule upon offers of proof and receive relevant evidence; 

(iii) Regulate the course of the hearing, including any pre-hearing 

matters; 

(iv) Enter orders; and 

(v) Make or receive offers of settlement, stipulation, and adjustment. 

(f) The petitioner and the District shall be adverse parties. Other substantially 

affected persons may join the proceedings as intervenors on appropriate 

terms which shall not unduly delay the proceedings. 

(12) Variances and Waivers. A “variance” means a decision by the District to grant a 

modification to all or part of the literal requirements of a rule to a person who is 

subject to the rule. A “waiver” means a decision by the District not to apply all or 

part of a rule to a person who is subject to the rule. Variances and waivers from 

District rules may be granted subject to the following: 

(a) Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person subject to the rule 

demonstrates that the purpose of the underlying statute will be or has been 

achieved by other means by the person, and when application of the rule 

would create a substantial hardship or would violate principles of fairness. 

For purposes of this section, "substantial hardship" means a demonstrated 

economic, technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the person 

requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes of this section, "principles 

of fairness" are violated when the literal application of a rule affects a 

particular person in a manner significantly different from the way it affects 

other similarly situated persons who are subject to the rule. 

(b) A person who is subject to regulation by a District Rule may file a petition 

with the District, requesting a variance or waiver from the District’s Rule. 

Each petition shall specify: 

(i) The rule from which a variance or waiver is requested; 

(ii) The type of action requested; 

(iii) The specific facts that would justify a waiver or variance for the 

petitioner; and 

(iv) The reason why the variance or the waiver requested would serve 

the purposes of the underlying statute. 

(c) The District shall review the petition and may request only that 

information needed to clarify the petition or to answer new questions 

20 



 

 
 

   

   

 

 

            

    

    

  

    

   

 

 

       

      

  

 

 
        

       

 

raised by or directly related to the petition. If the petitioner asserts that any 

request for additional information is not authorized by law or by Rule of 

the District, the District shall proceed, at the petitioner’s written request, to 

process the petition. 

(d) The Board shall grant or deny a petition for variance or waiver and shall 

announce such disposition at a publicly held meeting of the Board, within 

ninety (90) days after receipt of the original petition, the last item of 

timely requested additional material, or the petitioner's written request to 

finish processing the petition. The District’s statement granting or denying 

the petition shall contain a statement of the relevant facts and reasons 

supporting the District's action. 

(13) Rates, Fees, Rentals and Other Charges. All rates, fees, rentals, or other charges 

shall be subject to rulemaking proceedings. Policies adopted by the District 

which do not consist of rates, fees, rentals or other charges may be, but are not 

required to be, implemented through rulemaking proceedings.  

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), 190.035, Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 190.011(5), 190.035(2), Fla. Stat. 

21 



 

 
 

  

 

      

    

  

  

 

 

        

        

 

 

   

 

     

   

   

  

  

 

    

    

   

     

    

  

   

 

      

    

    

 

 

         

     

    

    

      

    

     

  

  

     

 

 

Rule 3.0 Competitive Purchase. 

(1) Purpose and Scope. In order to comply with Sections 190.033(1) through (3), 

287.055 and 287.017 of the Florida Statutes, the following provisions shall apply 

to the purchase of Professional Services, insurance, construction contracts, 

design-build services, goods, supplies, and materials, Contractual Services, and 

maintenance services. 

(2) Board Authorization. Except in cases of an Emergency Purchase, a competitive 

purchase governed by these Rules shall only be undertaken after authorization by 

the Board. 

(3) Definitions. 

(a) “Competitive Solicitation” means a formal, advertised procurement 

process, other than an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, or 

Invitation to Negotiate, approved by the Board to purchase commodities 

and/or services which affords vendors fair treatment in the competition for 

award of a District purchase contract. 

(b) “Continuing Contract” means a contract for Professional Services entered 

into in accordance with Section 287.055 of the Florida Statutes, between 

the District and a firm, whereby the firm provides Professional Services to 

the District for projects in which the costs do not exceed two million 

dollars ($2,000,000), for a study activity when the fee for such 

Professional Services to the District does not exceed two hundred 

thousand dollars ($200,000), or for work of a specified nature as outlined 

in the contract with the District, with no time limitation except that the 

contract must provide a termination clause (for example, a contract for 

general District engineering services). Firms providing Professional 

Services under Continuing Contracts shall not be required to bid against 

one another. 

(c) “Contractual Service” means the rendering by a contractor of its time and 

effort rather than the furnishing of specific commodities. The term applies 

only to those services rendered by individuals and firms who are 

independent contractors. Contractual Services do not include auditing 

services, Maintenance Services, or Professional Services as defined in 

Section 287.055(2)(a) of the Florida Statutes, and these Rules. 

Contractual Services also do not include any contract for the furnishing of 

labor or materials for the construction, renovation, repair, modification, or 

demolition of any facility, building, portion of building, utility, park, 

parking lot, or structure or other improvement to real property entered into 

pursuant to Chapter 255 of the Florida Statutes, and Rules 3.5 or 3.6. 

22 



 

 
 

    

 

 

      

 

 

     

     

   

 

 

   

     

    

 

 

 

   

       

   

   

    

     

   

    

     

  

    

   

      

 

 

 

      

       

         

    

       

  

  

 

 

        

   

  

     

(d) “Design-Build Contract” means a single contract with a Design-Build 

Firm for the design and construction of a public construction project. 

(e) “Design-Build Firm” means a partnership, corporation or other legal entity 
that: 

(i) Is certified under Section 489.119 of the Florida Statutes, to 

engage in contracting through a certified or registered general 

contractor or a certified or registered building contractor as the 

qualifying agent; or 

(ii) Is certified under Section 471.023 of the Florida Statutes, to 

practice or to offer to practice engineering; certified under Section 

481.219 of the Florida Statutes, to practice or to offer to practice 

architecture; or certified under Section 481.319 of the Florida 

Statutes, to practice or to offer to practice landscape architecture. 

(f) “Design Criteria Package” means concise, performance-oriented drawings 

or specifications for a public construction project. The purpose of the 

Design Criteria Package is to furnish sufficient information to permit 

Design-Build Firms to prepare a bid or a response to the District’s Request 

for Proposals, or to permit the District to enter into a negotiated Design-

Build Contract. The Design Criteria Package must specify performance-

based criteria for the public construction project, including the legal 

description of the site, survey information concerning the site, interior 

space requirements, material quality standards, schematic layouts and 

conceptual design criteria of the project, cost or budget estimates, design 

and construction schedules, site development requirements, provisions for 

utilities, stormwater retention and disposal, and parking requirements 

applicable to the project. Design Criteria Packages shall require firms to 

submit information regarding the qualifications, availability, and past 

work of the firms, including the partners and members thereof. 

(g) “Design Criteria Professional” means a firm who holds a current 

certificate of registration under Chapter 481 of the Florida Statutes, to 

practice architecture or landscape architecture, or a firm who holds a 

current certificate as a registered engineer under Chapter 471 of the 

Florida Statutes, to practice engineering, and who is employed by or under 

contract to the District to provide professional architect services, 

landscape architect services, or engineering services in connection with 

the preparation of the Design Criteria Package. 

(h) “Emergency Purchase” means a purchase necessitated by a sudden 

unexpected turn of events (for example, acts of God, riot, fires, floods, 

hurricanes, accidents, or any circumstances or cause beyond the control of 

the Board in the normal conduct of its business), where the Board finds 

23 



 

 
 

   

   

    

     

  

 

        

     

    

 

    

 

 

     

   

 

 

     

 

 

    

 

     

    

    

   

 

       

     

 

 

        

   

  

 

    

    

 

 

   

 

   

     

       

   

 

that the delay incident to competitive purchase would be detrimental to the 

interests of the District. This includes, but is not limited to, instances 

where the time to competitively award the project will jeopardize the 

funding for the project, will materially increase the cost of the project, or 

will create an undue hardship on the public health, safety, or welfare. 

(i) “Invitation to Bid” is a written solicitation for sealed bids with the title, 

date, and hour of the public bid opening designated specifically and 

defining the commodity or service involved. It includes printed 

instructions prescribing conditions for bidding, qualification, evaluation 

criteria, and provides for a manual signature of an authorized 

representative. It may include one or more bid alternates. 

(j) “Invitation to Negotiate” means a written solicitation for competitive 

sealed replies to select one or more vendors with which to commence 

negotiations for the procurement of commodities or services.  

(k) “Negotiate” means to conduct legitimate, arm’s length discussions and 
conferences to reach an agreement on a term or price.  

(l) “Professional Services” means those services within the scope of the 

practice of architecture, professional engineering, landscape architecture, 

or registered surveying and mapping, as defined by the laws of Florida, or 

those services performed by any architect, professional engineer, 

landscape architect, or registered surveyor and mapper, in connection with 

the firm's or individual's professional employment or practice. 

(m) “Proposal (or Reply or Response) Most Advantageous to the District” 
means, as determined in the sole discretion of the Board, the proposal, 

reply, or response that is: 

(i) Submitted by a person or firm capable and qualified in all respects 

to perform fully the contract requirements, who has the integrity 

and reliability to assure good faith performance; 

(ii) The most responsive to the Request for Proposals, Invitation to 

Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation as determined by the Board; 

and 

(iii) For a cost to the District deemed by the Board to be reasonable. 

(n) “Purchase” means acquisition by sale, rent, lease, lease/purchase, or 

installment sale. It does not include transfer, sale, or exchange of goods, 

supplies, or materials between the District and any federal, state, regional 

or local governmental entity or political subdivision of the State of 

Florida. 

24 



 

 
 

 

       

      

      

 

  

  

 

       

    

      

     

      

  

     

 

   

      

    

   

  

 

 

    

 

 

  

 

 

   

 

 

   

  

 

      

 

 

   

 

     

 

  

     

 

 

(o) “Request for Proposals” or “RFP” is a written solicitation for sealed 

proposals with the title, date, and hour of the public opening designated 

and requiring the manual signature of an authorized representative. It may 

provide general information, applicable laws and rules, statement of work, 

functional or general specifications, qualifications, proposal instructions, 

work detail analysis, and evaluation criteria as necessary.  

(p) “Responsive and Responsible Bidder” means an entity or individual that 

has submitted a bid that conforms in all material respects to the Invitation 

to Bid and has the capability in all respects to fully perform the contract 

requirements and the integrity and reliability that will assure good faith 

performance. “Responsive and Responsible Vendor” means an entity or 
individual that has submitted a proposal, reply, or response that conforms 

in all material respects to the Request for Proposals, Invitation to 

Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation and has the capability in all respects 

to fully perform the contract requirements and the integrity and reliability 

that will assure good faith performance. In determining whether an entity 

or individual is a Responsive and Responsible Bidder (or Vendor), the 

District may consider, in addition to factors described in the Invitation to 

Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive 

Solicitation, the following: 

(i) The ability and adequacy of the professional personnel employed 

by the entity/individual; 

(ii) The past performance of the entity/individual for the District and in 

other professional employment; 

(iii) The willingness of the entity/individual to meet time and budget 

requirements; 

(iv) The geographic location of the entity’s/individual’s headquarters 
or office in relation to the project; 

(v) The recent, current, and projected workloads of the 

entity/individual; 

(vi) The volume of work previously awarded to the entity/individual; 

(vii) Whether the cost components of the bid or proposal are 

appropriately balanced; and 

(viii) Whether the entity/individual is a certified minority business 

enterprise. 

25 



 

 
 

       

     

   

  

     

    

    

 

 
         

          
 

(q) “Responsive Bid,” “Responsive Proposal,” “Responsive Reply,” and 
“Responsive Response” all mean a bid, proposal, reply, or response which 
conforms in all material respects to the specifications and conditions in the 

Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, or 

Competitive Solicitation document and these Rules, and the cost 

components of which, if any, are appropriately balanced. A bid, proposal, 

reply or response is not responsive if the person or firm submitting it fails 

to meet any material requirement relating to the qualifications, financial 

stability, or licensing of the bidder. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 190.033, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat. 

26 



 

 
 

     

 

       

     

   

   

    

  

      

    

    

    

 

         

    

 

    

    

   

     

 

         

     

 

 

       

 

 

        

      

 

 

      

    

  

     

   

     

    

      

   

      

      

     

     

      

Rule 3.1 Procedure Under the Consultants' Competitive Negotiations Act. 

(1) Scope. The following procedures are adopted for the selection of firms or 

individuals to provide Professional Services exceeding the thresholds herein 

described, for the negotiation of such contracts, and to provide for protest of 

actions of the Board under this Rule. As used in this Rule, “Project” means that 

fixed capital outlay study or planning activity when basic construction cost is 

estimated by the District to exceed the threshold amount provided in Section 

287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FIVE, or for a planning study 

activity when the fee for Professional Services is estimated by the District to 

exceed the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO, 

as such categories may be amended or adjusted from time to time. 

(2) Qualifying Procedures. In order to be eligible to provide Professional Services to 

the District, a consultant must, at the time of receipt of the firm’s qualification 

submittal: 

(a) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good standing; 

(b) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any; 

(c) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized to do 

business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of the 

Florida Statutes, if the consultant is a corporation; and 

(d) Meet any qualification requirements set forth in the District’s Request for 

Qualifications.  

Evidence of compliance with this Rule may be submitted with the qualifications, 

if requested by the District. In addition, evidence of compliance must be 

submitted any time requested by the District. 

(3) Public Announcement. Except in cases of valid public emergencies as certified 

by the Board, the District shall announce each occasion when Professional 

Services are required for a Project or a Continuing Contract by publishing a notice 

providing a general description of the Project, or the nature of the Continuing 

Contract, and the method for interested consultants to apply for consideration.  

The notice shall appear in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the 

District and in such other places as the District deems appropriate. The notice 

must allow at least fourteen (14) days for submittal of qualifications from the date 

of publication. The District may maintain lists of consultants interested in 

receiving such notices. These consultants are encouraged to submit annually 

statements of qualifications and performance data. The District shall make 

reasonable efforts to provide copies of any notices to such consultants, but the 

failure to do so shall not give such consultants any bid protest or other rights or 

otherwise disqualify any otherwise valid procurement process. The Board has the 

27 



 

 
 

     

   

      

 

 

   

 

        

    

      

       

   

    

      

    

   

 

        

 

    

     

 

     

 

       

 

 

         

 

 

        

 

 

         

 

 

         

      

     

  

 

        

    

  

 

 

right to reject any and all qualifications, and such reservation shall be included in 

the published notice. Consultants not receiving a contract award shall not be 

entitled to recover from the District any costs of qualification package preparation 

or submittal. 

(4) Competitive Selection. 

(a) The Board shall review and evaluate the data submitted in response to the 

notice described in section (3) of this Rule regarding qualifications and 

performance ability, as well as any statements of qualifications on file. 

The Board shall conduct discussions with, and may require public 

presentation by consultants regarding their qualifications, approach to the 

Project, and ability to furnish the required services. The Board shall then 

select and list the consultants, in order of preference, deemed to be the 

most highly capable and qualified to perform the required Professional 

Services, after considering these and other appropriate criteria: 

(i) The ability and adequacy of the professional personnel employed 

by each consultant; 

(ii) Whether a consultant is a certified minority business enterprise; 

(iii) Each consultant’s past performance; 

(iv) The willingness of each consultant to meet time and budget 

requirements; 

(v) The geographic location of each consultant's headquarters, office 

and personnel in relation to the project; 

(vi) The recent, current, and projected workloads of each consultant; 

and 

(vii) The volume of work previously awarded to each consultant by the 

District. 

(b) Nothing in these Rules shall prevent the District from evaluating and 

eventually selecting a consultant if less than three (3) Responsive 

qualification packages, including packages indicating a desire not to 

provide Professional Services on a given Project, are received. 

(c) If the selection process is administered by any person or committee other 

than the full Board, the selection made will be presented to the full Board 

with a recommendation that competitive negotiations be instituted with the 

selected firms in order of preference listed. 

28 



 

 
 

           

     

   

       

      

      

    

    

 

 

   

 

      

   

   

  

 

 

       

    

   

    

       

  

      

      

     

   

   

  

 

      

       

  

     

     

  

   

 

 

       

     

      

   

  

 

(d) Notice of the rankings adopted by the Board, including the rejection of 

some or all qualification packages, shall be provided in writing to all 

consultants by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight 

delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement: 

"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the 

Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those 

Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s ranking 

decisions under this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set 

forth in Rule 3.11. 

(5) Competitive Negotiation. 

(a) After the Board has authorized the beginning of competitive negotiations, 

the District may begin such negotiations with the firm listed as most 

qualified to perform the required Professional Services at a rate or amount 

of compensation which the Board determines is fair, competitive, and 

reasonable. 

(b) In negotiating a lump-sum or cost-plus-a-fixed-fee professional contract 

for more than the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 of the 

Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FOUR, the firm receiving the award 

shall be required to execute a truth-in-negotiation certificate stating that 

"wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation are 

accurate, complete and current at the time of contracting." In addition, 

any professional service contract under which such a certificate is 

required, shall contain a provision that "the original contract price and any 

additions thereto, shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums by 

which the Board determines the contract price was increased due to 

inaccurate, incomplete, or noncurrent wage rates and other factual unit 

costs." 

(c) Should the District be unable to negotiate a satisfactory agreement with 

the firm determined to be the most qualified at a price deemed by the 

District to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, then negotiations with that 

firm shall be terminated and the District shall immediately begin 

negotiations with the second most qualified firm. If a satisfactory 

agreement with the second firm cannot be reached, those negotiations 

shall be terminated and negotiations with the third most qualified firm 

shall be undertaken. 

(d) Should the District be unable to negotiate a satisfactory agreement with 

one of the top three (3) ranked consultants, additional firms shall be 

selected by the District, in order of their competence and qualifications. 

Negotiations shall continue, beginning with the first-named firm on the 

list, until an agreement is reached or the list of firms is exhausted. 

29 



 

 
 

           

       

 

 

            

 

 

           

       

  

 
       

         

 

 

(6) Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered 

into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the 

contractor to comply with public records laws. 

(7) Continuing Contract. Nothing in this Rule shall prohibit a Continuing Contract 

between a consultant and the District. 

(8) Emergency Purchase. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without 

complying with these Rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred 

or is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 190.011(3), 190.033, 287.055, Fla. Stat. 

30 



 

 
 

   

 

      

   

   

        

      

      

  

 

   

 

         

     

   

     

 

 

         

 

 

        

     

    

   

        

         

       

       

       

       

     

  

 

       

   

      

    

 

   

 

 

         

     

 

 

Rule 3.2 Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection. 

In order to comply with the requirements of Section 218.391 of the Florida Statutes, the 

following procedures are outlined for selection of firms or individuals to provide 

Auditing Services and for the negotiation of such contracts. For audits required under 

Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes but not meeting the thresholds of Chapter 218 of the 

Florida Statutes, the District need not follow these procedures but may proceed with the 

selection of a firm or individual to provide Auditing Services and for the negotiation of 

such contracts in the manner the Board determines is in the best interests of the District. 

(1) Definitions. 

(a) "Auditing Services" means those services within the scope of the practice 

of a certified public accounting firm licensed under Chapter 473 of the 

Florida Statutes, and qualified to conduct audits in accordance with 

government auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of 

Accountancy.  

(b) "Committee" means the auditor selection committee appointed by the 

Board as described in section (2) of this Rule. 

(2) Establishment of Auditor Selection Committee. Prior to a public announcement 

under section (4) of this Rule that Auditing Services are required, the Board shall 

establish an auditor selection committee (“Committee”), the primary purpose of 

which is to assist the Board in selecting an auditor to conduct the annual financial 

audit required by Section 218.39 of the Florida Statutes. The Committee shall 

include at least three individuals, at least one of which must also be a member of 

the Board. The establishment and selection of the Committee must be conducted 

at a publicly noticed and held meeting of the Board. The Chairperson of the 

Committee must be a member of the Board. An employee, a chief executive 

officer, or a chief financial officer of the District may not serve as a member of 

the Committee; provided however such individual may serve the Committee in an 

advisory capacity. 

(3) Establishment of Minimum Qualifications and Evaluation Criteria. Prior to a 

public announcement under section (4) of this Rule that Auditing Services are 

required, the Committee shall meet at a publicly noticed meeting to establish 

minimum qualifications and factors to use for the evaluation of Auditing Services 

to be provided by a certified public accounting firm licensed under Chapter 473 of 

the Florida Statutes, and qualified to conduct audits in accordance with 

government auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of Accountancy. 

(a) Minimum Qualifications. In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a 

firm must, at all relevant times including the time of receipt of the 

proposal by the District: 

31 



 

 
 

     

 

 

    

 

 

      

      

    

 

 

     

     

 

     

     

 

 

      

  

 

   

 

  

 

  

 

       

 

       

     

 

       

    

          

      

     

       

      

 

 

          

     

   

(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good 

standing; 

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if 

any; 

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be 

authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with 

Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the proposer is a 

corporation; and 

(iv) Meet any pre-qualification requirements established by the 

Committee and set forth in the RFP or other specifications. 

If requested in the RFP or other specifications, evidence of compliance 

with the minimum qualifications as established by the Committee must be 

submitted with the proposal. 

(b) Evaluation Criteria. The factors established for the evaluation of Auditing 

Services by the Committee shall include, but are not limited to: 

(i) Ability of personnel; 

(ii) Experience; 

(iii) Ability to furnish the required services; and 

(iv) Such other factors as may be determined by the Committee to be 

applicable to its particular requirements. 

The Committee may also choose to consider compensation as a factor. If the 

Committee establishes compensation as one of the factors, compensation shall not 

be the sole or predominant factor used to evaluate proposals. 

(4) Public Announcement. After identifying the factors to be used in evaluating the 

proposals for Auditing Services as set forth in section (3) of this Rule, the 

Committee shall publicly announce the opportunity to provide Auditing Services. 

Such public announcement shall include a brief description of the audit and how 

interested firms can apply for consideration and obtain the RFP. The notice shall 

appear in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the District and the 

county in which the District is located. The public announcement shall allow for 

at least seven (7) days for the submission of proposals. 

(5) Request for Proposals. The Committee shall provide interested firms with a 

Request for Proposals (“RFP”). The RFP shall provide information on how 

proposals are to be evaluated and such other information the Committee 

32 



 

 
 

 

 

 

      

         

       

     

     

       

       

      

 

      

    

      

  

 

  

 

     

  

     

      

     

   

   

    

   

      

     

      

     

  

       

 

 

 

       

    

   

   

 

   

  

 

 

determines is necessary for the firm to prepare a proposal.  The RFP shall state the 

time and place for submitting proposals.  

(6) Committee’s Evaluation of Proposals and Recommendation. The Committee 

shall meet at a publicly held meeting that is publicly noticed for a reasonable time 

in advance of the meeting to evaluate all qualified proposals and may, as part of 

the evaluation, require that each interested firm provide a public presentation 

where the Committee may conduct discussions with the firm, and where the firm 

may present information, regarding the firm’s qualifications. At the public 
meeting, the Committee shall rank and recommend in order of preference no 

fewer than three firms deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the 

required services after considering the factors established pursuant to subsection 

(3)(b) of this Rule. If fewer than three firms respond to the RFP or if no firms 

respond to the RFP, the Committee shall recommend such firm as it deems to be 

the most highly qualified. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may 

recommend that any and all proposals be rejected. 

(7) Board Selection of Auditor. 

(a) Where compensation was not selected as a factor used in evaluating the 

proposals, the Board shall negotiate with the firm ranked first and inquire 

of that firm as to the basis of compensation. If the Board is unable to 

negotiate a satisfactory agreement with the first ranked firm at a price 

deemed by the Board to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, then 

negotiations with that firm shall be terminated and the Board shall 

immediately begin negotiations with the second ranked firm. If a 

satisfactory agreement with the second ranked firm cannot be reached, 

those negotiations shall be terminated and negotiations with the third 

ranked firm shall be undertaken. The Board may reopen formal 

negotiations with any one of the three top-ranked firms, but it may not 

negotiate with more than one firm at a time. If the Board is unable to 

negotiate a satisfactory agreement with any of the selected firms, the 

Committee shall recommend additional firms in order of the firms’ 

respective competence and qualifications. Negotiations shall continue, 

beginning with the first-named firm on the list, until an agreement is 

reached or the list of firms is exhausted. 

(b) Where compensation was selected as a factor used in evaluating the 

proposals, the Board shall select the highest-ranked qualified firm or 

document in its public records the reason for not selecting the highest-

ranked qualified firm. 

(c) In negotiations with firms under this Rule, the Board may allow the 

District Manager, District Counsel, or other designee to conduct 

negotiations on its behalf. 

33 



 

 
 

        

       

 

     

 

 

          

  

        

 

 

     

 

 

       

  

 

 

         

        

   

 

 

    

    

    

       

     

 

      

 

 

        

    

    

     

     

        

     

       

     

      

 

 
       

        

 

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may reject any or all proposals. 

The Board shall not consider any proposal, or enter into any contract for 

Auditing Services, unless the proposed agreed-upon compensation is 

reasonable to satisfy the requirements of Section 218.39 of the Florida 

Statutes, and the needs of the District. 

(8) Contract. Any agreement reached under this Rule shall be evidenced by a written 

contract, which may take the form of an engagement letter signed and executed by 

both parties. The written contract shall include all provisions and conditions of 

the procurement of such services and shall include, at a minimum, the following: 

(a) A provision specifying the services to be provided and fees or other 

compensation for such services; 

(b) A provision requiring that invoices for fees or other compensation be 

submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of 

the contract; 

(c) A provision setting forth deadlines for the auditor to submit a preliminary 

draft audit report to the District for review and to submit a final audit 

report no later than June 30 of the fiscal year that follows the fiscal year 

for which the audit is being conducted; 

(d) A provision specifying the contract period, including renewals, and 

conditions under which the contract may be terminated or renewed. The 

maximum contract period including renewals shall be five (5) years. A 

renewal may be done without the use of the auditor selection procedures 

provided in this Rule but must be in writing.  

(e) Provisions required by law that require the auditor to comply with public 

records laws. 

(9) Notice of Award. Once a negotiated agreement with a firm or individual is 

reached, or the Board authorizes the execution of an agreement with a firm where 

compensation was a factor in the evaluation of proposals, notice of the intent to 

award, including the rejection of some or all proposals, shall be provided in 

writing to all proposers by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or 

overnight delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement: 

"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of 

the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or 

wording to that effect. Protests regarding the award of contracts under this Rule 

shall be as provided for in Rule 3.11. No proposer shall be entitled to recover any 

costs of proposal preparation or submittal from the District. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 218.33, 218.391, Fla. Stat. 

34 



 

 
 

 

35 



 

 
 

  

 

    

          

 

         

         

    

     

 

 

         

 

 

  

 

          

   

 

 

       

      

  

     

 

 

   

 

      

   

      

  

 

      

 

 

      

   

    

    

   

    

    

 

   

      

Rule 3.3 Purchase of Insurance. 

(1) Scope. The purchases of life, health, accident, hospitalization, legal expense, or 

annuity insurance, or all of any kinds of such insurance for the officers and 

employees of the District, and for health, accident, hospitalization, and legal 

expenses upon a group insurance plan by the District, shall be governed by this 

Rule. This Rule does not apply to the purchase of any other type of insurance by 

the District, including but not limited to liability insurance, property insurance, 

and directors and officers insurance. Nothing in this Rule shall require the District 

to purchase insurance.  

(2) Procedure. For a purchase of insurance within the scope of these Rules, the 

following procedure shall be followed: 

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared a Notice of Invitation to Bid. 

(b) Notice of the Invitation to Bid shall be advertised at least once in a 

newspaper of general circulation within the District. The notice shall allow 

at least fourteen (14) days for submittal of bids. 

(c) The District may maintain a list of persons interested in receiving notices 

of Invitations to Bid. The District shall make reasonable efforts to provide 

copies of any notices to such persons, but the failure to do so shall not give 

such consultants any bid protest or other rights or otherwise disqualify any 

otherwise valid procurement process.  

(d) Bids shall be opened at the time and place noted in the Invitation to Bid. 

(e) If only one (1) response to an Invitation is received, the District may 

proceed with the purchase. If no response to an Invitation to Bid is 

received, the District may take whatever steps are reasonably necessary in 

order to proceed with the purchase. 

(f) The Board has the right to reject any and all bids and such reservations 

shall be included in all solicitations and advertisements. 

(g) Simultaneously with the review of the submitted bids, the District may 

undertake negotiations with those companies that have submitted 

reasonable and timely bids and, in the opinion of the District, are fully 

qualified and capable of meeting all services and requirements. Bid 

responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the specifications and 

criteria contained in the Invitation to Bid; in addition, the total cost to the 

District, the cost, if any, to the District officers, employees, or their 

dependents, the geographic location of the company’s headquarters and 
offices in relation to the District, and the ability of the company to 

guarantee premium stability may be considered. A contract to purchase 

36 



 

 
 

      

    

 

 

      

      

       

       

      

        

       

 

 
       

      

 

insurance shall be awarded to that company whose response to the 

Invitation to Bid best meets the overall needs of the District, its officers, 

employees, and/or dependents. 

(h) Notice of the intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, shall 

be provided in writing to all bidders by United States Mail, by hand 

delivery, or by overnight delivery service. The notice shall include the 

following statement: "Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed 

in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of 

proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the 

District’s procurement of insurance under this Rule shall be in accordance 

with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: § 112.08, Fla. Stat. 

37 



 

 
 

  

 

        

    

  

 

     

 

 

  

 

  

  

   

    

     

   

     

  

 

 

       

  

      

  

 

        

    

    

    

  

 

     

        

    

     

   

      

     

       

 

 

         

     

     

Rule 3.4 Pre-qualification 

(1) Scope. In its discretion, the District may undertake a pre-qualification process in 

accordance with this Rule for vendors to provide construction services, goods, 

supplies, and materials, Contractual Services, and maintenance services.  

(2) Procedure. When the District seeks to pre-qualify vendors, the following 

procedures shall apply: 

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared a Request for Qualifications. 

(b) For construction services exceeding the thresholds described in Section 

255.20 of the Florida Statutes, the Board must advertise the proposed pre-

qualification criteria and procedures and allow at least seven (7) days 

notice of the public hearing for comments on such pre-qualification 

criteria and procedures. At such public hearing, potential vendors may 

object to such pre-qualification criteria and procedures. Following such 

public hearing, the Board shall formally adopt pre-qualification criteria 

and procedures prior to the advertisement of the Request for Qualifications 

for construction services. 

(c) The Request for Qualifications shall be advertised at least once in a 

newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county 

in which the District is located. The notice shall allow at least seven (7) 

days for submittal of qualifications for goods, supplies and materials, 

Contractual Services, maintenance services, and construction services 

under two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000). The notice shall 

allow at least twenty-one (21) days for submittal of qualifications for 

construction services estimated to cost over two hundred fifty thousand 

dollars ($250,000) and thirty (30) days for construction services estimated 

to cost over five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000). 

(d) The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices 

of Requests for Qualifications. The District shall make a good faith effort 

to provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand 

delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to 

the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a 

person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any pre-qualification 

determination or contract awarded in accordance with these Rules and 

shall not be a basis for a protest of any pre-qualification determination or 

contract award. 

(e) If the District has pre-qualified vendors for a particular category of 

purchase, at the option of the District, only those persons who have been 

pre-qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies or 

38 



 

 
 

 

 

 

       

 

 

     

 

 

    

 

 

       

     

    

 

 

     

 

 

     

         

      

 

 

       

    

 

      

 

 

    

      

  

    

    

   

 

     

     

 

 

        

     

     

 

responses in response to the applicable Invitation to Bid, Request for 

Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. 

(f) In order to be eligible to submit qualifications, a firm or individual must, 

at the time of receipt of the qualifications: 

(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good 

standing; 

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if 

any; 

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be 

authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with 

Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; 

and 

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the 

Request for Qualifications. 

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the 

qualifications if required by the District. Failure to submit evidence of 

compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the 

qualifications. 

(g) Qualifications shall be presented to the Board, or a committee appointed 

by the Board, for evaluation in accordance with the Request for 

Qualifications and this Rule.  Minor variations in the qualifications may be 

waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver of the variation does 

not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of a material nature.  

(h) All vendors determined by the District to meet the pre-qualification 

requirements shall be pre-qualified. To assure full understanding of the 

responsiveness to the requirements contained in a Request for 

Qualifications, discussions may be conducted with qualified vendors. 

Vendors shall be accorded fair treatment prior to the submittal date with 

respect to any opportunity for discussion and revision of qualifications.  

For construction services, any contractor pre-qualified and considered 

eligible by the Department of Transportation to bid to perform the type of 

work the project entails shall be presumed to be qualified to perform the 

project. 

(i) The Board shall have the right to reject all qualifications if there are not 

enough to be competitive or if rejection is determined to be in the best 

interest of the District. No vendor shall be entitled to recover any costs of 

qualification preparation or submittal from the District. 

39 



 

 
 

 

    

     

    

         

   

    

   

   

    

    

 

 

  

       

  

         

   

     

       

     

 

    

 

      

    

    

 

      

   

    

      

    

 

   

       

    

 

      

   

(j) Notice of intent to pre-qualify, including rejection of some or all 

qualifications, shall be provided in writing to all vendors by United States Mail, 

electronic mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service. The 

notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file a protest within the 

time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver 

of proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the 

District’s pre-qualification decisions under this Rule shall be in accordance with 

the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11; provided however, protests related to the 

pre-qualification criteria and procedures for construction services shall be 

resolved in accordance with section (2)(b) of this Rule and Section 255.20(1)(b) 

of the Florida Statutes. 

(3) Suspension, Revocation, or Denial of Qualification 

(a) The District, for good cause, may deny, suspend, or revoke a prequalified 

vendor’s pre-qualified status. A suspension, revocation, or denial for good 

cause shall prohibit the vendor from bidding on any District construction 

contract for which qualification is required, shall constitute a determination of 

non-responsibility to bid on any other District construction or maintenance 

contract, and shall prohibit the vendor from acting as a material supplier or 

subcontractor on any District contract or project during the period of 

suspension, revocation, or denial. Good cause shall include the following: 

i. One of the circumstances specified under Section 337.16(2), Fla. Stat., 

has occurred. 

ii. Affiliated contractors submitted more than one proposal for the same 

work. In this event the pre-qualified status of all of the affiliated 

bidders will be revoked, suspended, or denied. All bids of affiliated 

bidders will be rejected. 

iii. The vendor made or submitted false, deceptive, or fraudulent 

statements, certifications, or materials in any claim for payment or any 

information required by any District contract. 

iv. The vendor or its affiliate defaulted on any contract or a contract 

surety assumed control of financial responsibility for any contract of 

the vendor. 

v. The vendor’s qualification to bid is suspended, revoked, or denied by 
any other public or semi-public entity, or the vendor has been the 

subject of a civil enforcement proceeding or settlement involving a 

public or semi-public entity. 

vi. The vendor failed to comply with contract or warranty requirements or 

failed to follow District direction in the performance of a contract. 

40 



 

 
 

      

     

   

   

 

    

  

      

      

   

    

 

      

  

       

  

     

   

 

       

   

  

      

     

   

     

  

       

    

  

        

 

        

     

    

  

 

vii. The vendor failed to timely furnish all contract documents required by 

the contract specifications, special provisions, or by any state or 

federal statutes or regulations. If the vendor fails to furnish any of the 

subject contract documents by the expiration of the period of 

suspension, revocation, or denial set forth above, the vendor’s pre-

qualified status shall remain suspended, revoked, or denied until the 

documents are furnished. 

viii. The vendor failed to notify the District within 10 days of the vendor, 

or any of its affiliates, being declared in default or otherwise not 

completing work on a contract or being suspended from qualification 

to bid or denied qualification to bid by any other public or semi-public 

agency. 

ix. The vendor did not pay its subcontractors or suppliers in a timely 

manner or in compliance with contract documents. 

x. The vendor has demonstrated instances of poor or unsatisfactory 

performance, deficient management resulting in project delay, poor 

quality workmanship, a history of payment of liquidated damages, 

untimely completion of projects, uncooperative attitude, contract 

litigation, inflated claims or defaults. 

xi. An affiliate of the vendor has previously been determined by the 

District to be non-responsible, and the specified period of suspension, 

revocation, denial, or non-responsibility remains in effect. 

xii. The vendor or affiliate(s) has been convicted of a contract crime. 

1. The term “contract crime” means any violation of state or 

federal antitrust laws with respect to a public contract or any 

violation of any state or federal law involving fraud, bribery, 

collusion, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation with 

respect to a public contract. 

2. The term “convicted” or “conviction” means a finding of guilt 
or a conviction of a contract crime, with or without an 

adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record 

as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of 

guilty or nolo contendere. 

(b) A denial, suspension, or revocation shall prohibit the vendor from being a 

subcontractor on District work during the period of denial, suspension, or 

revocation, except when a prime contractor’s bid has used prices of a 

subcontractor who becomes disqualified after the bid, but before the request 

for authorization to sublet is presented. 

41 



 

 
 

        

        

    

     

       

      

 

   

 

      

    

    

      

   

  

  

   

  

   

  

  

  

 
       

        

(c) The District shall inform the vendor in writing of its intent to deny, suspend, 

or revoke its pre-qualified status and inform the vendor of its right to a 

hearing, the procedure which must be followed, and the applicable time limits. 

If a hearing is requested within 10 days after the receipt of the notice of intent, 

the hearing shall be held within 30 days after receipt by the District of the 

request for the hearing. The decision shall be issued within 15 days after the 

hearing. 

(d) Such suspension or revocation shall not affect the vendor’s obligations under 
any preexisting contract. 

(e) In the case of contract crimes, the vendor’s pre-qualified status under this 

Rule shall be revoked indefinitely. For all violations of Rule 3.4(3)(a) other 

than for the vendor’s conviction for contract crimes, the revocation, denial, or 

suspension of a vendor’s pre-qualified status under this Rule shall be for a 

specific period of time based on the seriousness of the deficiency. 

Examples of factors affecting the seriousness of a deficiency are: 

i. Impacts on project schedule, cost, or quality of work; 

ii. Unsafe conditions allowed to exist; 

iii. Complaints from the public; 

iv. Delay or interference with the bidding process; 

v. The potential for repetition; 

vi. Integrity of the public contracting process; 

vii. Effect on the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 190.033, 255.0525, 255.20, Fla. Stat. 

42 



 

 
 

  

 

      

       

      

     

     

     

    

       

 

 

       

 

 

       

 

 

     

     

   

       

         

 

     

    

   

 

     

    

 

       

   

    

  

 

      

  

      

      

     

   

     

        

 

Rule 3.5 Construction Contracts, Not Design-Build. 

(1) Scope. All contracts for the construction or improvement of any building, 

structure, or other public construction works authorized by Chapter 190 of the 

Florida Statutes, the costs of which are estimated by the District in accordance 

with generally accepted cost accounting principles to be in excess of the threshold 

amount for applicability of Section 255.20 of the Florida Statutes, as that amount 

may be indexed or amended from time to time, shall be let under the terms of 

these Rules and the procedures of Section 255.20 of the Florida Statutes, as the 

same may be amended from time to time. A project shall not be divided solely to 

avoid the threshold bidding requirements. 

(2) Procedure. When a purchase of construction services is within the scope of this 

Rule, the following procedures shall apply: 

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for 

Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. 

(b) Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to 

Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a 

newspaper of general circulation in the District and in the county in which 

the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount of the bid 

bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least twenty-one (21) 

days for submittal of sealed bids, proposals, replies, or responses, unless 

the Board, for good cause, determines a shorter period of time is 

appropriate. Any project projected to cost more than five hundred 

thousand dollars ($500,000) must be noticed at least thirty (30) days prior 

to the date for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses. If the 

Board has previously pre-qualified contractors pursuant to Rule 3.4 and 

determined that only the contractors that have been pre-qualified will be 

permitted to submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses, the Notice of 

Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or 

Competitive Solicitation need not be published. Instead, the Notice of 

Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or 

Competitive Solicitation shall be sent to the pre-qualified contractors by 

United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service. 

(c) The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices 

of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and 

Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to 

provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand 

delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to 

the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a 

person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in 

accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any 

contract award.  

43 



 

 
 

 

   

     

      

   

 

 

          

   

 

 

    

 

 

   

 

 

      

    

    

 

 

          

 

 

 

     

     

     

   

     

     

 

 

     

     

       

 

 

     

       

    

      

       

      

    

(d) If the District has pre-qualified providers of construction services, then, at 

the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-qualified 

will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, or responses to 

Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and 

Competitive Solicitations. 

(e) In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm 

or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or 

responses: 

(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good 

standing; 

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if 

any; 

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be 

authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with 

Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the bidder is a corporation; 

and 

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the 

Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or 

Competitive Solicitation. 

Any contractor that has been found guilty by a court of any violation of 

federal labor or employment tax laws regarding subjects including but not 

limited to, reemployment assistance, safety, tax withholding, worker’s 
compensation, unemployment tax, social security and Medicare tax, wage 

or hour, or prevailing rate laws within the past 5 years may be considered 

ineligible by the District to submit a bid, response, or proposal for a 

District project. 

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid, 

proposal, reply, or response, if required by the District. Failure to submit 

evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the 

bid, proposal, reply, or response. 

(f) Bids, proposals, replies, and responses, or the portions of which that 

include the price, shall be publicly opened at a meeting noticed in 

accordance with Rule 1.3, and at which at least one district representative 

is present. The name of each bidder and the price submitted in the bid 

shall be announced at such meeting and shall be made available upon 

request. Minutes should be taken at the meeting and maintained by the 

District. Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be evaluated in 

44 



 

 
 

    

   

   

     

     

  

   

  

   

   

 

 

      

    

    

     

    

        

  

  

     

     

   

 

 

      

     

    

         

   

  

 

        

      

 

 

      

    

   

        

       

       

       

    

 

 

accordance with the respective Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, 

Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation and these Rules.  

Minor variations in the bids, proposals, replies, or responses may be 

waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver of the variation does 

not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of a material nature.  

Mistakes in arithmetic extension of pricing may be corrected by the Board. 

Bids and proposals may not be modified or supplemented after opening; 

provided however, additional information may be requested and/or 

provided to evidence compliance, make non-material modifications, 

clarifications, or supplementations, and as otherwise permitted by Florida 

law. 

(g) The lowest Responsive Bid submitted by a Responsive and Responsible 

Bidder in response to an Invitation to Bid shall be accepted. In relation to 

a Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive 

Solicitation, the Board shall select the Responsive Proposal, Reply, or 

Response submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Vendor which is 

most advantageous to the District. To assure full understanding of the 

responsiveness to the solicitation requirements contained in a Request for 

Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions 

may be conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair 

treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for 

discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, and 

responses.  

(h) The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or 

responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the 

purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is 

determined to be in the best interest of the District. No contractor shall be 

entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, response, or reply 

preparation or submittal from the District. 

(i) The Board may require potential contractors to furnish bid bonds, 

performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be 

approved by the Board. 

(j) Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, 

proposals, replies, or responses, shall be provided in writing to all 

contractors by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight 

delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement: 

"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the 

Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those 

Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s purchase of 

construction services under this Rule shall be in accordance with the 

procedures set forth in Rule 3.11. 

45 



 

 
 

    

     

    

    

  

   

     

  

 

        

     

      

    

   

   

    

  

  

 

 

         

         

  

 

          

       

  

 

     

 

    

 

 

          

   

 

 

     

 

 

       

    

       

  

 
       

            

(k) If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses 

are received, the District may purchase construction services or may reject 

the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of competitiveness. If 

no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is received, the District 

may proceed with the procurement of construction services, in the manner 

the Board determines is in the best interests of the District, which may 

include but is not limited to a direct purchase of the construction services 

without further competitive selection processes. 

(3) Sole Source; Government. Construction services that are only available from a 

single source are exempt from this Rule. Construction services provided by 

governmental agencies are exempt from this Rule. This Rule shall not apply to 

the purchase of construction services, which may include goods, supplies, or 

materials, that are purchased under a federal, state, or local government contract 

that has been competitively procured by such federal, state, or local government 

in a manner consistent with the material procurement requirements of these Rules. 

A contract for construction services is exempt from this Rule if state or federal 

law prescribes with whom the District must contract or if the rate of payment is 

established during the appropriation process.   

(4) Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered 

into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the 

contractor to comply with public records laws. 

(5) Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without 

complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or 

is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board Meeting.  

(6) Exceptions. This Rule is inapplicable when: 

(a) The project is undertaken as repair or maintenance of an existing public 

facility; 

(b) The funding source of the project will be diminished or lost because the 

time required to competitively award the project after the funds become 

available exceeds the time within which the funding source must be spent; 

(c) The District has competitively awarded a project and the contractor has 

abandoned the project or the District has terminated the contract; or 

(d) The District, after public notice, conducts a public meeting under Section 

286.011 of the Florida Statutes, and finds by a majority vote of the Board 

that it is in the public’s best interest to perform the project using its own 

services, employees, and equipment. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 189.053, 190.033, 255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat. 

46 



 

 
 

  

 

           

   

    

  

 

  

 

       

   

     

 

    

        

   

    

    

 

 

          

     

     

     

 

 

     

  

    

  

 

           

 

    

 

 

     

 

   

  

     

      

  

  

  

 

Rule 3.6 Construction Contracts, Design-Build. 

(1) Scope. The District may utilize Design-Build Contracts for any public 

construction project for which the Board determines that use of such contract is in 

the best interest of the District. When letting a Design-Build Contract, the District 

shall use the following procedure: 

(2) Procedure. 

(a)   The District shall utilize a Design Criteria Professional meeting the 

requirements of Section 287.055(2)(k) of the Florida Statutes, when 

developing a Design Criteria Package, evaluating the proposals and 

qualifications submitted by Design-Build Firms, and determining 

compliance of the project construction with the Design Criteria Package. 

The Design Criteria Professional may be an employee of the District, may 

be the District Engineer selected by the District pursuant to Section 

287.055 of the Florida Statutes, or may be retained pursuant to Rule 3.1. 

The Design Criteria Professional is not eligible to render services under a 

Design-Build Contract executed pursuant to the Design Criteria Package. 

(b) A Design Criteria Package for the construction project shall be prepared 

and sealed by the Design Criteria Professional. If the project utilizes 

existing plans, the Design Criteria Professional shall create a Design 

Criteria Package by supplementing the plans with project specific 

requirements, if any.    

(c) The Board may either choose to award the Design-Build Contract pursuant 

to the competitive proposal selection process set forth in Section 

287.055(9) of the Florida Statutes, or pursuant to the qualifications-based 

selection process pursuant to Rule 3.1. 

(i) Qualifications-Based Selection. If the process set forth in Rule 3.1 

is utilized, subsequent to competitive negotiations, a guaranteed 

maximum price and guaranteed completion date shall be 

established. 

(ii) Competitive Proposal-Based Selection. If the competitive proposal 

selection process is utilized, the Board, in consultation with the 

Design Criteria Professional, shall establish the criteria, standards 

and procedures for the evaluation of Design-Build Proposals based 

on price, technical, and design aspects of the project, weighted for 

the project. After a Design Criteria Package and the standards and 

procedures for evaluation of proposals have been developed, 

competitive proposals from qualified firms shall be solicited 

pursuant to the design criteria by the following procedure: 

47 



 

 
 

          

   

     

  

     

    

    

      

 

   

         

      

     

   

 

    

     

    

  

 

             

  

    

         

  

 

 

       

 

 

         

    

    

 

 

       

  

 

 

       

  

 

  

   

     

1. A Request for Proposals shall be advertised at least once in 

a newspaper of general circulation in the county in which 

the District is located. The notice shall allow at least 

twenty-one (21) days for submittal of sealed proposals, 

unless the Board, for good cause, determines a shorter 

period of time is appropriate. Any project projected to cost 

more than five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) must 

be noticed at least thirty (30) days prior to the date for 

submittal of proposals.  

2. The District may maintain lists of persons interested in 

receiving notices of Requests for Proposals. The District 

shall make a good faith effort to provide written notice, by 

electronic mail, United States Mail, hand delivery, or 

facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to 

the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, 

failure of a person to receive the notice shall not invalidate 

any contract awarded in accordance with this Rule and 

shall not be a basis for a protest of any contract award. 

3. In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a firm must, at 

the time of receipt of the proposals: 

a. Hold the required applicable state professional 

licenses in good standing, as defined by Section 

287.055(2)(h) of the Florida Statutes; 

b. Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good 

standing, if any; 

c. Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter 

or be authorized to do business in the State of 

Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of the 

Florida Statutes, if the proposer is a corporation; 

d. Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set 

forth in the Request for Proposals and Design 

Criteria Package. 

Any contractor that has been found guilty by a court of any 

violation of federal labor or employment tax laws regarding 

subjects including but not limited to reemployment 

assistance, safety, tax withholding, worker’s compensation, 

unemployment tax, social security and Medicare tax, wage 

or hour, or prevailing rate laws within the past 5 years may 

48 



 

 
 

      

  

 

     

     

     

   

 

         

       

   

     

     

       

     

  

  

  

  

 

  

    

  

 

              

    

   

    

 

 

            

    

  

     

     

  

      

  

 

 

          

   

   

   

       

   

be considered ineligible by the District to submit a bid, 

response, or proposal for a District project. 

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be 

submitted with the proposal if required by the District. 

Failure to submit evidence of compliance when required 

may be grounds for rejection of the proposal. 

4. The proposals, or the portions of which that include the 

price, shall be publicly opened at a meeting noticed in 

accordance with Rule 1.3, and at which at least one district 

representative is present. The name of each bidder and the 

price submitted in the bid shall be announced at such 

meeting and shall be made available upon request. Minutes 

should be taken at the meeting and maintained by the 

District. In consultation with the Design Criteria 

Professional, the Board shall evaluate the proposals 

received based on evaluation criteria and procedures 

established prior to the solicitation of proposals, including 

but not limited to qualifications, availability, and past work 

of the firms and the partners and members thereof. The 

Board shall then select no fewer than three (3) Design-

Build Firms as the most qualified. 

5. The Board shall have the right to reject all proposals if the 

proposals are too high, or rejection is determined to be in 

the best interest of the District. No vendor shall be entitled 

to recover any costs of proposal preparation or submittal 

from the District. 

6. If less than three (3) Responsive Proposals are received, the 

District may purchase design-build services or may reject 

the proposals for lack of competitiveness. If no Responsive 

Proposals are received, the District may proceed with the 

procurement of design-build services in the manner the 

Board determines is in the best interests of the District, 

which may include but is not limited to a direct purchase of 

the design-build services without further competitive 

selection processes. 

7. Notice of the rankings adopted by the Board, including the 

rejection of some or all proposals, shall be provided in 

writing to all consultants by United States Mail, hand 

delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service. The 

notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to 

file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the 

49 



 

 
 

    

   

    

  

 

           

  

   

  

   

       

     

      

    

     

     

    

     

   

      

   

   

      

 

    

    

   

  

  

 

 

        

  

 

 

          

     

     

  

 

         

        

  

 

         

     

Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of 

proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect.  

Protests of the District’s rankings under this Rule shall be 

in accordance with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11. 

8. The Board shall negotiate a contract with the firm ranking 

the highest based on the evaluation standards and shall 

establish a price which the Board determines is fair, 

competitive and reasonable. Should the Board be unable to 

negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm considered to 

be the most qualified at a price considered by the Board to 

be fair, competitive, and reasonable, negotiations with that 

firm must be terminated. The Board shall then undertake 

negotiations with the second most qualified firm, based on 

the ranking by the evaluation standards. Should the Board 

be unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm 

considered to be the second most qualified at a price 

considered by the Board to be fair, competitive, and 

reasonable, negotiations with that firm must be terminated. 

The Board shall then undertake negotiations with the third 

most qualified firm. Should the Board be unable to 

negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm considered to 

be the third most qualified at a price considered by the 

Board to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, negotiations 

with that firm must be terminated. Should the Board be 

unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with any of the 

selected firms, the Board shall select additional firms in 

order of their rankings based on the evaluation standards 

and continue negotiations until an agreement is reached or 

the list of firms is exhausted. 

9. After the Board contracts with a firm, the firm shall bring 

to the Board for approval, detailed working drawings of the 

project.  

10. The Design Criteria Professional shall evaluate the 

compliance of the detailed working drawings and project 

construction with the Design Criteria Package and shall 

provide the Board with a report of the same.  

(3) Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered 

into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the 

contractor to comply with public records laws. 

(4) Emergency Purchase. The Board may, in case of public emergency, declare an 

emergency and immediately proceed with negotiations with the best qualified 

50 



 

 
 

    

 

 

     

 

      

 

 

         

  

   

 

     

 

 

       

    

      

 

 
       

            

 

Design-Build Firm available at the time. The fact that an Emergency Purchase 

has occurred shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting. 

(5) Exceptions. This Rule is inapplicable when: 

(a) The project is undertaken as repair or maintenance of an existing public 

facility; 

(b) The funding source of the project will be diminished or lost because the 

time required to competitively award the project after the funds become 

available exceeds the time within which the funding source must be spent; 

(c) The District has competitively awarded a project and the contractor has 

abandoned the project or the District has terminated the contractor; or 

(d) The District, after public notice, conducts a public meeting under Section 

286.011 of the Florida Statutes, and finds by a majority vote of the Board 

that it is in the public’s best interest to perform the project using its own 

services, employees, and equipment. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 189.053, 190.033, 255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat. 

51 



 

 
 

  

 

        

    

        

    

 

         

    

   

     

   

    

 

 

        

    

       

 

 
       

      

 

Rule 3.7 Payment and Performance Bonds. 

(1) Scope. This Rule shall apply to contracts for the construction of a public 

building, for the prosecution and completion of a public work, or for repairs upon 

a public building or public work and shall be construed in addition to terms 

prescribed by any other Rule that may also apply to such contracts. 

(2) Required Bond. Upon entering into a contract for any of the services described in 

section (1) of this Rule in excess of $200,000, the Board should require that the 

contractor, before commencing the work, execute and record a payment and 

performance bond in an amount equal to the contract price. Notwithstanding the 

terms of the contract or any other law, the District may not make payment to the 

contractor until the contractor has provided to the District a certified copy of the 

recorded bond. 

(3) Discretionary Bond. At the discretion of the Board, upon entering into a contract 

for any of the services described in section (1) of this Rule for an amount not 

exceeding $200,000, the contractor may be exempted from executing a payment 

and performance bond. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: § 255.05, Fla. Stat. 

52 



 

 
 

  

 

          

     

      

  

  

      

         

 

 

          

 

 

      

 

 

    

    

  

        

 

  

 

     

   

     

      

     

   

     

         

 

 

     

   

  

 

          

  

 

 

     

 

 

  

Rule 3.8 Goods, Supplies, and Materials. 

(1) Purpose and Scope. All purchases of goods, supplies, or materials exceeding the 

amount provided in Section 287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY 

FOUR, shall be purchased under the terms of this Rule. Contracts for purchases 

of “goods, supplies, and materials” do not include printing, insurance, advertising, 

or legal notices. A contract involving goods, supplies, or materials plus 

maintenance services may, in the discretion of the Board, be treated as a contract 

for maintenance services. However, a purchase shall not be divided solely in 

order to avoid the threshold bidding requirements. 

(2) Procedure. When a purchase of goods, supplies, or materials is within the scope 

of this Rule, the following procedures shall apply: 

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for 

Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. 

(b) Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to 

Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a 

newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county 

in which the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount 

of the bid bond, if one is required.  The notice shall allow at least seven (7) 

days for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses. 

(c) The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices 

of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, or 

Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to 

provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand 

delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to 

the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a 

person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in 

accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any 

contract award. 

(d) If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of goods, supplies, and materials, 

then, at the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-

qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, or responses. 

(e) In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm 

or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or 

responses: 

(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good 

standing; 

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any; 

53 



 

 
 

 

     

      

 

 

        

 

 

 

     

      

       

 

 

     

        

  

     

    

        

        

 

 

    

    

   

    

  

  

    

  

        

      

  

    

  

 

    

     

    

   

     

     

      

     

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized 

to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 

of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and 

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the 

Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or 

Competitive Solicitation. 

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid, 

proposal, reply or response if required by the District. Failure to submit 

evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the 

bid, proposal, reply, or response. 

Any firm or individual whose principal place of business is outside the 

State of Florida must also submit a written opinion of an attorney at law 

licensed to practice law in that foreign state, as to the preferences, if any or 

none, granted by the law of that foreign state to business entities whose 

principal places of business are in that foreign state, in the letting of any or 

all public contracts. Failure to submit such a written opinion or 

submission of a false or misleading written opinion may be grounds for 

rejection of the bid, proposal, reply, or response. 

(f) Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be publicly opened at the time 

and place noted on the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation 

to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. Bids, proposals, replies, and 

responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective Invitation 

to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive 

Solicitation, and this Rule.  Minor variations in the bids, proposals, replies, 

or responses may be waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver 

of the variation does not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of 

a material nature. Mistakes in arithmetic extension of pricing may be 

corrected by the Board. Bids and proposals may not be modified or 

supplemented after opening; provided however, additional information 

may be requested and/or provided to evidence compliance, make non-

material modifications, clarifications, or supplementations, and as 

otherwise permitted by Florida law. 

(g) The lowest Responsive Bid, after taking into account the preferences 

provided for in this subsection, submitted by a Responsive and 

Responsible Bidder in response to an Invitation to Bid, Request for 

Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be 

accepted. If the lowest Responsive Bid is submitted by a Responsive and 

Responsible Bidder whose principal place of business is located in a 

foreign state which does not grant a preference in competitive purchase to 

businesses whose principal place of business are in that foreign state, the 

54 



 

 
 

       

        

      

    

    

     

       

       

  

 

      

  

   

    

     

   

 

 

     

      

    

      

   

  

 

          

     

 

 

       

     

   

        

     

      

      

     

 

 

     

    

        

   

    

  

     

lowest Responsible and Responsive Bidder whose principal place of 

business is in the State of Florida shall be awarded a preference of five (5) 

percent. If the lowest Responsive Bid is submitted by a Responsive and 

Responsible Bidder whose principal place of business is located in a 

foreign state which grants a preference in competitive purchase to 

businesses whose principal place of business are in that foreign state, the 

lowest Responsible and Responsive Bidder whose principal place of 

business is in the State of Florida shall be awarded a preference equal to 

the preference granted by such foreign state. 

To assure full understanding of the responsiveness to the solicitation 

requirements contained in an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, 

Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions may be 

conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair 

treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for 

discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, and 

responses.  

(h) The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or 

responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the 

purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is 

determined to be in the best interest of the District. No vendor shall be 

entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, reply, or response 

preparation or submittal from the District. 

(i) The Board may require bidders and proposers to furnish bid bonds, 

performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be 

approved by the Board. 

(j) Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, 

proposals, replies, or responses shall be provided in writing to all vendors 

by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery 

service. The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file 

a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the 

District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or 

wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s purchase of goods, 
supplies, and materials under this Rule shall be in accordance with the 

procedures set forth in Rule 3.11. 

(k) If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses 

are received, the District may purchase goods, supplies, or materials, or 

may reject the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of 

competitiveness. If no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is 

received, the District may proceed with the procurement of goods, 

supplies, and materials, in the manner the Board determines is in the best 

interests of the District, which may include but is not limited to a direct 

55 



 

 
 

     

 

 

   

          

    

  

         

   

     

 

  

         

      

   

  

     

       

    

     

  

 

 

       

   

 

           

       

 

 
       

         

purchase of the goods, supplies, and materials without further competitive 

selection processes. 

(3) Goods, Supplies, and Materials included in a Construction Contract Awarded 

Pursuant to Rule 3.5 or 3.6. There may be occasions where the District has 

undergone the competitive purchase of construction services which contract may 

include the provision of goods, supplies, or materials. In that instance, the 

District may approve a change order to the contract and directly purchase the 

goods, supplies, and materials. Such purchase of goods, supplies, and materials 

deducted from a competitively purchased construction contract shall be exempt 

from this Rule. 

(4) Exemption. Goods, supplies, and materials that are only available from a single 

source are exempt from this Rule. Goods, supplies, and materials provided by 

governmental agencies are exempt from this Rule.  A contract for goods, supplies, 

or materials is exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom 

the District must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the 

appropriation process. This Rule shall not apply to the purchase of goods, 

supplies or materials that are purchased under a federal, state, or local government 

contract that has been competitively procured by such federal, state, or local 

government in a manner consistent with the material procurement requirements of 

these Rules. 

(5) Renewal. Contracts for the purchase of goods, supplies, and/or materials subject 

to this Rule may be renewed for a maximum period of five (5) years. 

(6) Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without 

complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or 

is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 189.053, 190.033, 287.017, 287.084, Fla. Stat. 

56 



 

 
 

  

 

               

    

   

  

       

  

 

         

 

 

       

 

 

    

    

  

       

  

 

 

      

  

     

      

     

   

     

         

 

 

   

    

 

 

          

   

 

 

     

 

 

  

 

Rule 3.9 Maintenance Services. 

(1) Scope. All contracts for maintenance of any District facility or project shall be set 

under the terms of this Rule if the cost exceeds the amount provided in Section 

287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FOUR. A contract involving 

goods, supplies, and materials plus maintenance services may, in the discretion of 

the Board, be treated as a contract for maintenance services. However, a purchase 

shall not be divided solely in order to avoid the threshold bidding requirements. 

(2) Procedure. When a purchase of maintenance services is within the scope of this 

Rule, the following procedures shall apply: 

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for 

Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. 

(b) Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to 

Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a 

newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county 

in which the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount 

of the bid bond, if one is required.  The notice shall allow at least seven (7) 

days for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses. 

(c) The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices 

of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and 

Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to 

provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand 

delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to 

the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a 

person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in 

accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any 

contract award. 

(d) If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of maintenance services, then, at 

the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-qualified 

will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses. 

(e) In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm 

or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or 

responses: 

(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good 

standing; 

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any; 

57 



 

 
 

     

     

  

 

        

  

 

 

      

       

       

 

 

     

     

  

    

 

   

        

     

     

       

 

    

  

  

 

   

        

   

  

    

     

  

  

     

     

  

 

 

     

      

    

    

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized 

to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 

of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and 

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the 

Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or 

Competitive Solicitation. 

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid, 

proposal, reply, or response if required by the District. Failure to submit 

evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the 

bid, proposal, reply, or response. 

(f) Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be publicly opened at the time 

and place noted on the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation 

to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. Bids, proposals, replies, and 

responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective Invitation 

to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive 

Solicitation, and these Rules. Minor variations in the bids, proposals, 

replies, and responses may be waived by the Board. A variation is minor 

if waiver of the variation does not create a competitive advantage or 

disadvantage of a material nature. Mistakes in arithmetic extension of 

pricing may be corrected by the Board. Bids and proposals may not be 

modified or supplemented after opening; provided however, additional 

information may be requested and/or provided to evidence compliance, 

make non-material modifications, clarifications, or supplementations, and 

as otherwise permitted by Florida law. 

(g) The lowest Responsive Bid submitted in response to an Invitation to Bid 

by a Responsive and Responsible Bidder shall be accepted. In relation to 

a Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate or Competitive 

Solicitation the Board shall select the Responsive Proposal, Reply, or 

Response submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Vendor which is 

most advantageous to the District. To assure full understanding of the 

responsiveness to the solicitation requirements contained in a Request for 

Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions 

may be conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair 

treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for 

discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, or 

responses.  

(h) The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or 

responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the 

purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is 

determined to be in the best interest of the District. No Vendor shall be 

58 



 

 
 

  

 

 

         

     

  

 

      

      

   

          

 

       

    

     

 

 

    

      

  

   

  

      

       

 

 

          

     

       

     

    

 

 

        

  

 

         

        

 

 

           

       

 

 
        

        

entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, reply, or response 

preparation or submittal from the District. 

(i) The Board may require bidders and proposers to furnish bid bonds, 

performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be 

approved by the Board. 

(j) Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, 

proposals, replies, or responses shall be provided in writing to all vendors 

by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery 

service. The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file a 

protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District 

shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or wording to 

that effect. Protests of the District’s procurement of maintenance services 

under this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in 

Rule 3.11. 

(k) If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses 

are received, the District may purchase the maintenance services or may 

reject the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of 

competitiveness. If no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is 

received, the District may proceed with the procurement of maintenance 

services, in the manner the Board determines is in the best interests of the 

District, which may include but is not limited to a direct purchase of the 

maintenance services without further competitive selection processes. 

(3) Exemptions. Maintenance services that are only available from a single source 

are exempt from this Rule. Maintenance services provided by governmental 

agencies are exempt from this Rule. A contract for maintenance services is 

exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom the District 

must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the appropriation 

process.   

(4) Renewal. Contracts for the purchase of maintenance services subject to this Rule 

may be renewed for a maximum period of five (5) years. 

(5) Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered 

into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the 

contractor to comply with public records laws. 

(6) Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without 

complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or 

is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), 190.033, Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 190.033, 287.017, Fla. Stat. 

59 



 

 
 

   

 

       

   

     

  

      

    

    

 

 

  

 

         

    

 

 
      

        

Rule 3.10 Contractual Services. 

(1) Exemption from Competitive Purchase. Pursuant to Section 190.033(3) of the 

Florida Statutes, Contractual Services shall not be subject to competitive 

purchasing requirements. If an agreement is predominantly for Contractual 

Services, but also includes maintenance services or the purchase of goods and 

services, the contract shall not be subject to competitive purchasing requirements. 

Regardless of whether an advertisement or solicitation for Contractual Services is 

identified as an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, 

or Competitive Solicitation, no rights or remedies under these Rules, including 

but not limited to protest rights, are conferred on persons, firms, or vendors 

proposing to provide Contractual Services to the District.  

(2) Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract for 

Contractual Services shall include provisions required by law that require the 

contractor to comply with public records laws. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 190.011(3), 190.033, Fla. Stat. 

60 



 

 
 

     

  

 

     

 

 

   

 

     

     

   

      

     

  

 

     

    

  

   

      

          

      

      

   

 

      

       

   

     

    

   

   

    

      

     

    

       

      

      

  

 

 

         

     

    

     

Rule 3.11 Protests with Respect to Proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 

3.8, and 3.9. 

The resolution of any protests with respect to proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 

3.8, and 3.9 shall be in accordance with this Rule. 

(1) Filing. 

(a) With respect to a protest regarding qualifications, specifications, 

documentation, or other requirements contained in a Request for 

Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Bid, or Competitive 

Solicitation issued by the District, the notice of protest shall be filed in 

writing within seventy-two (72) calendar hours (excluding Saturdays, 

Sundays, and state holidays) after the first advertisement of the Request 

for Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Bid, or Competitive 

Solicitation. A formal protest setting forth with particularity the facts and 

law upon which the protest is based shall be filed within seven (7) 

calendar days (including Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after the 

initial notice of protest was filed. For purposes of this Rule, wherever 

applicable, filing will be perfected and deemed to have occurred upon 

receipt by the District. Failure to file a notice of protest shall constitute a 

waiver of all rights to protest the District’s intended decision. Failure to 
file a formal written protest shall constitute an abandonment of the protest 

proceedings and shall automatically terminate the protest proceedings. 

(b) Except for those situations covered by subsection (1)(a) of this Rule, any 

firm or person who is affected adversely by a District’s ranking or 
intended award under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.8, or 3.9 and 

desires to contest the District’s ranking or intended award, shall file with 

the District a written notice of protest within seventy-two (72) calendar 

hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after receipt of 

the notice of the District’s ranking or intended award. A formal protest 

setting forth with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is 

based shall be filed within seven (7) calendar days (including Saturdays, 

Sundays, and state holidays) after the initial notice of protest was filed. 

For purposes of this Rule, wherever applicable, filing will be perfected 

and deemed to have occurred upon receipt by the District. Failure to file a 

notice of protest shall constitute a waiver of all rights to protest the 

District’s ranking or intended award. Failure to file a formal written 

protest shall constitute an abandonment of the protest proceedings and 

shall automatically terminate the protest proceedings.  

(c) If the requirement for the posting of a protest bond and the amount of the 

protest bond, which may be expressed by a percentage of the contract to 

be awarded or a set amount, is disclosed in the District’s competitive 

solicitation documents for a particular purchase under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 

61 



 

 
 

     

        

  

      

      

  

    

     

    

 

 

      

      

 

 

           

   

     

   

     

    

  

 

         

     

     

          

  

   

     

     

  

 

     

     

     

  

     

 

 

    

 

    

 

     

 

3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.8, or 3.9, any person who files a notice of protest must post 

the protest bond. The amount of the protest bond shall be determined by 

District staff after consultation with the Board and within the limits, if any, 

imposed by Florida law. In the event the protest is successful, the protest 

bond shall be refunded to the protestor. In the event the protest is 

unsuccessful, the protest bond shall be applied towards the District’s costs, 

expenses, and attorney’s fees associated with hearing and defending the 

protest. In the event the protest is settled by mutual agreement of the 

parties, the protest bond shall be distributed as agreed to by the District 

and protestor. 

(d) The District does not accept documents filed by electronic mail or 

facsimile transmission. Filings are only accepted during normal business 

hours. 

(2) Contract Execution. Upon receipt of a notice of protest which has been timely 

filed, the District shall not execute the contract under protest until the subject of 

the protest is resolved. However, if the District sets forth in writing particular 

facts and circumstances showing that delay incident to protest proceedings will 

jeopardize the funding for the project, will materially increase the cost of the 

project, or will create an immediate and serious danger to the public health, 

safety, or welfare, the contract may be executed.  

(3) Informal Proceeding. If the Board determines a protest does not involve a 

disputed issue of material fact, the Board may, but is not obligated to, schedule an 

informal proceeding to consider the protest. Such informal proceeding shall be at 

a time and place determined by the Board. Notice of such proceeding shall be 

sent via facsimile, United States Mail, or hand delivery to the protestor and any 

substantially affected persons or parties not less than three (3) calendar days prior 

to such informal proceeding. Within thirty (30) calendar days following the 

informal proceeding, the Board shall issue a written decision setting forth the 

factual, legal, and policy grounds for its decision. 

(4) Formal Proceeding. If the Board determines a protest involves disputed issues of 

material fact or if the Board elects not to use the informal proceeding process 

provided for in section (3) of this Rule, the District shall schedule a formal 

hearing to resolve the protest.  The Chairperson shall designate any member of the 

Board (including the Chairperson), District Manager, District Counsel, or other 

person as a hearing officer to conduct the hearing.  The hearing officer may: 

(a) Administer oaths and affirmations; 

(b) Rule upon offers of proof and receive relevant evidence; 

(c) Regulate the course of the hearing, including any pre-hearing matters; 

62 



 

 
 

    

 

    

 

    

    

      

       

       

  

       

  

 

        

  

 

    

    

    

      

    

 

   

  

 

 

        

 

 
       

      
 

(d) Enter orders; and 

(e) Make or receive offers of settlement, stipulation, and adjustment. 

The hearing officer shall, within thirty (30) days after the hearing or receipt of the 

hearing transcript, whichever is later, file a recommended order which shall 

include a caption, time and place of hearing, appearances entered at the hearing, 

statement of the issues, findings of fact and conclusions of law, separately stated, 

and a recommendation for final District action. The District shall allow each 

party fifteen (15) days in which to submit written exceptions to the recommended 

order. The District shall issue a final order within sixty (60) days after the filing 

of the recommended order. 

(5) Intervenors. Other substantially affected persons may join the proceedings as 

intervenors on appropriate terms which shall not unduly delay the proceedings. 

(6) Rejection of all Qualifications, Bids, Proposals, Replies and Responses after 

Receipt of Notice of Protest. If the Board determines there was a violation of law, 

defect, or an irregularity in the competitive solicitation process, the Bids, 

Proposals, Replies, and Responses are too high, or if the Board determines it is 

otherwise in the District’s best interest, the Board may reject all qualifications, 

bids, proposals, replies, and responses and start the competitive solicitation 

process anew. If the Board decides to reject all qualifications, bids, proposals, 

replies, and responses and start the competitive solicitation process anew, any 

pending protests shall automatically terminate. 

(7) Settlement. Nothing herein shall preclude the settlement of any protest under this 

Rule at any time. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: § 190.033, Fla. Stat. 

63 



 

 
 

  

 

        

  

 
       

       
 

Rule 4.0 Effective Date. 

These Rules shall be effective October 16, 2019, except that no election of officers 

required by these Rules shall be required until after the next regular election for the Board. 

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

Law Implemented: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 

64 



 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 

Davenport Road South
Community Development District 

Proposal between the District and VGlobalTech 
for Website Auditing Services 



 

                                                                                                         

    

   
        

   

  
 

 

 

 

 
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

            

           

  

  

 
 

 

 

- -----~ - -

BBB Rating: A+ 

Click for Profile 

Technical & Human Audit Proposal for 
Public Facing Digital Assets (Software, 

Websites & Apps) 
Goal: Ensure full compliance for people with disabilities as per: 

Nondiscrimination 
requirements of 

Title II of 
the American 

Disabilities Act 
(ADA) 

WCAG (Web 
Content 

Accessibility 
Guidelines) 

Section 508 
Stipulations 

Florida 
Insurance 

Alliance / eGIS 
Risk Advisors 

Guidelines 

Read more about details of the above list on VGlobalTech’s website. All ADA requirements 

and information on these topics has been compiled in one place for our clients. 

URL: https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ 

VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation Page 1 of 11 
Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777 | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted 

https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/
mailto:contact@VGlobalTech.com
https://VGlobalTech.com


 

                                                                                                         

    

   
        

   

 
 

  

    

    

    

     

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

     
   

    
 

   
  
 
 
 

  

  

I I 

CERTIFIED ACCESSIBLE 
By Analysts who are • 

Blind & Visually Impaired 

Version Log: 

Date Version# Comments Author 

April 11, 2019 1.0 Technical and Human Audit VB Joshi 

April 12, 2019 1.1 Added 3 Options VB Joshi 

April 12, 2019 1.2 Added compliance process flow VB Joshi 

Your website gets 2 Compliance Seals 
VGlobalTech’s Technical Compliance Seal & Human 

Audit Compliance Seal 

VGlobalTech is the ADA, WCAG Compliance Expert, with over 100 ADA & WCAG 
compliant websites created (….and counting) to-date! We have partnered with a 

non-profit agency to conduct Human Audit and Certification Seal. 

Working together with your company we wish to add social value to the 
community we live in! 

COPYRIGHT ©: This proposal is solely created by VGlobalTech team for its customers and cannot be reproduced, 
copied, modified or distributed (including forwarding to other customers, competitors, web designers etc.) 

without the written consent of VGlobalTech. Any violations shall be prosecuted. 

VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation Page 2 of 11 
Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777 | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted 

mailto:contact@VGlobalTech.com
https://VGlobalTech.com


 

                                                                                                         

    

   
        

   

 

 

 

    

    

     

    

    

    

    

   

    

 

 

  

Table of Contents 

1.0 The Law..........................................................................................................................................................4 

2.0 ADA & WCAG Compliance.......................................................................................................................4 

3.0 Quarterly Technical & Human Audit Testing ..................................................................................5 

3.1 Digital Asset Technical Compliance Seal: .....................................................................................6 

3.2 Human Audit Seal: .................................................................................................................................6 

4.0 Compliance Process Flow: ......................................................................................................................7 

5.0 Pricing Options............................................................................................................................................8 

6.0 Proposal Acceptance:.............................................................................................................................10 

7.0 References: ................................................................................................................................................11 

VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation Page 3 of 11 
Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777 | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted 

mailto:contact@VGlobalTech.com
https://VGlobalTech.com


 

                                                                                                         

    

   
        

   

 

   
 

 
 

 

    
 

   

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
  

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
  

  

  
  

   

1.0 The Law 

Please familiarize your team with the Florida Statute 189.069 Special districts; 
required reporting of information; web-based public access. Source: 
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-
0199/0189/Sections/0189.069.html 

2.0 ADA & WCAG Compliance 

Every individual must have equal access to information whether it is in person service or 
online. This is a general agreement and understanding of access. 

The Internet has dramatically changed the way state and local governments do business. 
Today, government agencies routinely make much more information about their programs, 
activities, and services available to the public by posting it on their websites. As a result, 
many people can easily access this information seven day a week, 24 hours a day. 

Many government services and activities are also provided on websites because the public 
is able to participate in them at any time of day and without the assistance of government 
personnel. Many government websites offer a low cost, quick, and convenient way of filing 
tax returns, paying bills, renewing licenses, signing up for programs, applying for permits or 
funding, submitting job applications, and performing a wide variety of other activities. 

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and, if the government entities receive federal 
funding, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 generally require that state and local governments 
provide qualified individuals with disabilities equal access to their programs, services, or 
activities unless doing so would fundamentally alter the nature of their programs, services, 
or activities or would impose an undue burden. One way to help meet these requirements is 
to ensure that government websites have accessible features for people with disabilities, 
using the simple steps described in this document. An agency with an inaccessible website 
may also meet its legal obligations by providing an alternative accessible way for citizens to 
use the programs or services, such as a staffed telephone information line. These 
alternatives, however, are unlikely to provide an equal degree of access in terms of hours of 
operation and the range of options and programs available. 

The World Wide Web Consortium (W3C) sets the main international standards for the 
World Wide Web and its accessibility. W3C created the Web Content Accessibility 
Guidelines (WCAG 2.0 and 2.1) which are similar to Section 508, but on an international 
level. WCAG 2.0 and 2.1 requires specific techniques for compliance and is more current 
than Section 508. 

Source: https://www.w3.org/WAI/standards-guidelines/wcag/ 

VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation Page 4 of 11 
Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777 | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0189/Sections/0189.069.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0189/Sections/0189.069.html
https://www.w3.org/WAI/standards-guidelines/wcag/
mailto:contact@VGlobalTech.com
https://VGlobalTech.com


 

                                                                                                         

    

   
        

   

 

     
 

  
  

 

   
  

   
  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

   
  

  

~CENTRAL FLORIDA 
Charting a course for living, learn ing, & earning with vision loss 

3.0 Quarterly Technical & Human Audit Testing 

This audit is as per the Florida Insurance Alliance, eGIS Insurance Advisors and 
other insurance guidelines. Please check with your insurance agency for 
specific requirements. Read more here: https://vglobaltech.com/wp-
content/uploads/2019/03/FIA_ADA_Guidelines-2019-2020.pdf 

VGlobalTech team is trained and well aware of ADA and WCAG 2.x Compliance 
guidelines. VGlobalTech has partnered with a local agency for the visually 
impaired – LightHouse Works. LightHouse has developed a unique program for 
digital accessibility that is run by visually impaired personnel that are highly 
skilled in human auditing of websites and software as per the section 508 
stipulations. Read more about our partnership here: 
https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ 

Together we are now able to provide not one but two compliance seals 
for all our customers. Details of the compliance seals are below. 

VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation Page 5 of 11 
Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777 | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted 

https://vglobaltech.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/FIA_ADA_Guidelines-2019-2020.pdf
https://vglobaltech.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/FIA_ADA_Guidelines-2019-2020.pdf
https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/
mailto:contact@VGlobalTech.com
https://VGlobalTech.com


 

                                                                                                         

    

   
        

   

 

      
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

      
       
       

        
       

       
   

    
 

    
 
 

 

 
 
 

    
       

       
     
     

       
         

  
 
 
 

IFIED ACCESSIBLE 
By Analysts who are 

Blind & Visually Impaired • 

3.1 Digital Asset Technical Compliance Seal: 

VGlobalTech in-house technical team shall remediate / test the website / 
software for ADA, WCAG compliance. VGlobalTech’s technical design & 
development team is fully aware of the Americans with Disability Act 
(ADA), Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG), Section 508 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and overall the design principles of a professional, 
accessible, functional and responsive web design. The entire team has taken 
dedicated time and efforts to learn these design principles first hand. Our 
purpose is clear – Universal, Creative Web design that works for 
everyone, everywhere and every time! 

3.2 Human Audit Seal: 

LightHouse Works’ visually impaired personnel shall actually test the website 
for compliance as per the section 508 and ADA requirements. The 
VGlobalTech technical team shall remediate any points discovered by 
LightHouse team and send the site for re-certification. Upon satisfactory 
completion LightHouse shall provide the Human Audit Seal that will be 
specific to the site and the VGlobalTech team shall put the seal on the site. This 
is an added layer of true Human Audit testing that provides full ADA 
compliance. 

VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation Page 6 of 11 
Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777 | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted 

mailto:contact@VGlobalTech.com
https://VGlobalTech.com


 

                                                                                                         

    

   
        

   

  
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  

    
 

Bi.::LIGHTHOUSE 
~CENTRAL FLORIDA 
C horl in9 o course fo r l iving , le arn i n g, & e arning with v is io n loss 

4.0 Compliance Process Flow: 

Discovery 

Technical 
Audit 

WCAG / 
ADA 

Remediaton 

Reporting 

& 

Remediation 

Human 
Audit Seal 

A Partnership with a Social Cause to 
Ensure: 

Full 
Compliance 

Checks 

Technical 
Audit Seal 

Human 
Audit 

Automated 
Testing 

Screen 
Magnifier 

Testing 

Screen 
Reader 
Testing 

 ADA COMPLIANCE 
 WCAG COMPLIANCE 
 SECTION 508 STIPULATIONS 
 FIA / eGIS / OTHER INSURANCE & RISK ADVISERS’ 

COMPLIANCE 
 TECHNICAL COMPLAINCE SEAL 
 HUMAN AUDIT COMPLAINCE SEAL 
 QUARTERLY AUDITS 
 REMEDIATION 
 PEACE OF MIND 

VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation Page 7 of 11 
Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777 | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted 

mailto:contact@VGlobalTech.com
https://VGlobalTech.com


 

                                                                                                         

    

   
        

   

  

 

   

     

  
 

    
  
   
  
  

 

  

     

  
 

    
     
    

  

 

  

     

  
 

   
   

     
 

  

5.0 Pricing Options 

Option 1 (recommended): 

Quarterly Technical & Human Audits: 

$1200 / Four Audits 

 Covers all technical AND human audit aspects as per industry experts 
 Discounted to cover both audits together 
 Compliance seals renewed after every audit 
 Ensure site and new content is in compliance with ALL standards 
 Peace of mind 

Option 2: 

Quarterly Technical Audit Only*: 

$900 / Four Audits 

 Covers only technical aspects of elements, html, css, contrast etc as per WCAG 
 Technical Audit Compliance seal renewed after every audit 
 Does not cover human audit (additional considerations that are subjective to the 

person, assistive technology used etc 

Option 3: 

Quarterly Human Audit Only**: 

$800 / Four Audits 

 Covers only human audit (considerations that are subjective to the person, assistive 
technology used etc conducted in a lab like environment) 

 Human Audit Compliance seal renewed after every audit 

VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation Page 8 of 11 
Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777 | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted 

mailto:contact@VGlobalTech.com
https://VGlobalTech.com


 

                                                                                                         

    

   
        

   

       

         
    

   

          
      

   

      
         

       
       

        
       

     
     

     
         

         
     

          

            
        

          
         

        
           

           
          

      
     

      
       

      
      

             
            

          
       

 
 

This proposal includes following points, stipulations terms and conditions: 

*(1) conference call or in person meetings per month with client to review metrics, results and 
monthly recaps *unless otherwise noted 

* email and phone communication 

*Anything out of the scope of work in the above proposal will be addressed and client will be 
immediately notified. After notification of additional work, a subsequent quote will be provided 
to cover that work. 

*Client is responsible to adhering to timelines as far as information required to complete the 
task is concerned. If timelines are not adhered to and exceed 15 business days past the current 
marketing months, last day, all work will end. A new month with new allocated costs will be 
presented for future work to commence. No refunds and owed work will be due unless 
otherwise agreed upon. An Invoice will be provided once signature approval of this project 
proposal. Payments will be made to VGLOBALTECH 

*Client is responsible for verifying quality of work, providing feedback, verifying that compliance 
has been met as required. VGlobalTech team shall not be responsible for any legal ramifications 
arising from work not done as per external agencies / organizations / associations needs if 
proper feedback is not provided by the customer. VGlobalTech’s work will be in best faith but 
cannot guarantee all compliance / legal needs since we are not the final authority in the ADA or 
WCAG compliance area. VGlobalTech shall not be liable for any legal ramifications arising from 
compliance issues and cannot be held responsible for any legal or other lawsuits. 

Refund Policy: The client may halt work and request for a refund within seven days of the date 
of signing this services agreement by mailing a signed letter to the main address listed on 
www.VGlobalTech.com website. If client requests a refund within seven days of the date of 
signing their agreement they shall be liable to pay for all work completed and will be refunded 
the remaining balance of the initial payment if billable work has not exceeded a charge that 
would be greater than client’s initial payment. If client requests a refund after the seven days 
from the date of the signing of the agreement client is liable to pay for all work completed plus 
an additional 25% of any remaining balance that may still be due. Once line item projects are 
complete no refunds will be issued. Confidentiality: All information between client and service 
provider inclusive of technical and business information relating to proprietary ideas, 
patentable ideas and/or trade secrets, existing and/or contemplated products and services, 
research and development, production, costs, profit and margin information, finances and 
financial projections, customers, clients, marketing, and current or future business plans and 
models, regardless of whether such information is designated as “Confidential Information” at 
the time of its disclosure and will be treated as such and with absolute confidentiality and will 
not be shared or used, which will be maintained at all times. The client is not allowed to disclose 
their price with any third parties. Doing so is in breach of this agreement. All information 
development will be shared and proprietary information and property between client and 
service providers. 

VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation Page 9 of 11 
Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777 | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted 

http://www.vglobaltech.com/
mailto:contact@VGlobalTech.com
https://VGlobalTech.com


 

                                                                                                          

    

   
        

   

 

  
 
 

           
 

 

         
         

 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
     

                                         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           

           
 

  

6.0 Proposal Acceptance: 

To accept these project, associated costs and conditions as listed above please sign and date 
below. 

The VGlobalTech proposed solution and terms have been accepted by the customer and the 
VGlobalTech team can proceed with the project. All payments shall be made according to this 
agreement. 

Please Sign and Date, Return to contact@vglobaltech.com: 

For Customer Date 

VB Joshi 

For VGlobalTech Date 

VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation Page 10 of 11 
Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777 | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted 

mailto:contact@VGlobalTech.com
https://VGlobalTech.com
mailto:contact@vglobaltech.com


 

                                                                                                          

    

   
        

   

 

  
 

       
 

 

   
 

 

   

 

   

 

     
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BBB Rating: A+ 

Click for Profile 

7.0 References: 

ADA Best Practices Tool Kit for State and Local Governments: 
https://www.ada.gov/pcatoolkit/chap5toolkit.htm 

U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Disability Rights Section 
https://www.ada.gov/websites2.htm 

Web design Standards: https://www.w3schools.com/ 

Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) https://www.w3.org/TR/WCAG21/ 

VGlobalTech Web Content Accessibility Implementation and Checkpoints: 
http://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ 

Contact Information: 

Website: https://vglobaltech.com 

Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 

Call: 321-947-7777 

VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation Page 11 of 11 
Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777 | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted 

https://www.ada.gov/pcatoolkit/chap5toolkit.htm
https://www.ada.gov/websites2.htm
https://www.w3schools.com/
https://www.w3.org/TR/WCAG21/
http://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/
https://vglobaltech.com/
mailto:contact@VGlobalTech.com
mailto:contact@VGlobalTech.com
https://VGlobalTech.com


  
 

 
   

Davenport Road South
Community Development District 

Agreement between the District and VGlobalTech 
for Website Auditing Services 



 

  
 

 
 

    
 

    

  

    
 

 

 

   
 

  
  

   
      

   
   

  
  

  
 

     
   

  
  

   

 

   
   

   

   
   

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND NEWAGETUTORS LLC, D/B/A 

VGLOBALTECH, FOR WEBSITE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is entered into as of this ____ day of October, 2019, 
by and between: 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of 
special-purpose government, established and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes, with a mailing address of 12051 Corporate Boulevard, Orlando, 
Florida 32817 (the "District"), and 

NEWAGETUTORS LLC, D/B/A VGLOBALTECH, a Florida limited liability 
company, with a mailing address of 636 Fanning Drive, Winter Springs, Florida 
32708 ("Contractor"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government, created and existing 
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 189.069, Florida Statutes, the District must maintain an 
official website containing, at minimum, the statutorily required information (“Website”); and 

WHEREAS, the District has a need to obtain a qualified independent contractor to perform 
audits of the Website to ensure compliance with the accessibility requirements of Title II of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) based on federally recommended ADA best practices 
for state and local governments as promulgated by federal law and rulemaking, including but not 
limited to Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.0 and 2.1 Level AA, as the same may be 
amended and updated from time to time (as amended and updated from time to time, “WCAG”), 
and to remediate or otherwise convert the Website and to routinely audit the same to ensure 
continued compliance with the WCAG, and to perform ongoing maintenance of the website, all as 
more particularly described herein and in the proposal attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a 
part herein (together, the “Services”); and 

WHEREAS, Contractor represents and warrants to the District that it is qualified, willing 
and capable of providing the Services; and 

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor desire to enter into this Agreement for the purposes 
stated herein and the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power and 
authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the parties, the parties agree as follows: 

Section 1. RECITALS. The recitals stated above are true and correct and by this 
reference are incorporated herein and form a material part of this Agreement. 



 

   
  

  
 

 
   

  
  

 
   

  

 
 

 
 

   

  
  

   
  

 
 

  
   

  
 

  

     
  

 
  

 
 

Section 2. SCOPE OF WORK. Contractor shall provide Services in accordance with the 
terms provided in this Agreement and in Exhibit A. Specifically, Services include the following: 

A. MAINTENANCE. Contractor shall provide an ongoing maintenance of the Website 
to ensure continued compliance with WCAG. Specifically, Contractor shall: 

i. perform quarterly technological and human audits (four times per year) per 
the Florida Insurance Alliance guidelines, which may be amended or updated from 
time to time, and provide full audit reports of compliance status, including 
recommended actions to remedy the findings, if any. Performance of audits shall 
be conducted by Contractor and its subcontractor, as may be necessary; 

ii. remediate any insufficiencies found as a result of technological and human 
audits, including but not limited to performing full compliance checks, automated 
testing, screen magnifier and reader testing; 

iii. provide Contractor’s ADA compliance shield(s), such as the Digital Asset 
Technical Compliance Seal and the Human Audit Seal, which shall renew on a 
quarterly basis, for display and use on the Website; 

iv. ensure that the Website and any new content uploaded to the Website is 
compliant with WCAG and other federally recommended guidelines; and 

v. provide all Services described in Exhibit A and any and all other effort 
reasonably necessary to allow the District to receive the maximum benefit of the 
Services contemplated by this Agreement and Exhibit A. 

The District and Contractor understand and acknowledge that the Services are in addition to 
Contractor’s previously provided remediation services, which included the conversion of the 
Website into an ADA compliant format in accordance with WCAG and other federally 
recommended guidelines, as may be amended from time to time, and continued provision of 
website accessibility policy demonstrating commitment to accessibility for persons with 
disabilities.  Furthermore, the District and Contractor understand and agree that maintenance 
services provided in this Section are in addition to any other maintenance service obligations 
Contractor may have, either directly with the District or with PFM Group Consulting LLC, 
including but not limited to providing assistive support via regularly corresponding with the 
District staff regarding remediation of existing or new documents, providing updates to the 
Website, remediating new documents identified by the District to accessible formats for assistive 
technologies, including but not limited to new agenda materials, and providing recommendations 
of remedial actions, as needed. 

B. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. In the event the District desires additional work or 
services provided in this subsection or otherwise, Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to 
undertake such additional work or services.  Upon successful negotiation regarding the terms of 
the additional work, including scope and compensation, the parties shall agree in writing to a work 
order, addendum, addenda, or change order to this Agreement prior to commencement of any such 
additional work.  The following is a non-exhaustive list of possible additional services that the 
District may request of Contractor: 

2 



  

   

   
 

  

   
 

  
   

 
 

   
  

   
   

       

    
   

 
 

  
    

 

  

  

     
 

 

 

  
   

 
 

  
    

  

i. performing additional technological and human audit(s) of the Website; 

ii. providing a point of contact to respond to public’s requests for Website 
accommodation; 

iii. converting documents for public records requests received by the District; 

iv. providing any other ADA recommended compliance services requested by 
the District that Contractor is capable of performing. 

C. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, manner and methods by which 
its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District and in 
accordance with this Agreement.  Contractor shall use industry best practices and procedures when 
carrying out the Services. 

Section 3. COMPENSATION.  As compensation for the Services, the District agrees to 
pay Contractor in accordance with the following terms: 

A. MAINTENANCE. For Contractor’s performance of the Services, the District shall 
pay One Thousand Two Hundred Dollars ($1,200.00) per year, payable in quarterly installments 
of Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00) after each quarterly audit event has been completed. 

B. INVOICES; PAYMENT. Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual 
accounting practices. Further, Contractor shall render each invoice to the District in writing, which 
shall be delivered promptly upon completion of each Service.  Each invoice shall contain, at a 
minimum, the District’s name, Contractor’s name, the invoice date, an invoice number, an 
itemized listing of all costs billed on each invoice with a sufficient description of each allowing 
the District to approve each cost, the time frame within which the Services were provided, and the 
address or bank information to which payment is to be remitted.  Consistent with Florida’s Prompt 
Payment Act, section 218.70, et al., Florida Statutes, the invoices shall be due and payable within 
forty-five (45) days of receipt by the District. 

Section 4. TERM AND TERMINATION. 

A. TERM.  This Agreement shall become effective upon the date and year first written 
above and shall be in effect until terminated by either party in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

B. TERMINATION.  The District agrees that Contractor may terminate this Agreement 
for cause by providing sixty (60) days’ written notice of termination to the District; provided, 
however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this 
Agreement.  Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement immediately for 
cause by providing written notice of termination to Contractor. Contractor agrees that the District 
may terminate this Agreement without cause; provided that the District shall provide thirty (30) 
days’ written notice of termination without cause.  Upon any termination of this Agreement, 
Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all Services rendered up until the effective termination 
of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or offsets the District may have against Contractor 
as the sole means of recovery for termination. 

3 

https://1,200.00


  

     
   

 
  

 
 

    
 

 
  

  

  
 

   
   

     
 
 

   
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

     
 

   
  

 
   

     
   

   
  

  
   

 
 

  
 

Section 5. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS. Contractor 
represents, warrants, and covenants that (a) the Services will conform to the requirements provided 
in Section 2 herein and Exhibit A; (b) the Services shall be performed by qualified personnel in a 
professional, prompt, diligent, good, safe and workmanlike manner in accordance with all laws, 
industry standards, and all applicable ADA and other website accessibility compliance standards, 
including but not limited to WCAG and other federally recommended guidelines, as may be 
amended from time to time; and (c) neither the Services nor any product provided by Contractor 
shall infringe, misappropriate, or otherwise violate the intellectual property rights of any third-
party.  To the extent that any defects are found and reported to the Contractor, the Contractor shall 
correct such defects within thirty (30) days. 

Section 6. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY. 

A. CONTRACTOR MATERIALS. Except as provided herein, Contractor shall retain all 
right, title, and interest in and to (i) all patents, trademarks, service marks, copyrights, and other 
intellectual property or proprietary rights of Contractor used in or otherwise associated with the 
Services, and other materials provided to the District hereunder; and (ii) all trade secrets, technical 
specifications and data to the extent they are intellectual property, and inventions which are 
authored, conceived, devised, developed, reduced to practice, or otherwise performed by 
Contractor which arise out of Contractor’s performance of the Services, none of which shall be 
deemed a "work made for hire" under the Copyright Act of 1976 (collectively, "Contractor 
Materials"), and nothing contained herein shall be construed to restrict, impair, transfer, license, 
convey, or otherwise alter or deprive Contractor of any of its intellectual property and proprietary 
interests associated therewith. Subject to the foregoing, Contractor grants to the District a non-
exclusive, non-transferable worldwide perpetual limited right and license to access and use the 
Contractor Materials in connection with the ordinary and intended use by the District as 
contemplated in this Agreement, including viewing, downloading and printing the Contractor 
Materials for the District’s use, and without in any case removing Contractor’s copyright, 
trademark or other intellectual property ownership notices. 

B. THE DISTRICT MATERIALS; PUBLICITY AND TRADEMARKS. The District shall 
own the Website, domain name, all e-mail addresses, and all website and e-mail content, under all 
circumstances.  In the event of a termination of this Agreement for any reason, Contractor shall 
take all necessary steps to transfer, or otherwise allow the District to retain, such website, domain 
name, e-mail addresses and content of the same.  Additionally, to the extent applicable, Contractor 
shall take commercially reasonable precautions consistent with industry standards to protect 
confidential information, including, e.g., credit card information and other sensitive information 
protected under Florida’s Public Records Laws. Contractor shall immediately notify the District 
of any breach or loss of data, and take such steps as are reasonably necessary to address any such 
issue.  Except as provided herein, the District shall retain all right, title, and interest in and to all 
intellectual property of the District provided or made available to the Contractor in connection 
with Contractor’s Services (collectively, "District Materials") and nothing contained herein shall 
be construed to restrict, impair, transfer, license, convey, or otherwise alter or deprive the District 
of any of its intellectual property or other proprietary interests associated therewith, if any.  Subject 
to the foregoing, the District grants to Contractor a non-exclusive, non-transferable worldwide 
limited right and license to access and use such District Materials in connection with the provision 
of the Services as contemplated by this Agreement.  Further, the District permits Contractor to 

4 



  

    
 

  

 
  

 
  

   
   

   

     
   

  
   

  
 
 

  

   
  

 
 

  
  

  
    

  
   

 
    

  

 
 

   
 

 

  
 

identify the District as a customer of Contractor in Contractor’s marketing materials (including 
using the District’s name and logo for such limited purposes). 

The District further acknowledges and agrees that for Contractor to perform the Services, 
it must, in some cases, give Contractor remote access to areas behind log-ins that are to be audited 
hereunder, including, without limitation to content management systems and/or servers 
(collectively, “System”), and agrees that it will furnish to Contractor all necessary information 
and/or user names and passwords required to do so. Contractor agrees to follow commercially 
reasonable security policies for accessing the District’s System including any specific security 
procedures as may be communicated to Contractor by the District prior to Contractor accessing 
the System. Contractor shall on its own or through coordination with the District’s Website 
provider, create a back-up copy of all data that may be affected by Contractor’s access to the 
System. 

C. RIGHT TO DISPLAY CONTRACTOR’S COMPLIANCE SHIELD / ACCESSIBILITY 
POLICY. Pursuant to this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the District with applicable 
Compliance Shield(s) and customized accessibility policy, which the District shall display on its 
Websites and web applications.  The District is expressly prohibited from using the compliance 
shield(s) for any purpose not specifically authorized by this Agreement, and in no event may use 
such compliance shields for or on behalf of any other party or in connection with any domain name 
and/or organization name other than those being scanned or serviced in connection with the 
Services. 

Section 7. PUBLIC RECORDS. Contractor understands and agrees that all documents 
or on-line content of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be 
public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of 
Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to section 119.0701, Florida 
Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District 
is Victoria Martinez (“Public Records Custodian”).  Among other requirements and to the extent 
applicable by law, Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to 
perform the Work; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the 
requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time 
period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure 
that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term 
and following the contract term if Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public Records 
Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no 
cost, all public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all 
applicable requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws.  When such public 
records are transferred by Contractor, Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that 
are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.  All records 
stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft 
Word or Adobe PDF formats.  

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 

5 



  

  
 

  
 

 

  

   
   

  
  

  
 

     
  

 
  

 
    
   

     
    

  
  

   
 

    
  

 

  
 

 

   
 

  
     

    
  

  
    

    

 

CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (407) 723-5900, 
MARTINEZV@PFM.COM, OR AT 12051 CORPORATE 
BOULEVARD, ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32817. 

Section 8. INDEMNITY. 

A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 
officers, agents, staff, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or representatives from 
any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, interest, expenses, damages, 
penalties, fines, or judgments against the District, or loss or damage, whether monetary or 
otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in connection with the Services to be performed 
by Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents (including, but not limited to 
Lighthouse Central Florida, Inc., or any other company or individual performing human audits as 
required by Section 2 of this Agreement) in connection with this Agreement, including litigation, 
mediation, arbitration, appellate, or settlement proceedings with respect thereto. This specifically 
includes a lawsuit based on lack of ADA compliance or other website compliance insufficiencies. 
Additionally, nothing in this Agreement requires Contractor to indemnify the District for the 
District’s percentage of fault if the District is adjudged to be more than 50% at fault for any claims 
against the District and Contractor as jointly liable parties; however, Contractor shall indemnify 
the District for any and all percentage of fault attributable to Contractor for claims against the 
District, regardless of whether the District is adjudged to be more or less than 50% at fault. 
Contractor further agrees that nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the 
District's limitations on liability contained in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute. 

B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, 
judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, fines, forfeitures, back pay awards, court 
costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, reasonable attorneys’ fees, paralegal 
fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings), and any interest 
accrued against the District, all as actually incurred. 

C. In the event that Contractor assigns its obligations under this Agreement to a third 
party, Contractor acknowledges and agrees that Contractor shall require such third party to provide 
indemnification to the District consistent with the requirements of this Section 8 

Section 9. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES STATEMENT. Contractor certifies that it is not 
in violation of section 287.135, Florida Statutes, and is not prohibited from doing business with 
the District under Florida law, including but not limited to Scrutinized Companies with Activities 
in Sudan List or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List. 
If Contractor is found to have submitted a false statement, has been placed on the Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran 
Petroleum Energy Sector List, or has been engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria, or is 
now or in the future on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, or engaged in a boycott 
of Israel, the District may immediately terminate the Contract. 

6 

mailto:MARTINEZV@PFM.COM


  

   

   
     

  
 

 

   
    

 
 

   
   

  
  

 

   
  

 
 

 

    
 
 

  
 

  
     

   
    

     
  

    
     

   

 
 

   
  

  
 

Section 10. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

A. CONFLICTS. The terms of this Agreement and Exhibit A are intended to 
complement each other, and to the extent they conflict, the terms of Exhibit A shall control only 
to the extent that such provisions provide clarifications on Services and materials to be provided 
by Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A; in all other respects, the provisions of this Agreement shall 
control. 

B. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by 
the appropriate body or official of the District and Contractor, both the District and Contractor 
have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and Contractor have full 
power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement. 

C. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is understood and agreed that at all times the 
relationship of Contractor and its employees, agents, successors, assigns or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by Contractor to the District is the relationship of an independent contractor 
and not that of an employee, agent, joint-venturer, or partner of the District.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of employer 
and employee between the District and Contractor or any of its employees, agents, successors, 
assigns or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor.  The parties acknowledge that 
Contractor is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes.  Contractor shall hire and pay all 
of Contractor’s or its employees, agents, successors, assigns or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by Contractor, all of whom shall be employees of Contractor and not employees of the 
District and at all times entirely under Contractor’s supervision, direction, and control. 

In particular, the District will not: i) withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor’s 
payments; ii) make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on Contractor’s behalf; 
iii) withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor; iv) make disability insurance 
contributions on behalf of Contractor; or v) obtain workers’ compensation insurance on behalf of 
Contractor. 

D. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Before initiating any legal claim or action (except with 
respect to equitable relief), the parties agree to attempt in good faith to settle any dispute, 
controversy, or claim arising out of or related to this Agreement or the Services (collectively, 
"Dispute") through discussions which shall be initiated upon written notice of a Dispute by either 
party to the other. If the parties cannot resolve the Dispute within ten (10) business days, then the 
parties shall attempt to settle the Dispute by mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the parties 
may then proceed to filing a claim in the appropriate jurisdictional court in accordance with this 
Agreement. In the event that either party is required to enforce this Agreement by court 
proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the substantially prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
paralegal fees, expert witness fees, and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate 
proceedings. 

E. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida without reference to the principles of 
conflict of laws.  Except for actions seeking injunctive relief (which may be brought in any 
appropriate jurisdiction), suits under this agreement shall only be brought in a court of competent 

7 



  

  
  

  
    

  
 

   
   

     

     
  

     
 

    
 

   
  

 
 

 

   
 

   
   

  
  

   
  

   

   
  

 
    

  

     
       

         
      

       
        

jurisdiction in the county of Polk, Florida. This choice of venue is intended by the parties to be 
mandatory and not permissive in nature, and to preclude the possibility of litigation between the 
parties with respect to, or arising out of, this Agreement in any jurisdiction other than that specified 
in this section.  The District and Contractor waive any right they may have to assert the doctrine 
of forum non conveniens or similar doctrine, or to object to venue with respect to any proceeding 
brought in accordance with this Section. 

F. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall 
be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory limited 
waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature 
in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to 
the benefit of any third-party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be 
barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law. 

G. THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the 
District and Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason to or for the 
benefit of any third-party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation 
other than the District and Contractor any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this 
Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, 
representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole 
benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and Contractor and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns. 

H. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD-PARTY INTERFERENCE. A default 
by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law or in 
equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of actual damages and/or specific 
performance.  The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this Agreement 
against any interfering third-party.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair the 
District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third-party to this Agreement. 

I. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents, and other communications under this 
Agreement (“Notice” or “Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by Overnight 
Delivery or First Class Mail, postage prepaid, to the parties, as follows: 

If to Contractor: NewAgeTutors LLC 
d/b/a VGlobalTech 
636 Fanning Drive 
Winter Springs, Florida 32708 
Attn: Vaibhav V. Joshi 

If to District: Davenport Road South Community Development District 
12051 Corporate Boulevard. 
Orlando, Florida 32817 
Attn:  District Manager 

With a copy to: Hopping Green & Sams PA 
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 

8 



  

         
     

  
  

  
 
 

   
   

 
   

   

     
  

 
    

  

    
  

 

  
 

 

   
 

    
    

  
  

 

   
 

 
 

    
  

   
 

    

Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Attn:  District Counsel 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon 
actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of 
delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any time 
for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, the 
Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and legal 
holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days. 
Counsel for the District and counsel for Contractor may deliver Notice on behalf of the District 
and Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent 
by providing the same on five (5) days’ written notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein. 

J. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, together with Exhibit A, sets forth the 
entire agreement of the parties, and supersedes any prior agreements or statements with respect to 
the subject matter hereof.  No provision of this Agreement may be amended, waived or modified 
unless the same is set forth in writing and signed by each of the Parties to this Agreement, or their 
respective successors or assigns. 

K. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 
of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 

L. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor Contractor may assign this Agreement 
without the prior written consent of the other.  Any purported assignment without such consent 
shall be null and void. 

M. AMENDMENTS. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written 
instrument duly executed by both parties.  

N. FORCE MAJEURE. If either party is prevented from performing any of its 
obligations under this Agreement due to any cause beyond the party's reasonable control, 
including, without limitations, an “act of God,” fire, flood, war, strike, government regulation, 
civil or military authority, acts or omissions of transmitters, utilities, providers or hackers, the time 
for that party's performance will be extended for the period of the delay or inability to perform due 
to such occurrence. 

O. SURVIVAL. In addition to such other provisions hereof which, by their terms, 
survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement, Section 5 (Representations, Warranties 
and Covenants), Section 6 (Intellectual Property), Section 7 (Public Records), Section 8 
(Indemnity), and Section 10 (General Provisions) shall survive any termination or expiration of 
this Agreement. 

P. WAIVER.  No breach of any term of this Agreement shall be deemed waived unless 
expressly waived in writing by the party who might assert such breach.  Any failure or delay by 
either party to exercise any right, power, or privilege under this Agreement shall not be deemed a 
waiver of any such right, power, or privilege under this Agreement on that or any subsequent 
occasion. Any waiver by either party, whether express or implied, of any provision of this 

9 



  

    
 

 

   
 
 

   
 

  
    

     
 
 

 

     
 

 

 

  

Agreement, any waiver of default, or any course of dealing hereunder, shall not affect such party’s 
right to thereafter enforce such provision or to exercise any right or remedy in the event of any 
other default or breach, whether or not similar. 

Q. COUNTERPARTS. This instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, and such counterparts 
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgement pages, if 
any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document to 
physically form one document. 

R. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the parties as an arm’s length transaction. Both parties participated fully in the preparation 
of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In case of a Dispute concerning the 
interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, both parties are deemed to have drafted, chosen, 
and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against 
either party. 

S. DESCRIPTIVE HEADINGS. The descriptive headings in this Agreement are for 
convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction of any of the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

[Signatures on next page] 

10 



  

  
     

  
 

 
 
    
 

   
       

       
        
     

 
  

    
      
      
 

   
        

 
 

  
      
  

__________________________________ ____________________________________ 

__________________________________ ____________________________________ 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have, by their duly authorized representatives, executed 
this Agreement as of the date and year first set forth above. 

ATTEST: DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

Secretary Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

WITNESS: NEWAGETUTORS LLC, D/B/A 
VGLOBALTECH, a Florida limited 
liability company 

Print Name: By: Vaibhav V. Joshi, Owner 

Exhibit A: Proposal for Services 

11 



 

 

 

 
  

Ci d: fo r Profil~ 

Technical & Human Audit Proposal for 
Public Facing Digital Assets (Software, 

Websites & Apps) 
Goal: Ensure f ull complia nce for pe ople w ith d isa b ilit ie s a s pe r: 

Nondiscrh11ination 
reg11ire111ent.s of 

Title II of 
the Ame1ican 

Disab ilities Act 
(ADA) 

WCAG(Weh 
Content 

Accessibility 
Guidelines) 

Section sos 
Stipulations 

Florida 
Insurance 

Alliance / eGIS 
Risk Advisors 

Guidelines 

Read more about details of the above list on VGlobalTech's website. All ADA requirements 

and information on these topics has been compiled in one place for our dients. 

URL: https: //vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ 

VGlobalTech.com - ~~JnnO'o'ofion Page 1 of 11 
Your stro teg:ic partn er for Web Desig n. Software, Marketing , o nd SEO solutions. 

Co ll: 321-947-7777 I Email; con toct@YGlobolTech.com 
Privote and Confidet1fiol Oocvrnent. No port o f th~ document ~ha ll be ptOdvced, ~eri.1, c opied to Ortf porfie~ it fa not inte nded for.ff is 

in.~ nded for ~ enh~ (::cied dearly on In: piopo~I. Any distribufionwthovt wn1tc n con~ ~ d i be p,ocec,,,rk.d 

Exhibit A 

Proposal for Service 

12 



 

 
  

e rsion Loe: 

Date Version# Comments Author 

April 11, 2019 1.0 Techrical and Human Audrt YB Josh i 
Anril 12 2019 1.1 Added 3 Ontions VB Joshi 
April 12, 2019 1.2 Added compliance process f low YB Joshi 

Your website gets 2 Compliance Seals 
VGlobalTech's Technical Compliance Seal & Human 

Audit Compliance Seal 

CERTIFIED ACCESSIBLE 
By Analysts who are 

Blind & Visually Impaired 

VGlobalTech is the ADA, WCAG Compliance Expert, with over 100 ADA & WCAG 
compliant websites created ( .... and countinc) to-date! We have partnered with a 

non-profit acency to conduct Human Audit and Certification Seal. 

Workinc tocether with your company we wish to add social value to the 
community we live in! 

COPYRIGHT @: This proposal is solely « eated by VGloba.rTech team for i ts customers an d can.not be reproduced.. 
copied, modified o r d istrib uted (ind uding forward ing to other customers, competitors, web designers etc.) 

without the w ritten consent of VGloba.lTech, Any violations shall b e prosecuted. 

VGlobolTech.c o m ~&.pu.enocJnnO"o"ofion Poge 2of 11 
Yo ur stra tegic portn et' for Web Desig n. foftwore, Morteting , o nd SEO solutions. 

Coll: 321 •947-7777 I Emo:il; con toct@VGlo b o lTech.c om 
Privote and Confidenfiol Document. No port o f thi: document ~hal!be produced, ~ent, c:opied to OfYf porfie~ ii fa not inte rded for. ff is 

in.hncl=-d for !he enhlie (~ ~d ckally on Ins piopa~I. Art) di:tribufionwthovt wn1tcn con~ ~ d i be p,oc~d 

13 



 

 
  

of Contents 

1.0 The Law .......................................................................................................................................................... 4 

2.0 ADA & WCAG Compliance ....................................................................................................................... 4 

3.0 Quarterly Technical & Human Audit Testing .................................................................................. S 

3.1 Digital Asset Technical Compliance Seal: ..................................................................................... 6 

3.2 Human Audit Seal: ................................................................................................................................. 6 

4.0 Compliance Process Flow: ...................................................................................................................... 7 

5.0 P1icing Options ............................................................................................................................................ 8 

6.0 Proposal Acceptance: ............................................................................................................................. 10 

7.0 References· ................................................................................................................................................ 11 

VG lobolTec h.c om~&.pe.~lnnovotion Poge 3oi 11 
Your stro te,gic p a rtner fot We'o Desig n. So ftwa re, Ma rketing, a nd SEO solutions. 

C o ll: 321-947-7777 I Emoi1:con toct@VGlobolTec h.c om 
Privol'e end Confidentio1 Oocv= t. Ho port o,f thi: docvmenf :hell ~ pfOduced, ~e-n t, copied to CJ'tf porf..e: it i~ not infe-nded for. ff i: 

iniendoed for ~he enh~ l :~ed decriy on ~hi: p 10po~ . Any di:ffibufionwthovt wn1t<en cot'l~er.i ~hd l be procecvied 

14 



 

 
  

.0 The Law 

Please familia1ize your team with the Florida Statute 189.069 Special dist1icts; 
required reporting of information; web-based public access. Source: 
http:/ /www.leg.state.tl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-
0199/ 0189/ Sections/0189.069.html 

2.0 ADA & WCAG Compliance 

Eve1y individual must have equal access to info1111ation whether it is in person service or 
online. This is a general agreement and understanding of access. 

The lntemet has dramatically changed the way state and local govemments do business. 
Today, govemment agencies routinely make much more information about their programs, 
activities, and services available to the public by posting it on their websites. As a result, 
many people can easily access this information seven day a week. 24 hours a day. 

Many govemment services and activities are also provided on websites because the public 
is able to pa1ticipate in them at any time of day and without the assistance of government 
personnel. Many govemment websites offer a low cost qttick. and convenient way of filing 
tax retum s, paying bills, renewing licenses, signing up for progran1s, applying for pe1111its or 
ftmding, submitting job applications, and pe1fo1111ing a wide va1iety of other activities. 

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and, if the govemment entities receive federal 
fonding, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 generally require that state and local govemments 
provide qualified individuals with disabilities equal access to their programs, services, or 
activities unless doing so would ftmdamentally alter the nature of their programs, services, 
or activities or would impose an undue btu-den. One way to help meet these req1tirements is 
to enstu·e that government websites have accessible features for people with disabilities, 
using the simple steps desCiibed in this document. An agency with an inaccessible website 
may also meet its legal obligations by providing an altemative accessible way for citizens to 
use the programs or services, such as a staffed telephone infonnation line. These 
altematives, however, are unlikely to provide an equal degree of access in terms of hours of 
operation and the range of options and programs available. 

The World Wide Web Conso1tium (W3C) sets the main intem ational standards for the 
World Wide Web and its accessibility. W3C created the Web Content Accessibility 
Guidelines (WCAG 2 .. 0 and 2 .. 1) which are similar to Section 508, but on an international 
level. WCAG 2.0 and 2.1 reqttires specifictechrtiques for compliance and is more current 
than Section 508. 

Source: https://www.w3.org/WA1/standards-guidelines/wcag/ 

VG lobalT ech.c om .... ~ rien~ J.rr.ovotion Poge 4 oi I 1 
Your strote,gic pa rtner for Web Desig n. Softwa re, Ma rketing, a nd SEO solutions. 

C oll: 321-947-7777 I Emoi1:contoct@VG lobolTech.c om 
Privore end Confidenfiol Docvn-.ent. No port oJ thi: docvmen! :hell be produced, :e.nt, c opied to Cfff porfie: a i: r.ot int-<ended for. (t i: 

intcnd-ed for h enh~ l:~ed dearly on !ti: propo:ol. Any dfatribufionwthovt wn1te-n cot'!:~ :hd l be procecvted 

1 

15 



 

 
  

.0 Quarterly Technica l & Human Audit Testine 

This audit is as per the Florida Insurance Alliance, eGIS Insurance Advisors and 
other insurance guidelines. Please check with your insurance agency for 
specific requirements. Read more here: https://vglob altech.com/ wp· 
content/ up loads / 2 019 / 03 / FIA_ADA_ Guid elines-201 9-2020 .pdf 

VGlobalTech team is trained and well aware of ADA and WCAG 2.x Compliance 
guidelines. VGlobalTech has partnered with a local agency for the visually 
impaired - LightHouse Works. LightHouse has developed a unique program for 
digital accessibility that is nm by visually impaired personnel that are highly 
skilled in human auditing of websites and software as per the section 508 
stipulations. Read more about our partnership here: 
b ttps://vglob altech.com/ web site•compliance/ 

l.'£c::LIGHTHOUSE 
~CENTRAL FLORIDA 

Together we are now able to p rovide not one b ut two complia nce seals 
for all our cust omers. Details oftbe compliance seals are below. 

VG lobolTec h.com~&.pe.~lnnovotion Poges oi 11 
Yo ur stro te,gic partner fot We'o Desig n. Softwa re, Marketing , a nd SEO solutions. 

Coll: 321-947-7777 I Emo i1:con toct@VGlobolTec h.com 
Privol'e end Confidentio1 Oocv= t. Ho port o,f thi: docvmenf :hell ~ pfOduced, ~e-n t, copied to CJ'tf porf..e: it i~ not infe-nded for. ff i: 

iniendoed for ~he enh~ l :~ed decriy on ~hi: p10po~ . Any di:ffibufionwthovt wn1t<en cot'l~er.i ~hd l be procecvied 

3 

16 



 

 
  

Dieital Asset Technical Compliance Seal: 

VGlobalTech in-house technical team shall remediate / test the website / 
software for ADA, WCAG compliance. VGlobalTech's technical design & 
development team is fully aware of the Americans with Disability Act 
(ADA), Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG), Section 508 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and overall the design principles of a professional, 
accessible, functional and responsive web design. The entire team has taken 
dedicated time and efforts to learn these design principles first hand. Our 
purpose is clear - Universal, Creative Web design that works for 
everyone, everywhere a nd every time! 

3.2 Human Audit Seal: 

CERTIFIED ACCESSIBLE 
By Analysts who are 

Blind & Visually Impaired 

LightHouse Works' visually impaired personnel shall actually test the website 
for compliance as per the section 508 and ADA requirements. The 
VGlobalTech technical team shall remediate any points discovered by 
LightHouse team and send the site for re-certification. Upon satisfactory 
completion LightHouse shall provide the Human Audit Seal that will be 
specific to the site and the VGlobalTech team shall put the seal on the site. This 
is an added layer of true Human Audit testing that provides full ADA 
compliance. 

VG lo b a lTe c h.c om ~&.pe.-ienoc-JnnO"o"ation Poge, of 11 
Your stra tegic p a rtn er for Web Design. Software, Morteting , o nd SEO solutions. 

Co ll: 321-947-7777 I Emoi1; c o n toct@VGlobolTe c h.c om 
Privok and Confid~ fiol Oocu- t. No port of th"e docvment ~hall be ptOduced, ~d'lt, c:opied to ON( portic: iii: not ir,tcnded for. (t i: 

in.tended for !he enh~ (,:ied dearly on Hi: p iopo~I. Arvy d~hibufion \Whovt wn1te n con~ ffld l be p,ocecvled 

17 



 

 
  

Reader 
Testing 

4.0 Compliance Process Flow: 

Screen 
Magnifier 
Testing 

Technical 
Audit 

&:.:: LIGHTHOUSE 
~ C ENTRAL FLORIDA 
Cho,11"1111<0-(o,1>,llla.i...•-11, &-~~.,.;,1,,.1,~l,oo, 

A Partnership with a Social Cause to 
Ensure: 

✓ ADA COMPLIANCE 
✓ WCAG COMPLIANCE 
✓ SECTION 508 STIPULATIONS 
✓ FIA/ eGIS / OTHER INSURANCE & RISK ADVISERS' 

COMPLIANCE 
✓ TECHNICAL COMPLAINCE SEAL 
✓ HUMAN AUDIT COMPLAINCE SEAL 
✓ QUARTERLY AUDITS 
✓ REMEDIATION 
✓ PEACE OF MIND 

Automated 
Testing ~ 

VGlobolTech.com ~&pe.-/- JnnO'o'ofion Poge 7 of 11 
Your stro tegic partn et' for Web Desig n" Software, Marteting , a nd SEO solutions. 

Co ll: 321 •947-7777 I Emo:ill: con toct@VGlobolTech.com 
Privote or,d Confidenfiol Oocvment. No port o f fh"e document ~h,oll be produced, ~eri.t, copied to OfYf porfie~ iii~ not ir,te nded for. [I i: 

in.h-nd=-d for !he enhlie (::!c-d ckolly on Ins piopo~l. Arvy didribufionwthovt wn1tc n con~ ~ d i be p,oc~d 

18 



 

 

1 (recommended): 
Quarterly Technical & Human Audits: 
$1200 / Four Audits 

✓ Covers all technical AND human audit aspects as per industty experts 
✓ Discounted to cover both audits together 
✓ Compliance seals renewed after every audit 
✓ Ensure site and new content is in compliance with ALL standards 
✓ Peace of mind 

19 



  
 

 
 

Davenport Road South
Community Development District 

Lease Agreement between the District and 
Navitas for Shade Structure 



# 406 1 8200 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTHCOMMUNITY 
BORROWER: DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT OBA FederaI Tax ID# 30-096J309 

'"E-,qu_lp_mt_n_l""0ts--c-ripll_on_/0"'"u-■-n...,.tlty-/s.-r1■-11-,,.,.Vl"'N#,.,,-------------, 

I} PlAYGROUND EOUPMENT PER SCHEDULE "A. 

Equlpmont Location /i'difkrM than obow odd=) 

au, ORCHID GROVE BLVD DAVENPORT FL 33837 

..,_....~b11jq,/'a ')a,') 

"AV IT At ca1ou coaP. Address: 12051 CORPORATE BLVD Cily· ORLANDO Stale FL Zip 32817 Phone (407}382-3256 
LEGACY CONSTRUCTION SERVICES GROUP 

SECURED PARTY/ LENDER: NAVITAS CREDIT CORP. VE NOOR. INC AGREEMENT# 40618200 
[lwtrr;rfrn~a,o, ""W,r·, "IA".o, "{M "J {Vrni:i:lw'l'l ltMGlfOlllffl t r,/Sttut«IPw')'~ rl liffllb' flVUtoftndc"',:;."'°:..:"""="c..:_:;.:;.;_;;:,;.;"""'=":..:""':::"c.._-,:-::-::--------, 

tnn In Months: 54 lrst Payment: $0.00 

t Paymtnt: $0.00 

urity Otpotlt: $2.159 70 

S125.00 

unt Flnanced:$21,597.oo 
NITIAL AMOUNT DUE: $2.284 70 

TERMS ANO CONDITIONS {PAGE i OF 2)- PLEASE READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING. · 

1, AGREEMENT: You want lo aaiuire 1he above equipment ("Equipmenl1 from a vendor selected 
by you ('Vend()(') and have requested lhal we finance the purchase price tor you. You 
uncoooitionally !)(ornise to pay us lhe sum of all of the monthly paymeots indicated above or on 
any sdledule rPayments1 and you agree 10 al of the terms staled in lllis Agreement You 
authonze us lo insert any l:quipmenl serial numbe!S and other identification data and any olher 
omitted facts and lo correct obvious errors.We may adjust the monthly payment amount lo finance 
any taxes due at lhe incepoon of !his Agreement or ~ the actual cost of lhe Eq\ipmenl is less lhan 
10% higher Of lower than lhe amount Ulal lhe Payment amount was based on. Al our disaetion 
we may apply any amounts received from you lo any amount you owe under lh:s Agreement 

2. TERM: nus Agreement shall become eflecti'le and shallcommence only after you direct us lO 
m~ments to your Vendor, we approve your Vendors invoice, we sign lhis Agreemeot 
and we make lhe initial disbursement or any later dale that we designate ('Commencement Daiei. 
The term of this Agreement shall termi'la1e upon Ille dale lhal a of your payment and olher 
obligations have been paid and satisfied in ruu (1'erm1. The Initial Amount Due shall be ooe on 
the Commencement Date and subsequent monlhly payments are due on the day we select, 
payable to a location lO be desgnaled by us. YOUR OBLIGATION TO PAY ALL PAYMENTS AHO 
OTHER OBLIGATIONS TO US IS UNCONDmONAL AND NOT SUBJECT TO ~ 
REDUCTION, SET-OFF, DEFENSE OR COUNTERCLAIM. THIS AGREEMENT MAY NOT BE 
CANCElEO FOR ANY REASON WHATSOEVER AFTER COMMENCEMENT EXCEPT BY 
YOUR PAYMENT AND SATISFACTION OF AU OF YOUR OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER. We 
have Ille ~ht, but nol the obligation. lo eledl'Onically wilhdraw funds from your bank aroxmt IO 
pay foe any unpaid Payments or other amounts due hereunder. Yoo will provide us with any bank 
account information we request in order lo process eledronic payments 

3 EQUIPMENT: You agree that you are lhe ov.ner of and have Utle lO the Equipment, exduding 
any software By signing Ille Pay Proceeds Direction at the end or lhls AgreemenL you aulhonze 
us lo pay your Vendor. either as a prepayment to your Vendor lo initiate delivery or upoo your 
acceptance of lhe Equpmenl M1ef1 ii is delivered. You hereby grant 10 us a first pnonly, pwthase 
money security interest in the Equipment and an replacements, replacement parts,accessions and 
al1achmenlS now or hereafter made apart of lhe Equipment, and all cash and non-cash proceeds. 
and au general intangibles, accounts and dlattel paper ansmg thereflom You agree, a1 your 
expense, lo proled and defeocl our interests in the Equipment Fur1her, you shall al a0 bmes keep 
lhe Equipment tree from all legal process. liens and olher enrurrtirances If asserted or made 
aga1nsl you or the Equipment You agree we have the nghl lo inspect lhe Equipment upon 
reasonable nobce 10 you. 

4. NO WARRANTIE\!W~~CY: WE ARE ANANCING THE EQUIPMENT FOR YOU "AS 
IS". WE MAKE NO RAH S, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANT1ES Of 
NON-lNFRINGMENT, MERCHANTABILITY, OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR 
ORDINARY USE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT. Neither lhe Vendor nor any other 
person is our agent. 001 are they authonzed lo waiw or change any term of this Agreement. No 
representation.guaranty or warranly by the Veroor or other person 1s b1ooing on us.No breadl by 
lhe Vendor wiU relieve or ew.ise your obligations lo us If you entered rnlO a maintenance or 
service agreement the cost of wt11dl is included in the Payments. you acknowledge we are not a 
party lo sucll agreements and are not responsible kJr any service. repairs, or manlenance of the 
Equ1JX11ent. If you have adispute with your Vendor about delivery, installabon.seMCe or any other 
matter, you must continue lo perfonn an your obfigalions, hereunder 

5. S~GljM; YOU MAY NOT SELL. TRANSFER ASSIGN OR LEASE THE 
ECO ~ R OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT WITHOUT OUR PRIOR 
WRITTEN APPROVAL. We may sell. assign or transfer lhis Agreement or any part of d and/or our 
interest in the Equpmenl wilhoul notilvin9 you and you agree lhat nwe oo.~)the rteN Seaired 
Party w,U have lhe same nghts and beiielits that we now have bul will not have lo perform any of 
our obligaoons, (i1) lhe rights ot the new Seaired Party will not be StJbJecl 10 any clams. defenses 
or selofls that you may have aganst us or the Vendor, and (11) you will not assert any claims. 
defenses or selofls whalsoever agamsl us or lhe new Secured Party 

6 SECURITY DEPOSIT; As security for the periormance of all your obhgalJOns hereunder, you 
have deposited with us the amounl set forth 111 the section shOWl'I as 'Security Deposit' We have 
the nght, but are not obligated, to apply lhe securily deposit al any time to any amount you owe 
Pro'Med you have fully perfonned all of the proVISIOllS of this Agreement. we wiU return lo you any 
then rema1111ng balance of Ille secunty deposit We wiH not keep the security deposit separate from 
our general funds and you shall not be entitled 10 any interest thereon. 

7 ~ARE, ~s~~AI!: L~: '(o<J are responsible for instaUing and keepill\j the 
Equipment m ng or r a repair You wift keep and use the Equ~I only for 
busmess or commeroal purposes and 1n compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances or 
regulations and only al your address sho'Ml on lhis Agreement un'ess we agree to anolherlocation 
You will nol make any atteraoons lo lhe Equipment wllhool our pri0< written consen~ nor w,D you 
permanently anach lhe Equ,pmeot lO any real estate In the event lhe Equ"menl is lost,stolen O! 
damaged, so lollg as you are nol 1n default hereunder, you shal have lhe option within 

· . -TERMS ANO CONDITIONS IPAGE-1 OF 2) - PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 8EFORE SIGNING · 

By tlgnlng thl• Agr-Nmtnl you 1eknowltdg11 that you h ■v• read and undenitand !ht tmns and conditions on each P'llt of this Agretmen~ and you warnnt that the penion tlgnlng this 
Agrtemtnt on your behilf Im the authority to do to ind to grant the power of at!omey st In Seetion 13 ol this Agretmtnl 

REEMENT Ofj B HALF OF BORROWER: 

' ~ <---" 

W!ICQHDmoNAL GYA.BAMU-
Forihepurposesolili¥Guaranly, "you· and 'your" refer 10 the pe150n making lhe guaranty. 'We", ·us r" refer lO lhe Secure<J Pany, our successors or assigns. You ac!alowledQe that you have 
read and understood lhe Agreement and this Guaranty and lhal this is an mevocable,pint, several and conunu1ng guaranty Yoo agree lhal you have an mterest in lhe Borrower's busmess. econormc 
or olherwise. and lhal we would not enter into this Agreement withoul this Guaranty You ulXXlndiliollally guaranty that the Borrower wil fully and promptly pay all Its ol>igalions under the Agreement 
and any future Agreements wilh us when they are due and will perfoon all its other obligaoons under the Agreement even if we rnodily or renew lhe Agreemenl or 11 any payments made by the l3orrower 
are resonded or returned upon lhe insolvency, bankruptcy or reorgamzalioo of the Borrower, as if the payment had not been made We do not have lo notify you if lhe Borrower is in defauh under the 
Agreement II the Borrower defaults, you will immediately pay and pertorm all obligations due under the Agreement You ]ree that you wift nol be released or d-scharged if we (1) lad 10 pertect a 
serurity mteresl in the Equipment or any other propeny which secures the obhgalions ol Borrower or you to us ("Collateral') i1) Jail lo protect lhe Collateral, or (Ill) abandon or release the Collateral or 
any oorigor under lhe Agreemenl 01 this Guaranty You agree that we do not have lo proceed firs! agarnsl the Borrower oc any ollaleral. You hereby warve any nght of eioneration, ooticeofacceptance 
of lhis Guaranty and of all other notices or demards of any lood in which you may be entil!ed 1o except for demand for payment You will re1rr1burse all expenses we incur in enfO!cing our rljlhts aga111st 
Borrower or you_inducting,without limitation. anomey's tees and costs We may obtain 1nfoonalioo from end report 10 credit reporting agenoes lO enter mlo lhe Agreement or to enforce llus Guaranty 
You consent lo personal jurisdiction, forum, choice of law and JU'Y trial and transfer of venue waiver as staled in section 17 YOU AND WE EACH WANE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION RELATING 
TO THE AGREEMENT OR THIS GUARANTY. This Guaranty may be executed by facsimile, eledlOOIC or onginal signature and sucll a copy shall be ueall!d as an orgnal for all purposes 

X: QmS!qneg·
/- /~/ 

PttntHame: • ......,t..,... ' .._______________________.flln N~m"'· 



# 40618200 

TF.RMS /I/JO COl,QIT1m;s (PAGE 7 or li - f'L E.n5E READ cr,RE:FULLy ;Jf;FORE SlGrm/G 

one week of suth event ID: (~ repair or replace Iha Equipment or (ii) pay ID us the aripaid balance 
ofIlle remainilg P8)fllenls hereundeuflSalWl!l!d to present value at 1he miofttuee pert:e11I (3%]
(or such greater alllllml Iha! may be reci,ited by law) plus any other amwnls due or lo beoorm 
due herwar. UNDER NO CftCUMSTANCES ARE' We RESPOHSIILE FOR SERVICE OR 
MAINTENAHCE OH THE EQ\IFMENT. 

8 BXH:You wil paywtien due 10 )Wl'approp!iate la~aulbority, all tms, fines andpenallies
tela!iiij"ioll\ls Agteemenl or the~ end any applleable regJstrallon or lilling feesorOlhet 
govemmenlllldlarges, lhatare noworllllhe fulul8 assessed or levied bylllfgowrnnenlauthllrily 
01 requited b'lhe lawful posse8,Sial anduseol!he Equipment. Sale$ laxes due 11p::11 the p!ldlase
olthe Equpmentandanyolhersudl gDWlllll8!llal dlaltlfl, ifdlduded in 1he pun:hase price, may 
be 6nanced lw:tteundet.9-~We aie not responsible !or any Injuries or bsse3 to you or any olher peison or 
p: ~ the inslalalion, ~. mairtenance, owneMJI, pos.,ession or use ol lhe 
Equipment You agree ID relnilurse us lot, 1101d us hamdess from, and defend~ any

=':':t1.:~ar:~~sr:r==~~~~;,...~
Ille Term has expired. 

10. {N§YRANCE; You egrae to maintain~liability lnsu!81108 acceplllble ID us.You 
also agiee to mainlBm insurance ai;ei1sl Iha loss of or damage to 1he Equijment tr en amount 
not less man the replai:emelll c:ost and nmne us 811d our essigns as loss pa)'ell. Ifyou lad to timely 
provide sud! poclk> us. we may, but are nol cbligaled lo, obtainpapertylossiluanat to pmled 
our nmesl9 in lhe Equ~. If we seaire IRSUlllOCe in Ille lorm 811d 8lllOUla we deem 
,easonahle (1) )'Ollwigreimir,a 1he P.remium, tltlxtlmay be hdierlhana pnmum lhat )'OIi nitlfll , 
pay ii ~ oblaned the lmurance. (a1 Ille premilrn may indIOI a__profil tD us and.br one of our 
affifiales lhrough an ia\lllSlmenl in reinsurance or otherwise. and (iii) we wil not name ~ as an 
insured par1y and )Wr 1l'llerests may not be fully proleCled Alfi inswanoe ptooeeds received u 
Ille Equipment will beepplled, a1ou1 opti>n, torapalr or lel)la(le Ille~or ID the remanng 
payments due or aiat become due hesellnder, disalunlecf at Uml peltlelll f3") (or sudl grealer 
lllOOIIR1 tllal maybe required by law~ 

11. DEFAULT: Youwil be in defNt if : (1) ycuclo nolpayany lltllOll1I v.tlffl due, till you break 
anyolyiiurjiiumises ot representations hereunder or undef anyO!her agreeroonl Yddi us; (11i) ~u 
become IIISdvenl, aimmence d~ proceeding$, ass.ign )'Ollr 8$$et1 lor1he beoe!it ofyow 
aedkn. or a IIUSlee is appainted ID take~ofyooi: asse~ or any~enm 
(volurllantt orimdumantt) fn1oa bankn.l)&:y or other insolwlncy proceecl~:M)'011 default 
on my obtipalklns IO 8IJJ of your olher credltoB;jv,) ycu have made any tmlrU8 or misleada,g 
l'Bl)l8SenlaliO tous; (wl anyguarantor des: or~ YoU cflal'l!Je youtname, slala olO!V3lllllltm,
dilefexecuweoffice ancUor place ol residence willlout prowlingusWith 30daysprior written notice 
of such change 

12,- In lheevenlda deflllJII llY you, we can: (i) cana!I lhisAgreement, (1)dedare you
ind any other aareeinent )'OU have wi1h us.811d exeiase any or all remedies p,ov,ded
la us lhereunder. fail disable !he Equipment or iequi111 that ycu sfli!> tl8 &jllipmenl to us at )'OUJ 
erpense; 6vl BCOllera!e and demmt lhal vau pay d lhe remanng Paymm, due under !his 
Agreement disa>urtecf lo present valle at !hree peroenl 13%1 (or such giealer amourrt lhal may be 
requi,lld by lawl togeher willl any othel elllOl.lllls due hereunder, ani1for (v) ~ !Inv or the 
remedies available to usunder lhe ucc or any allier law, cndu!fmg repossession ollhe EqupnBfll 
or other Collateral lnleresl shall aa:rue on all amounts due us IIOm Ille date or default until paid 
81 lhe rare ollhe lesser olro one and OIIHl!dl peltenl (1.5%) per month am {ii) lhe f1lalDlllllll rale 
pennilled by law ('Remedf Interest Rale1 You agree to remburse 1111 ro,, al dlarges, CIOSb. 
expenses and artomey's fees !hat we have to pay IO enfurce this Allreemenl II you retum the 
Equll)lllel1! pursuant lo clause •rear 8bov8 or we take possession ot !he ~I, )'Oii agme to 
pay lhe cost of1epossessicn, storil:v,slujlplng,repauing and seUng or~the Eq~You 
agree !hat we do nol haw ta notily you that we ere seu:ng or leasing Ille EquiJ)ffle!II exa!f>t as 
olherwise requaud by laW. You also 81JOO Iha! wa are efllilled to ab8ndori lhe Equipment if we 
belie-.e ii to be in our best inleml 

1~~RE~Pl~P arv!§ A~TIONS; You hen!byre ~pn:neiistl)<OUfiavean~~tosbJdy trus 
Agreement and CXlflSIJlt )'OUr legal and advisors before SIIJIYIIO, and lllis Agreement is 
enbcealm agamr ycu I\ 8CCOrilana! vdltl ib tenns. (li) you are no1 ~ ro any ballknqlk:y
DrOCet!dhl. and (Iii) ii lllis doallnent was sent by ycu ID us eledroRIC&lly, ii !las llOI been alleted 
ii any way and any alteralion or lllWIQl lo BIIY part ofINS or anya!IBClled docllnerllS wil make 
all such a!leralioo$ or ~ nolHlrldng end wii. You hefeby 8U1horize us,and appoint us or 
our desigTiee as your allllmt1~.faG1, IO endorse lmuranca pl008ecfs and to er:earte and fde 
fin~statemanlll lriamilv YIMI as 'OEblof1 anddoalmen1.so! ~ and l'ellislnllion(lfapplic:able) 
on Che filWPl!lef11 orC4Dalei&I, and you agree lo 1eimoolse us for ow out~l-,met costs fllllmlg
there». 

U FEESM!CHARGffi Ifany part ofany Payment is not made by you when due,you agree 
to pay us peroent %) of eadl past Ille amount (or 1he 11111J:111U11 amoonl pem,Jtted bV 
law. if less than 15%).You agree to pay an admiruslratiYe lee or fdto/ dcilal3 IS50.00) ifanv check 
or AOi IS cflShono!ed or relllmed. /IS AMATERIAL IIDIJCEll9n' TO US TO ENrER IHTO 
THIS AGREBIIBfT AND F!HANCE YOUR EQUIPMENT, YOU AGREE THAT F Alff 
PAYll!Kr, CHARGE OR FEE BIi.LED OR COUECTEO BY US IS FOUHD TO EXCEEO THE 
MAXIIIUM AMOUNT AU.OWED 8Y LAW, ll{EN (0 WE MAY MODIFY Al« SUCH 
EXCESSIVE AM.DUNT Bill.ED SO /IS TO YAKE rr NOTEXCESSIVE, {II) WE MAY REFUND 
TO YOIJ THE EXCESSIVE AMOUN1', TOGETHER WITH INTEREST AT 1HE "REMEDY 
INTEREST RAT£" ~ DEANED 1H SECTION 12), ANO mo lHE FOREGOING SIIALl Be 
YOUR EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR THE BIi.LiNG OR COUECTIHG OF THE EXCESSlVE 
AMOUNTS AND YOU WIU. NOT wse AN( OTHER CLAIM. COMPLAINT OR 08J£CTIOH 
WITH RESPECT THERETO. 

15. !'filE~R~GESdkTJus~reement~talllS the enlire 1!9ieemell1betwaen 
you us re 11rg cl EQUipmen~ snd ii may nol be laminated orotllefwlse 
dla/lged exoepl Ill writing by bo of US. A limi!ing endorsement 00 8 cfleck OI' other fonn fl 
~ will nol be elledNe to modify ~ obh!Jalioos « any of Ille odlllf terms ol Chis 
Agreemenl. and we may apjlly any pa)'lllelll received 'M1lloul beilg bound by such limjtjng
eridolsernents. 

16 CW£.~: N2!fi,Si In lhe event )'OU !all to CXN111l1Y wittl anr tenns of ll!is Agreement, 
we can. we not •lake anyadion neoessaiy to elfed )'OIi oomp8ance upon ten (10) 
days p,ilr wri1len notice to yo11 awe em requwed to pay any amoun1 to oll'3il yoor ~ 
Ille 8llllllll1 we pay plus airofoor expense in causing ~ carrll(ilnce, shall bemme , 
oblgibls and sl1all be pail bV you 1oge111er wflh Iha l18Jll clue payment nus Agreement I! tor 
lhe benel\t of and is bindJng upan you, your pefSOll8I leS)Rl$8I\IIIMII, succassors and assigns, 
Anynob requied bv 1hi3 ~orlheUCC stiallbe detmed tobe d8ivllnld"1len a nmrd 
property lin!ded lo die in!ended reapienl ha, been=•clePC>Sited with Iha us Postal Service, (Q}
lrwmitred by facsimile or lhlOllgh the Internet, !here IS reasollallly sufficiant fllllO{lhal
it was raoeived by the llll!!nded ~ or (ill) been personaRy cleiYeri!d. 

17.~~ JURIS&~ISAGREEMENT SHALL NOT BE BINDING UNTD. 
IT TEY us , AND YOU IEREBY 8TJIULA1E THAT OUR 
ACCEPTANCE AND SIGNING OF THIS AGREEMENT DI SOIJTH CAROLINA FOLLOWING 
YOUR SIONATURe MEANS THAT 1111S AGREEMENT WAS MADE 1H SOU111 CAROUNA. 
YOU l!EREBY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT OUR ACCOUNT S8MCIHG OPERATtONS 
(INCLUDING TitOSE SERVlaHG YOUR ACCOUNT) ARE LOCATED IN SOUTH CAROUNA. 
YOU HEREBY AGREE THAT THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY lffE LAWS OF 
THE STAlE OF SOUlff CAROLINA. BUT WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO THE LAWS OF 
SOIIIH CAROUNA GOVERNING CHOICE OF LAW. YOU COHS2HTT01HEJURISD!CTIOH 
Of THE STATE CR FEOaW. COURTS LOCATED IN THE STAlE OF SO\JTH CAROLINA 
FOR THE COUNTY OF LEXIKGTO!l1~ AGREE THAT ANY ACTIONS OR PROCEEOIHGS 
IJilllATS) BY YOU ARISING Dlim.1LY OR INDIRECTLY OUT OF 1lUS AGREEIIENT 
(WHETHER SOUNDING IN BREACH OF CONTRA£f,1!>!1;. !JR OTHERWISE) SHALL BE 
BROUGHT ONLY IN SUCH COUNTY IN SOUTH ~ PROVIDED HOWEVER. WE 
MAY BRING ACTIOtl AGAINST YOU IN ANY STATE Oft FEDERAL COURTS OUTSIDE 
SOUTH CAROLINA WE CHOOSE IN OUR SOLE DISCRETION, PROV!DED OHLY THAT 
SUCH COURT HAS PROPER JURISDICTION. 1H THE EVEHT THIS AGREEMENT IS 
ASSIGNED BY US, YOU COHSEN1' TO THE JURISOIC'ROM OF THE STATE ANl> FEDERAL 
COURTS Cf lllE ASSIGNEE'S PRIMCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS. YOU UNDERSTAHO 
THAT YOUR AGREEMENT TO SOUTM CAROLINA LAW AND YOUR SUBMISSION TO 
PERSOHAL JURISDICTION IN SOUTM CAROLINA DIRECTLY BENEFITS US AND IS A 
MATERIAL fNDUCBIENT TO OUR ENTERIKG INTO THIS AGREEMENT AND FINANCINO 
YOUR ECHJIPIIENT.YOU AND WE EACH HEREBY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY 1H Al«ACTIDN 
OR PAOCEEDINO, WHETIWl BROUGHT WCONTRACT OR l<!fl!.i.$!~! LAW OR IN 
EQURY, AIUS!NO OUT OF OR WAHY WAY RELATED TO THIS Awu:.t11t:N1. 

:mitM~NodelayOf lallre byus IO eriforceour ridlts under1!11slqeemenl sl1al 
u, en any rights at a later time If a11y part al Iha Agreement is delemllled 

to be unen!o1teabla. all olhaf pa,13 wiD retllall III Ml fon:e and el!e<t Azri E.qulemenl discol.lntl 
we may negollale with Vendor aa:rue solely 10 our benefit. The Oligilal ol lhis Agfeemenl shall 
be lh.ai copy Mliti beats your eledrollic, fac:sanile or onginaJ S111nature, and our eledronic or 
original $lgllillllre 

PAY PROCEF.DS OIRF.CTION TO Fl/;MJCF. AGR!:l:MENT 

You hereby mwcabtt insouct us lo pay Gle Vffllor(s) listed below b the Equipmenl listed on Vendor($) proposals approved by us.You h8Alby adcnawledge lhal the Eciui!xnenl has been delive!ed 
and IS ao;eplable in au resped9 OR the Equrpment has NOT been delivered but VCII hereby atl'lhorim us to make payment lo the Vendol(s) ., order to lniliale dehery Oisllursement by us in 
aCQIIWlllal with the foregoing tnS!rudions shall c:onst1111e payment and dewery to and receipt by yo11 ol any and al sucn proceeds. 

c~ Pr1ntNlme&Tltll: JAH!QAARI.ANDT OISTMGRc.--..-

to vcrtfV mydll'IC!lotl todllburu runcr,. 
Vendor. LEGACY CONSTRUCTION SERVICES GROUP INC Vendor: Vendor; 

https://PROCEF.DS
https://anddoalmen1.so


# 40618200 

II!:~ N AV IT.s I .. UHll~D COMMUNIIT ON~ COMPANY 
~ CRIDlf COIP. 

EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE "A" 

Lessee/Borrower/Rentee: DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COMMUNl"TY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT Agreement #.40618200 

This Equipment Schedule •A· is to be attached to end become pert of the Agreement referenced above by and between the 
undersigned and Nav!las Credit Corp., Lessor/Secured Party/Renier. 

Equipment: 

..1-tANGfNG CAN11l.EVER PRODUCTS
csso 1 

18' Wcd1h x8' Enby Height. (2) Columns on Base 
Plates+ 6" surfaci1g at 129x12'". Beams at 10"x6"'. 
Rafters at 05.0'" 11-Ga With Glide Bbows. 

~ Hantjng Csntifever Shade:36' length X 

This Equipment Schedule "A" is hereby verified as correct by the undersigned Lessee/Bo,rower/Renlee, who acknowtedges receipt of a 
copy. This dOGUmenl may be executed by facsimile, electronic or original signature and such a copy shall be treated as an original for 
all purposes. 

Lessee/Bcrrower/Rentee: DAVENPORT ROAD SOUlH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Signature: X :;c..___ c~ b A 
~;;.;....a=..;.____________Titie: X ~GR 

Daie; X 

de info@navltascredit.com c:;J www.navitascredit.com 

www.navitascredit.com
mailto:info@navltascredit.com


.
# 40618200 

...... .........
NAVITAS A UHi l ED COMM UH i rY IAHIC C.O M,AMT .................................CIIIDIT co•~-

Progress Payment Agreement 

Lessee/Borrower/Rentee: DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COMMUNITY 
Agreement#: 40618200DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

In reference to the Agreement# 40618200. between Lessee/Borrower/Rentee and Navitas Credit Corp. as Lessor/Secured 
Party/Rentor: 

You negotiated with your supplier. LEGACY CONSTRUCTION SERVICES GROUP INC ("Supplier"), to acquire the 
equipment described in the Agreement (the "Agreement"). Your Supplier requires the payment of all or a substantial portion 
of the total cost of the equipment (the "Equipment Advance") to be paid to Supplier prior to your receipt and acceptance of 
the equipment. At your request, we will advance the Equipment Advance to Supplier prior to your receipt and acceptance 
of the equipment when we receive an invoice acceptable to us, but only on the condition that you agree to the following 
terms: 

To induce us to make the Equipment Advance lo Supplier prior to your receipt and acceptance of the equipment, YOU 
AGREE THAT YOUR OBLIGATIONS (INCLUDING YOUR PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS) UNDER THE AGREEMENT 
HEREBY IMMEDIATELY COMMENCE. YOU FURTHER AGREE THAT THE AGREEMENT IS NON-CANCELABLE AND 
THAT YOU WILL TIMELY PERFORM ALL OF YOUR OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE AGREEMENT, INCLUDING MAKING 
THE MONTHLY PAYMENTS, WITHOUT ANY CLAIM OF SET-OFF, EVEN IF: (a) SOME OR ALL OF THE EQUIPMENT 
IS NOT DELIVERED AND/OR INSTALLED; (b) THE EQUIPMENT IS UNTIMELY DELIVERED AND/OR UNTIMELY 
INSTALLED; AND/OR (c) THE EQUIPMENT DOES NOT, AT THE TIME OF DELIVERY OR THEREAFTER, OPERATE 
PROPERLY OR THERE 15 ANY OTHER NONCONFORMANCE IN THE EQUIPMENT OR IN ANY SERVICE. 

You acknowledge that you understand and agree that in the event you are not satisfied with lhe delivery or installation of 
the equipment that you shall only look to persons other than Lessor/Secured Party/Rentar such as the manufacturer. 
installer. or Supplier and shall not assert against Lessor/Secured Party/Rentor any claim or defense you may have with 
reference to the equipment, its delivery or non-delivery, or ,ts installation. Upon your signing below, you authorize and direct 
us to pay the Equipment Advance to your Supplier and your promises under the Agreement will be irrevocable and 
unconditional in all respects and payments shall begin immediately and shall be due continuously hereafter 

A facsimile , electronic, or original copy of your signature on this Agreement bearing our original or electronic authorized 
signature will be treated as an original. 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COMMUNITY 
NAVlTAS CREDIT CORP. DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Lessee/Borrower/Rentee 

'II' 11 \ 

, _, L..JLN IAIIVE 
DIST MGR 

Title 

CUST 

Date Date r ' 

m info@navitascredit.com U www.navitascredit.com 

www.navitascredit.com
mailto:info@navitascredit.com


  
 

   

Davenport Road South
Community Development District 

Payment Authorization Nos. 20 – 26 



DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Payment Authorization FY 19 #20 
8/19/2019 

Item Payee 
No. 

1 City of Davenport 
Pool Water 7/8-8/5/19 

2 Complete Pool Care 
September 2019 Pool Service 

3 Duke Energy 
57014 95486 Ludisia Loop Street Lite 
66995 7954 7 940 Orchid Grove Blvd 

4 Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 
July 2019 Conference Calls 

5 FUQUA 
August 2019 Clubhouse Cleaning 

6 Orkin 
August 2019 Pest Control 

Secretary I Assistant Secretary 

Invoice 
Number 

13207 

8.2019 
8.2019 

24566 

7865 

191111975 

TOTAL 

General 
Fund 
FY19 

$ 53.63 

$ 1,525.00 

$ 142.40 
$ 1,072.00 

$ 7.37 

$ 1,105.00 

$ 100.15 

$4,005.55 

https://4,005.55
https://1,105.00
https://1,072.00
https://1,525.00


@ City Of Davenport 
1 South Allapaha Ave. 
Davenport, Fl. 33837 ACCOUNT# LOCATION# PAY ID 

For BRllng Inquiries, plNH call: j 9056 19003 6ZKA 
ADDRESS SERVICE REQUESTED (8131419-3300 '=·====~====""'==~=,..,.,,...J

utllltyurvlcnQrport.org Bill DATE DUE DATE TOTAL DUE 
Office Houri: -~rlclay 1:00 -1:00 

8- ...tet-Klel.....,nt:--pgll~(813) 418-33181 08/09/19 09/01/19 53.83...h, .______._______,________, 

••AUTO••ALL FOR AAIC ll6 lD AAtC llltJ53AAD"I-A-l 
lSi!I l A8 a...a, 
1111 II 1111 ••IIlnl"11II 11111 III'IIM 11 .,,11I111111Ill11111' IM 
ORCHID GROVE UC 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD ATTN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
ORLANDO R. 32817-1450 

ACCOUNT# SERVICE ADDRESS BILLING PERIOD BILL DATE DUE DATE TOTAL DUE 

9056 940 Orchid Blvd 1 01,os,19 to 08/04/19 1 08/09/19 09/01/19 53.63 

PREVIOUS CURRENT METER CONSUMPTION YR AGO DESCRIPTION CHARGE 
DATE READ DATE READ NUMBER (100 gal) 

07/08/19 5514 08/05/19 5514 1548689338 0 WATER SERVICE· 11/2" 48.75 
TAXES 4.88 

CURRENT CHARGES 53.63 
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $ 53.63 

SPECIAL MESSAGES 

LABOR DAY WEEK• TRASH Will BE PICKED UP ON THURSDAY SEPT 5TH . •......,............,.H......,.•••--..........._.. 
COMMISSION MEETINGS: THURSDAY SEPT 5TH AND THURSDAY SEPT 19TH 7PM 
STORMWATER ASSESSMENT MEETING: AUG 19TH ANO SEPT 5TH 7PM........................,.._................................ 
BAY STREET CLASSIC CAR SHOW: AUGUST 3181 TIMES: 9AM-3PM 
FARMERS MARKET: AUGUST 17TH 9AM-3PM 
H ...........lrlrlrHlrlrHHH-..lrlr...........HlrlrHlr 

mNOTICE 1111.... ALL BILLS ARE DUE ON THE 1ST AND SUBJECT TO 
DISCONNECTION AFTER THE 10TH OF THE MONTH. 

a)'!!l8nt

Coupon 
PLEASE RETURN TI-as PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT 

MAKE YOUR CHECKS PAYABLE TO: CITY OF DAVENPORT 

ACCOUNT# LOCATION# PAY 10 AMOUNT ENCLOSED 

9066 19003 6ZKA .____________...JI REMIT PAYMENT TO 

BILL DATE DUE DATE TOTAL DUE 

08/09/19 09/01/19 53.83 

I111111 II Im•111 I 111I·~I,llhh....I,11111111• lnll •••1•11 Ih1• 
ORCHID GROVE UC CITY OF DAVENPORT 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD ATTN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1 SOUlHALLAPAHAAVE 
ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 DAVENPORT FL 33837-4161 

https://utllltyurvlcnQrport.org


1 

complete Pool Care 

PO Box2196 
Winter Haven, Fl 33883 
completepool05@aol.com Invoice 
863-287-5015 

Date: 08/16/2019CARE 
Invoice No.: 13207 
Dua Date: 09/15/2019 

em To: 
Davenport Rd. South CDD 
Orchid Grove 

Qty Item DNcrlptlon Unit Price Total 

Pool Service for September 2019 $1,525.00 $1,525.00 

j)\ 
u..'<> 

/\"#/ 
1/:J 

(5)' 

Total $1,5211.80 

Balance Due $1,525.80 

Plane contact us for more Information about payment options. 

Thank you for your buslneu. 

https://1,525.80
https://1,5211.80
https://1,525.00
https://1,525.00
mailto:completepool05@aol.com


---

~/'_';DUKE STATEMENT OF ELECTRIC SERVICE Ii..~ ENERGY~ AUGUST 2019 

FOR CUSTOMER SERVICE OR DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH CDD DUE DATE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 
PAYMENT LOCATIONS CALL: AUG 28 2019 142.40 
1-877-372-8477 120S1 CORPOIIATI! BLl/0 

OftLNllO FL 52617 NEXT READ DEPOSIT AMOUNT 
WEB SITE: www.dull••nargy.com DATE OH OR ON ACCOUNT 

SERVICE ADDRESS ABOUT------····--- lTT UQISIA UXP LXTI!TO REPORT A POWER OUTAGE: SEP 06 2019 240.00
DAIIEll'a!T FL 358371-800-228-8485 

PAVl'£NTS Rl!CEXllm AS OF AUG 01 2019 221.87 ntANK YOU 
PIN: 071282712 

8S-1 060 8ENERAL SERVICE - NON DEMAND SEC 
Bn.LlNG 1'1!1!:tOD•• 07·08·19 TO 08·06·19 29 DAYSMETER READINGS 

CUSTIH!lt CtWNZ 12.78 
ENBIGY C1W1G1! 813 KHH a 8.078800 6S.67IET!R NO. 005652130 
FIE. DW!GE 813 KHH a 3.974000 32.31PRESENT ( IICTUAL I 087827 
A$SET SWJIIITIZATION DW!GE 813 KHH D 0.236000 l.92PREVIOUS CACTUAL l 017014 

DIFFERENCE 000813 
•TOTAL l!IETIIIC COST 112.68TOTAL KlfH 813 
GROSS RE.LED-'IS TAX 2.119 
HUNICil'AL l'l!ANCHISE FEE 7.41 
HIHICIPM. UTD..ITY TAX 9.64 
STATI! AN) OTH!I! TAXES ON l!U!CTIIIC 9.78 

TOTAL etaMNT 8D.L 142.40 

TOTAL DUE THIS STATEMENT ♦ 142.41 

aymen o your pr to a e w avoi a 
late payment charge of $5.00 or 1.5%, whichever 11 greater. 

Duke Energy Florida utilized fuel In the following proportion• to 
generate your power: Coal 14%, Purchaoed Power 13%, Gao 73%, OU 0%, 
Nuclear 0% (For 12 month• ending June 30, 2019). 

TT Tl TT 
A S O N D J ~ M A M J J A 

---- ENERGY USE ----
DAILY AI/G. USE • 28 KWH/DAY 
USll ONE YEAR AGO - 0 ICIIVDAY 
NOAII.Y AI/G. ELECTRIC COST· t3.89 

BF_m._DEF_20t90IIOG_2114'17,_2 CSV 2094-000000179 
DETACH ANO RiTURN THII HCTtON MM M8047't 9ILL I 1 0, l GftP _, 

ACCOUNT NUMBER • 57014 1154H - AUG 28 2019 
PO. BOX 1004 

002094 000000779 CHARLOTTE, 
NC 28201-1004 I L ! /l. : i IJ · - 111111111h1•111•1 11h•11•1•11111 •1 11llllll'hl11111111'll1111111 

DA\IENPOR r ROAD SOUTH COO 142.40!12051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORLANDO FL 32817-1'400 PlEA5E ENlCR 

AMOoNI ..MP 

57014,54Abb00000014240b0000 □ 000000000000014240b01DOOODOOOOO, 

www.dull��nargy.com


(-,DUKE STATEMENT OF ELECTRIC SERVICE .. r•❖1•'""'""''i,86995 79547 ~ ENERGY. AUGUST 2019 

l'OR CUSTOMER SERVICI! OR DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD DUE DATE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 
PAYMENT LOCATIONS CALL: AUG 28 2019 1,072.00 
1-en-312-a4n 120.111 COlll'llltATE BLVD 

ORLAN>O FL 32817 NEXT READ DEPOSIT AMOUNT 
WEB SllE: -.duke-anergy.com DATE ON OR ON ACCOUNT

SERVIC! ADDRESS ABOUT
9'10 ORCHID GROIIE BLVDTO REPORT A POWER OUTAGE: SEP 06 2019 240.00
DAVEN ORT FL 558371-800-228-8485 

PIN: 071282712 
P'A-,.S RECEtVEll AS CF - 01 2019 1,062.5$ TtW« YOU 

GS-1 060 GENERAL SERVICE - NON DEMAND SEC 
METER READINGS BILLING PERIOD .. 07·08-19 TO 08-06·19 

aJSTIJIER DWIGE 
29 DAYS 

12.78 
t£TER NO. 
PRESENT 
l'Rl!VIOUS 

00362249'1 
IACTlW..J 025765 
IACTlW..l 016951 

ENERGY CHMGE 
Rll!L CHARGE 
ASSET Sl!CUIITIZATION CHARGE 

61114 KHH ll 
61114 KHH a 
6814 ICltll ll 

8. 076000 
5.974000 
8 .256000 

550.43 
270,79 

16.08 
DIFFEREN:E 
TOTAL KHH 

006814 
6814 •TOTAL 1!1J!CT1!IC COST 

GROSS RECEIPTS TAX 
850. 08 

21.80 
tUaCIPAL FRANCHISE FEE llll.89 
l«.tffl:IPAL UTn.ITV TAX 
STATE ANl OTHER TAXES ON l!IJ!CTl!IC 

70.46
75.n 

TOTAL CURRENT BILL 1,072.00 

TOTAL DUE THIS STATEMENT tl,072.0i 

ayment o YOU' pr to e a e w av a 
late payment charge of $5.00 or 1.5o/o, whichever la greater. 
Duke Energy Florida utilized fuel in !he following proportions to 
generale your power: Coal 14%, Purchased Power 13%. Gaa 73%, Oil 0%, 
Nuclear 0% (For 12 months ending June 30, 2019) 

ASONOJFMAUJJA 

---- ENERGY US! ----
DAILY AVG. USE - 255 KIH/OAY 
USE ONE YEAR AGO - 0 IOft/OAV 
MOAILY AVG. EU!CT~IC COST· •29.51 

BF. Bl otFs,20190808 211447 2 CSY,20Sl5-0IXOJ0178 
ot:TACH AHD lttTURN 11hS IECTION MM IOIOoftO hJ.. # t OF t GRP lilS 

MIike cll■ cb payable to: Duke Energy 

PJJJ.RATJ 
ACCOIIHT NUMB!R • 66995 78547 AUG 28 2019 

P.O. BOX 10CM002095 000000779 
CHARLOTTE, 
NC 28201-10CM ·: () I A I ; .J • 

I' llln llh1•1 II'111h,IM •II ml 111 HI 11111thl"tlll • 1111 II I" 
DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD 1.012.ool12051 CORPORATE BLVD - ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 

PlEM<<Nr<R 
AMOUNT P,YP 

bb995795~7b00000l0720080000000000000000 □ l0720080l00000000 □ 09 

https://duke-anergy.com
https://1,072.00


Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 
12051 Corporate Blvd. FISHKINDOrlando, FL 32817 I srrr, 

Davenport Road South 
c/o Fishkind & Associates, Inc. Invoice 
12051 Corporate Blvd Invoice#: 124566 
Orlando, FL 32817 

8/13/2019 

Fie: Davenport Road SouthI 
DavenoortRoadS0 uth 

Services: Amount 

Conference Calls 7.37 

.,)...YO\ 

n;:JY' 
~✓ 

VO
65 

Please include the invoice 
Balance Due $7.37number on your remittance 

and submit to: 
Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 

RECEIVED AUG 1~ 201912051 Corporate Blvd. 
Orlando, FL 32817 
Ph: 407-382-3256 
Fax: 407-382-3254 
www.fishkind.com 

www.fishkind.com


--

PAGf:9 

INVOICE NUMatll 28154004 
INVOICE DAT£ 07/26/2019 
ACCOUNT IIO, 85735742-~ . 

84618295 .Jane Gaadandl LOg.TJ-MODDATOt ·--·· ·- -- - - ··-
iR1w11& REF# 2 BILLIIIG R£AP 3!ml!!!• Bid i ·-

BIIUNGllat4 
,-w• 

I ,..... U'l;l -~- CMM4)1iiii.'e ! COSTC:HtTtlt co••.nff (<»If, TTTll / •~IIH, / Atu TIMI I Hm<« I AC(tsS TYPC 1Piasou UNITS ' 'CM.\l'OfM. 

1w11sn1 i,71} l/1019 \170)ff'6,$ 10.S6.uii · 12.Hl'llt tV1.QIAtMu~st>AuO!O few. •~t I I .. O,Ot;/lli!M .... P.,H ' 

-
l 1!1112019 ,ei,nnstto HfS'7•M • 1 l ~~l~~•..Mt('tl')A.,~;o _ rO~l r"n I • lO J»,"MlN i ~oo-· t---; 

COtlf,NO'' COSTCP'l'a -(:Ottf', OATt c&.,, TITLl / .iAMtTUt- ttM:l SUM«:€ ACUSS,-..t Htl$0N5 ...... , .... Ct1M:R ,.. I CMA.TOTM. 

,N .. 1!nlil>l9 \4D741')1iJ95, u,01.-. u ..s,. S.LOU.i.Mt(f®' Aut>iO roi.l r11n 1 ,., [tl,00/tfflf o.oo ,... -
. . 

I :<" )'flt/2019 ta11i4'11•,a4 l'i·04Mil-12·r•* i>clO'!l,11,t,M(E,(IAvPIO !10L~fk, l l 6t> 0.00/MfN \ 0,vv :,.oo- --' - ,, ' .," y 1fllf1019 tlSS.~ U 14.\111 • 11-'tSN iG1.09AlJt\U:t\Jl A1,1t,1Q Foi~f11u l 0.00/Mhi 0.00 ,,o,i,' ,< 

7/11/Z0-19 l15'4S6i♦O ll'lS....-U:AS,.._ ;j,(QfAt.MU:~ At.>010 !l(H1, f.lf:t l • .. 0.1)0/Mlil l 0.00 ... l 

'-.....-0- "<'-" roo 
1141-177).t 711$/2019 17Hp649'4, tO:'ll',11'» ll ):,14» ~~ou..Mu,© A~IO OU Fate -, 39~ O 001- 000 ... ·. - ' 

,Q',...., rr1812019 nie.~•s•c lO·SSui· :l.••s,,111 to••t.Mtt1~AvtH('l ottf•tc l 0.00/Mtll ! 1),0()"" ,. 71\8/10t9 ,ns&4~r- J 10,$4,A"' •N1S..,,. C'iLQfMMUl'lt Auc»o ou.. hu 1 m OA!'Of- ... ...••• 
. '" 7/14110'151 1t'h1in1s,i p••- lJ;)lAM :islOUlMltT\!'J A\,,QtO Oul1tn: l ,. Q.QO-/MIN 0.00 ..

'~ \..:, -" ""y.... ·- - u/18/2019 :nse,n•s•o jll 17AM l1;J2AM \llOMtMccf(!t AttOIO ouhu l o.oo:JirttW .... .. 
" ' 

✓ .,.,.,., 7/14/1019 uia.s•s•o l:SSf'M Lt9PM t.01,#,I.Mft'f,p AUOU) OU f•n 1 )4 0.i'.10/MIM 0.00 •• __.,.. p1:1e/101., 11()6.U~:,4 US• i:4\- 1,ttQtAv,'Ut® A\JbrQ (),lfRU I ,. O.GO/MtM o.oo . _, D7/18JiC19 .n"i.4i6S40 l.5-1•¥- ·,:_.;,.. G.t.OklMn '"" .t.VOIO (HtfRU ' 1 .. (U>t>/~IN MO "'"' ... 
!)7/1$/)019 1&1µ04,olki 1 ,s7,,._ · l:4~PIII M.Ot•tMttt0 A1101cl C~1,fRU 1 0.00/Mtl( ().00 ... ...! 

l:14177UtJ 
. 

.~7r},H.wl9 ,B~lSt'.M,6 a:~•·9·l4JW UlQ..IAI.Mt(l'©AuOIO o,i F•u 

I 

1 ,. •• 
0,0<>/MIIJ .... .... ,..,. -

1konU, 000,Y ':li"7Yh""'•W ...,t~ ,.,..,. ~i~"\f[-,If,hi'({f/<'- ••• 
.....wM .::::-,,,.j.~ 1n..,-1, 18'J').t4)698 ~3lill·t0404M ...,_0,1111.Mm® "'-»Im> !HH,fllH - ..., .oo 

~ - 111•ntl111 ,n~1s9',~ • f•$4AM • tO:t.0- jGlo«•iMt-o~iA:.io•o MIW 0.00• ~~F•it 
• 
--

f•·"" ... i~· I 
•-:,...::..;,c. 11)4/lOl!) 186))2,t;,.!)B 1016.hl 10 HAM :..,o•.w.Mu.--Auom i.flfU -- .... ... 

I I I,v """" 

https://j,(QfAt.MU


Fuqua Janllorllll 8eMcas Invoice4r· 5962 Murphy Road 
Bartow, FL 33830 
(863) 651-9348FUQUh 

81.LTO 8HIPTO 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. 940 ORCHID GROVE BLVD. 
ORLANDO, FL 32817 DAVENPORT, FL 33837 

INVOIOEf ', DATE . TOTM. DUE IIIJED,\11! Tl!Ala 
- - , __ ;, -- _, , -L ' 

7865 08/15/2019 .. ·• $1,105.00 09/14/2019 Net30 

cm ;oescRll'i1oN NET PRICE EXT PRICE 
, 

13 AUGUST CLUBHOUSE CLEANING 85.00 1,105.00 

BALANCE DUE $1,105.00 

Thank you for your businessI 

https://1,105.00
https://1,105.00
https://1,105.00


Invoice/ Setvice Ticket# 191111975 
Account# 33267192DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH CDD Drkln, 148-wlNTER HAVEN, FL 
Balance 0940 ORCHID GROVE BLVD :MOORECKERHWY 

DAVENPORT, FL 33837 WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 1957 Current Svc $93.59 
Tax $6.56(407) 723-5900 Home (800) 329-3201 PEST CONTROL DOWN TO ASOENCE." Total Amt Due $100.15Ucense # 6273 
Amt collected 0 

Customer Since: 2019 Bobby Green Rt# 148-82 BOBBY GREEN Paymen1 Type 
License#Date of Sen,lce 08/13/2019 

Time In 08/13/2019 12:56 PM Time Dul 08/13120191 38 PM 

PC Standard • Monlhly, PC 1st SeMce 

Pesticide Product Labels Are 
Available Upon Request 

Setvicas Provided
ITHANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS 

Genera1 Comments
IP1aced a protection bea1ment oo the inside and place granules on 1he outside of pool area 

Product Application Detail& (Consumer post appllcafion .,.....utlonary statements on back) 

Active Ingredient APP Method App EauiD Jaraet Pest(s} Locatf()n 
Product: PHANTOM TERMITIC!DE - QTY: 0.5 GALLON (s) Chlorfenapyr 21.45% EXTERIOR Compressed Ants, Cockroaches Common Area(s) 

INSECTICIDE SPRAY(1 OZ Sprayer 
Formulation: Liquid EPA#: 241-392 PER GALLON 
App Rate: General Pests - 3 oz per gal = LOT#: 2470 PERSQF) 

.50% dilution I applied at rate of 

1.2 oz of dilution per 2 sqfl: 

Product: INTICE 10 PERIMETER BAIT QTY: 5 POUNO(S) ORTHOBORIC ACID 10% Broadcast Centro Bulb Ants, Cockroaches Building Perimeter (insect 
Ouster control) 

Formulation; Granular EPA#: 73079-6 
_ApPRate: 1 pound per 1000 sqft LOT#: 

Product Used 
Zone Name ~ erw1ygtBm1 6llll!illli 
Door (Frame) lnspeclion PHANTOM TERMmCIDE • 0.5 GALLON (s) 

INSECTICIDE 
Door (Frame) Inspection INTICE 10 PERIMETER BAIT 5POUND(S) 

Station / Room Summary 

itillm!I Scheduled Wjlh Agiyity ~ Reotaced li.l!ilZl!!l!I Bemoved Emf Tm.II 
Area Inspection 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 

Printed: 08/13/20191:38 PM National Poison Control Center. 1w800-222~1222 Page: 1 

CO - Commercial applicators are licensed by the Colorado Department of Agriculture For additional information, a copy of the Label and/or SOS may 

AZ- Warning - Peetlcldes can be harmful. Keep children and pets away front pesticide 8Pl>llca1ions unfil dry, be requesled from your local branch or from www orkin,com. 

dissipated, or aerated. For mono Information, contact Drkin Pest Control - C4029BCD at 1-800-348-7548 Item# SVPC1026iOS rev. :J-5.13 



DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH CDD Orkin, 148.wlNTER HAVEN, FL Invoice / Service Tld<el # 191111975 
940 ORCHID GROVE BLVD 3400 RECKER HWY Account# 33267192 
DAVENPORT, FL 33837 WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 1957 Da18 of Service 08/13/2019 
(407)72W900Home (800) 329-3201 Time In 08/13/201912:56 PM 

PEST CONTROL DOWN TO ASOENCl" 
Ucense II 6273 Time 0ut 08/13/20191:38 PM 

:2pne Name ·········· ········ ···· Numbe[~~Desgi~-ption----------ea-1egory-----------=-Sta-.,.---~B-G_m_n__________ 

J)oor(Frame) .... ··-----·· 1 lnspecli<ln _________Added lnltialSetup 

z- Summary 
Zone Name 
Door (Frame) 

Corrvpents t!ill! 
y 

Scheduled 
0 

ln1peg1ftd 
1 

With Activity 
0 

No Actjyjty 
1 

Station , Room .. Add, Replace, Skip, and Remove Detail 

CUSTOMER SIGNATURE, SIGNATURE NOT ENTERED CUSTOMER NAME: 
CUSTOMER EMAIL: 

If you experience pest issues between scheduled visits, we will ._- and addraas the problem at no • This work has been perfolmed to my satisfaction 
additional charge. 

Remit To: Orkin, 148-wlNTER HAVEN, FL 
3400 RECKER HWY 
WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 1957 

Printed: 08/13/20191:38 PM National Poison Control Center. 1 "800-222-1222 

CO - Commercial appHcators are licensed by the Colorado Department of Agriculture 

A2 - Warning - Pesticides can be harmful. Keep chlldr.n and pets wway from pesticide applications until dry, 
dissipated, or aerated, For more lnfomlatlon, contact Orkin Pest Control - C4029BCD at 1-800-346-75441 

Page:2 

For additional information. a copy of lhe Label and/or SOS may 

be requested from your local branch or from www ark.in.com. 

Item# SVPC1026iOS rev. 05.13 

https://ark.in.com


CONSUMER NOTIFICATION(Sl I POST APPLICATION STATEMENTS 

Treated Area(sl • Do not allow unprotected person(s), children, or pets to touch, enter or replace items or bedding, to contact or enter treated area(s) until dry. 
VentllationlRIOCGUpying - Vacate and keep area(sl closed up to 30 minutes after ~ealrnent, then ventilate area(s) wel for up to 2 hours before reoccupying. 
Equipment/Processing/Food - Thoroughly wash dishes, utensHs, food preparation/processing -lpment and surfaces with an elfectJve claanlng compound and rinse 
with clean water ff not removed or coverad during -tment. This area should be odor rrea befora food prcducts are placed in the area. 
Exterior Applications (baits) - Do not allow grazing of feed, lawn or sod clippings to livestoek after ball applications. 

Granular Applicatlon(sl - Do not water to the point of run off. 
Do not bum trested fire wood for one month after treatment. 

National Polson COnlrol Center 1-aoo.222-1222 

Printed: 08/13/20191:38 PM National Poison Control Genie, 1 800 222 1222 Page:3 
CO - Commercial applicators are licensed by the Colorado Department of Agriculture For additional information, a copy of the Label and/or SOS may 

AZ- Warning - l'Hticldes can be hannlul. K- children and pets away from pesticlda applications until dry, be requested from your local branch or from www.otkin.com. 

dlssipatad, or aaral8d. For mars information, contact Orkin Pest Control - C4029BCD at 1-800-346-7548 llem # SVPC 1026iOS rev 05 13 



DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Payment Authorization FY 19 #21 
8/26/2019 

Item Payee Invoice General 
No. Number Fund 

FY19 

1 A&R Contracting & Cleaning, LLC 
Delivered Trash Cans for Pool area and bathrooms 2546 $ 125.00 

2 Business Observer 
Legal Advertising - 3/14/19 19-00373K $ 50.31 
Legal Advertising - 4/11/19 19-00592K $ 50.31 
Legal Advertising - 5/15/19 19-00820K $ 50.31 
Legal Advertising - 6/19/19 published 5/17 /19 19-00924K $ 122.50 
Legal Advertising -6/19/19 published 6/7/19 19-01070K $ 50.31 
Legal Advertising - 7/24/19 19-01189K $ 761.26 
Legal Advertising -8/21/19 19-01451K $ 50.31 

3 PFM Group Consulting, LLC 
August 2019 Website Fee DM-08-2019-0017 $ 75.00 
August 2019 District Management Fee DM-08-2019-0016 $ 1,666.67 
July 2019 Postage and Copies OE-EXP-00338 $ 190.80 

TOTAL $3,192.78 

Secretary I Assistant Secretary 



A&RConncllng & C1111dng, LLC Invoice 
2061 9th Lane NE 
Winter Haven, FL 33881 
863-582-6202 
alvarezandramlrez@omall.com

A 
AIR conttactlna I Claaldnl. UC 

BILL TO 
PFM Group Consulting LLC 
ORCHID GROVE CDD 
DAVENPORT RD 
12051 Corporate Blvd. I Orlando, FL 
32817 

INVOICEt DATE TOTAi.DUE DUE DATE TERMS ENCLOSED 

2546 08/22/2019 $125.00 09/21/2019 Net30 

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT 

U•rlll and labor 1 125.00 125.00 
DELIVERED 6 TRASH CANS 
4 THROUGH OUT THE POOL DECK WITH TRAH BAGS 1 IN 
EACH BATHROOM TOTAL OF 2 WITH TRASH BAGS 

BALANCE DUE $125.00 

mailto:alvarezandramlrez@omall.com


Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd Aoor 
Sarasota, FL 34236INVOICE 

Legal Advertising 

Invoice # 19-0037JK Date 03/01/2019 

Attn: Please make checks payable to: 
PFM Group Consulting LLC (Please note Invoice# on check) 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. !luslness Observer 
ORLANDO FL 32817 1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

Description Amount 
Serial # 19-00373K $50.31
Meeting Notice 
RE: Notice of Board of Supervisors' Meeting to be held on March 14, 2019 at 
9:30AM 
Published: 3/1/2019 

important Message Paid () 
Total $50.31 

Payment Is expected within 30 days of the 
first publication date of your notice. 

A-on: II you are ■ government agency and you believe lh■t~u■llfy for ■ 15% dlacount to Iba aecond ln■artlon of 
your notice per F.S. r■Ylllon 50.081, plNN lnfonn Boothroyd dlr■ctly ■t 941-908-n&e x323. 

,-- . ------ ---- - - - - - . - - NOTICE ---, 

ITho Business Observer makes every errort to ensun,: that ita public notice advertisin& is accwate and in full complianco with all applicable statutes and ordinancn and J 
: that its information is correct. Nevertbeleu, we ask that our advertisers scrutinize published tds carefully and alert us immedialely to any mora 10 that we may corm;t 

t________________ them as soon as possible. We cannot accept ~~li!Y for mistakes beyond bearing the cost of repubhsbmg advertisements lhat contain errors_______ -----✓ 



Business Observer 
1970 Main Strcct 

3rd Floor 

INVOICE 
Legal Advertising 

Invoice # 19-00592K 

Attn: 
PFM Group Consulting LLC 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. 
ORLANDO FL 32817 

Description 
Serlal # 19-00592K 

Sarasota, Fl.. 34236 

Please make checks payable to: 
(Please note Invoice # on check)
Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 
3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

Notice of Board of Supervisors' Meeting 
RE: Davenport Road South Community Meeting on April 11, 2019 at 9:30 am 
Published: 3/29/2019 

Important Message Paid 
Total 

Date 03/29/2019 

Amount 
$50.31 

() 

$50.31 
Payment la expected within 30 days of the 

first publlcatlon date of your notice. 

Att.ntlon: H you are a go11t1mmenl ._.,, 1111d you believe that you quality tor ■ 15% dllCOUnt to th■ NCOnd ln11811lon of 
your notlC■ per F.S. ...i11on 50.081, plaue lnfonn Krlet■n Boothroyd dll9Clly at 941-90&-9388 x323. 

(,--------- NOTICE --

iThe Business Observer makes CVIJY effort to ensure that ill public notice advertising is accurate and 1n full compliance with all apphcable swutes and ordinances and 
1that its infonnalion is comet Nevertheless. we ask lhat our advertisers scrutinize published ads carefully and alert u, 1_mmcdiatcly to any errors so that we may correct 
\.... _____ _ them u soon u possible. We cannot attept responsibility for mistakes beyond bcarin1 the cost of rcpubhsbing advertaements that cont.am errors 



Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rdAoor 
Sarasota, FL 34236INVOICE 

Legal Advertising 

Invoice# 19-00820K Date 05/03/2019 

Attn: Please make checks payable to: 
PFM Group Consulting LLC (Please note Invoice II on check)
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. Business Observer 
ORLANDO FL 32617 1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

Description Amount 
Serlal # 19-00620K $50.31
Notice of Meeting 
RE: Meeting on May 15, 2019 at 9:30 a.m. for Davenport Road South 
Community Development District 
Published: 5/3/2019 

Important Message Paid () 
Total $50.31 

Payment Is expected wHhln 30 days of the 
first publlcatlon date of your notice. 

Attention: H you are ■ government -ncy and you btlleve that you qualify tor a 15% dlacounl to Iha HCOnd lnNrllon or 
your nolfce p,,r F.S. ...talon 50.081, please lnlonn Krtaten looU11oyd dl111C11y at 941-906-9388 "323. 

( ~ ~ 
I The Business Observer makes every effon to en.sure that 1tJ public notice advcrtismg ts accurate and m full compliance with all applicable atalutes and ordinances and IIthat its infonnat.i.on is comet. Nevel1helcss, we ask that our adverusers scrutmize cbli•bed ads carefully and alert U& immediately to any erron so that we may conect I 
\_ them as soon as poss1ble. We cannot accept -~~bili~y for mistakes yond bearing the cost of republishing adv~~~_contain mu, _) 

https://infonnat.i.on


Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd floor 
Sarasota. FL 34236INVOICE . 
n,11 nn..- n-,.o, _.,,,,.,,,.,Legal Advertising 

Invoice # 19-00924K Date 05/17/2019 

Attn: Please make checks payable to: 
PFM Group Consulting LLC (Please note Invoice # on check)
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. Su$1ness Observer 
ORLANDO FL 32817 1970 Mllln Sireet 

3rd Roor 
Sarasota, FL 34288 

Description Amount 
Serial I 19-00924K $122.50
Meeting Notice 
RE: Davenport Public Hearing on June 19, 2019 at 9:30 am 
Published: 5/17/2019 

Paid 0 
Total $122.50 

Payment Is expected within 30 days of the 
flrat publication date of your notice. 

Altelll!an: II you.,. •oo-nt-andyou --youqll!IIIIJ tor a15% discount to IINt aecond-on of 
your notice 11111' F.S. lmllo1I tl0,081, ptaau-,mKn- -hro,ddlnlclly at1141-3" X323, 

Th< ll......., Obmvermakeuv,ryeffortto _,. lhat its poblie ~c•adv=~--andinlllll--•:::;~cable-Md:~......, and 
that ita infonnatioa isconect. Nevmbtleu. wt uk flw ®radvatisen scruti~ pubtuhed tdl c:mfully ,md, alirt ua imt'fttdiately to any eaors JO &hat we may C<Ut'ffl 

~ '··. themassoonupossible. We c..nnotacccptiupomibiUty formhukes beyond ~n&tbceollof~.~~~~~~Rel\'QD . / 



Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, PL 34236INVOICE 

•n,i t nnr n-,o, _.,,..,.
Legal Advertising 

Invoice# 19.01070K Date 06/07/2019 

Attn: Amanda Lane Please make checks payable to: 
PFM Group Consulting LLC (Please note Invoice II on check)
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. Business Observer 
ORLANDO FL 32817 1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34238 

Description Amount 
Serial # 19-01070K $50.31 
P.O.IRef.# Davenport Road 

Meeting Notice 
RE: Meeting for Davenport Road June 19, 2019 at 9:30pm
Published: 6/7/2019 

Important Message Paid () 

Total $50.31 
Payment Is expected within 30 days ot the 

first publication date of your notice. 

Attention: If you are a government agancy and you believe that you qualify lor a 15"' dlacount to the sacond lnaartlon ol 
your notice per F.S. revtalon 50.061, plHH Inform Krlalen Boothroyd cllnlctlf al 941-9388 x323. 

( .. .. . NOTICE ·,,, 
IThe Business Observer makes every effort to CJISW"C that its public notice advcrtis~·nis aCCUBtc and mfun compliance with all applicable statutes and ordinances and I
Ithat. its information 11 correct. ~everthelea. we ask lhat ou,. ad~ertisers ~linize ishcd ~ careruny and alert us immediately to any errors ao thal we may cortect I 
''~----~-- them u soon as passable. We ~-ot ac~ mpooa1billty for nu~ ond bearing ~e cost of repubhabtng advffll~ that contain mun j 



Business Observer 
1970 Main Stmll 

3rd floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236INVOICE 

Legal Advertising 

Invoice # 19-01189K Date 06/28/2019 

Attn: Please make checks payable to: 
PFM Group Consulting LLC (Please note ln\/Olce # on check)
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. Business Observer 
ORLANDO FL 32817 1970 Mein Street 

SrdFloor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

Description Amount 
Serial I 19-01189K $761.26
Notice of Meeting 
RE: Davenport Road South Community Meeting on July 24, 2019 at 9:30 am 
Published: 6/28/2019, 7/5/2019 

Paid () 
Total $761.28 

Payment la expected within so daya of the 
flrat publication date of your notice. 

_, llyou -•---oy--~-y,,uql!Jlilfylora11%111..,.,..nltolhe-llltffllon of
_,IIO!lceperf.S.-• 50.001, plNNlnfoml Kmten Boolllroyd-, 111941--.93811 xS23. 

t NOTICI! \ 
'I Tht-Obmvcf llll'bJov,ry dfort"1 ....,...,. .,publ«,-cc~1,"'aec"""'aml in full~ wl111 all appllcabl•-1"'1-md

titJinf:n::m~~~~;:~~,s~:~~~i.;t~;~~~~~::;~=-1~! 



Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd floor 
Sarasota, Fl. 34236INVOICE 

Legal Advertising 

Invoice# lll-014S1K Date 08/09/2019 

Attn: Please make checks payable to: 
PFM Group Consulting LLC (Please note Invoice # on check)
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. Business Observer 
ORLANDO FL 32817 1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

Description Amount 
Serlal # 19-01451K $50.31 
Notice of Meeting 
RE: Meeting on August 21, 2019@ 9:45 AM for Davenport Road South 
Community
Published: 8/9/2019 

Paid () 

Total $50.31I -_·Impo_rta_•·~ -= 
Payment Is expected within 30 days of the 

first publication date of your notice. 

Attantlon: II you .,.a government •-CJand you bellove that you qualify for a 16% dlocount to the HCCHld lnoerllon of 
your n-per F.S, rovi.ton 60,091, plono lnlonn Krlotan Boothroyd dlroclly II 941-908-93H x323. 

r··· ...................... ...... . . ..... NOTICE ............ '· 

IThe _Business Observer makes CVCIJ effort to cnsW'e that Us public nouce advertiSJn& ls eccutate and in full compliance with _all applicable statutes and ordinances and 
that Ill inlonnation is correct, Nevenhelen, we ask thal our adverosen scrubmze published ads can:fully and alert us immediately to any mon so that we may corTCCt

l___ them as soon as ~ble:_'!~-~ot accept responsibility for mistake• beyond ~ the cost of republishmg adverusements that conwn errors j 



pfm 

BIIITo: 

Davenport South Road Community Development 
District 
c/o PFM Group Consulllng Oislrlct Accounting 
D-rtmentA
12051 Corporate BlvdA
Orlando, FL 32817 
Jnited Slates of America 

Remittance Options: 

Via ACH C9cetftrmd); llll..lYlm. 

RE: Website Fee - August, 2019 

Total Amount Due 

Dale 

A,musl 22, 2019 

Pa-t Terms 

Upon Receipt 

Companv Address: 

1735 Markel Street 
43rd Floor 
Philedelphla. PA 19103 
•1 (215) 567-6100 

Federal Tax ID: 81-1642478 

-

PFM Group Consulting LLC 
PO Box65126 
BalHmore. MD 21264-5126 
Um1ed States of America 

Invoice Number 

DM-08-2019-0017 

Due Date 

Augusl 22, 2019 

RECEIVED AUG 2 3 2019 

of 1 



 

• 

. ...... ., .. 

Cf'-d) 
n:\0 

r7 
/ 

{J \0..J 
/'v 

Date Invoice Number 

Augusl 22, 2019 DM-08-2019-0016 

Pa-Herms Dua Date 

Upon Recelpl August 22, 2019 pfm 

BlltTo: 

avenport South Road Community Development 
istrict 
o PFM Group Consulling District Accountmg 

artment 
12051 Corporate Blvd 

rlando, FL 32817 
nited States of America 

Remittance Options: 

YJa ACH ); {prefermd llla..Wi.ll; 

RE: District Management -Augi..st, 2019 

Total Amount Due 

Com•on•-: 

1735 Markel Street 
43rd Floor 
Phliedelphia PA 19103 
+1 (215) 567-6100 

Federal Tax ID: 81-1642478 

llJJLMalJ;_ 

PFM Group Consulting LLC 

PO Box65126 
Ballimore, MO 21264-5126 
United States of America 

S186167 

RECEIVED AUG 2 3 0192 

1 of 1 



I I ,.- I 
Date Invoice Number 

Auaust 22, 2019 OE-EXP-00338 

Payment Tenns Due Date 

Upon Receipt Aurn•st 22, 2019 pfm 

BIHTo: 

1735 Market Street 
43rd Floor Davenport South Road Community Development 
PMadelphia, PA 19103 Oislrict 
+1 (215) 567-6100 c/o PFM Group consulting District Accounting 

Department 
Federal Tax ID: 61-1642478 12051 Corporate Blvd 

O�ando, FL 32617 
1nited States of America 

Remittance Options: 

Yil ACH (OrAfQasd)· llliLWIDI: � 

PFM Group Consultlng LLC PFM Group Consulting LLC 

PO Box65126 
Balllmore, MO 21264-5126 
United States of Amenca 

RE: July 2019 Postage - $94 20 
July 2019 Coples - $96 60 

Total Amount Due 

RECEIVED AUG 2 2 2019 

1 of 1 



p<tneyb<Mes • 

Meter Detalls 

L · <iiiilii ::: '• . I ... 
CR.Nl)O,Fl 

otltANOO, ,~ 

'"--· .... .. . . 
Oov ... port !load So<,tl, coo 

-

Account Summary Report 
Date Ran,.: July 1, 2011 lo July 31, 2019 
Meter Group: Alf Meters 
Metet 1WOO • 1376538 OLD at ORLANDO, Fl 
Met.er 4WOO • 0347354 at ORl.AND0

1 
FL 

&diriii TfYS f ' -C ·--j 
"IWOO • Ol473S4 0347354 2'1978170 

lWOO • 1376518 01.P 1376538 

Account summary 

-- ....... 



Copy Count 

Account: _ ____,:(n~\e't.,;....i\3?...::.~;...__;_;;.:.;......:'3::..:..ovtlh~--
Amount of Copies: _ ___;(o;:;_4_4.;______ 

Total $: _9_1o.:...l,lo~():.,________ 

Month: July 2019 



DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Payment Authorization FY 19 #22 
9/9/2019 

Item 
No. 

Payee Invoice 
Number 

General 
Fund 
FY19 

1 A&R Contracting & Cleaning, LLC 
Hurricane Prep 2558 $ 120.00 

2 State of Florida Department of Health 
Pool Permit 53-BID-4384273 $ 280.00 

3 Hopping Green & Sams 
District Counsel through 7/31/19 109376 $ 2,562.37 

4 Navitas Credit Corp 
Playground Equipment Lease $ 1,722.66 

5 PFM Group Consulting, LLC 
ADA Website Compliance Fee oe-exp-00382 $ 500.00 

TOTAL $5,185.03 

Secretary/ Assistant Secretary 



A& R Ooi•idlng I.Cln1:l11g, l.LC Invoice 
2061 91h lane NE 
Winier Haven, FL 33881 
863-582-6202 
alvarezandramirez@gmall.com

A 
A11 Cllllr8Cllnl I Cl8llllna. UC 

SIU.TO 
PFM Group Consulting UC 
Oav81lport rd cdd 
12051 Corporate Blvd. I Orlando, FL 
32817 

INVOICE# · DATE · TOTAI.OU!i DUEDAT!i TERMS ENCLOSED 

2558 08/30/2019 . $120.00 09/29/2019 Net30 

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT 

1 120,00 120.00Labar 
Hurricane prep 
removing all pool patio fumhure 

BALANCE DUE $120.00 

mailto:alvarezandramirez@gmall.com


ldeulllcelion Number. 53-60-18711331 

For: SW!IIV!lql POolS Publlo Pool > 25000 Galonl 

To: -portRolldlOuth COO 
12ll!l1 Corpoma Blvd 
Ortando, FL 32817 

State of Florida 
Department of Health 

Notification of Faes Due 

Bll1ng Code: 1!3-BID-4384273 
Fee.Amount: $280.00 

PailnMlnl Due 07l01'2019 Upon IIIAlcelpl 

[Pl- d8lach thi. portion and nacum with your payment] 

PleeN YICJfy lfl lnfpn'Nptl!Mlr m,wlng chrlrn" nr;ppgr, llign and return to l!nYll'OHfflRII llrYJa, lldPW 

Accounl lnfom1allon for: Gll-80-1879331 
Facility Name: 
Location Add,- 1: 
Location Addraa 2: 
City: 
8111111: 
Zlpc«J&: 

OWnerNllme: 
0wnlll'~1: 
Owner Ai:knu 2: 
OwnerClly. 
owner SIiia: 
Owner Z1I> Code: 
W011(Pllone: 
Home Phone: 

Ordlld Grove 1'001 
940 Clrchld BMI 

Devenport 
FL 
33837 

Davenf)ort Road South coo 
12051 Corponlle Blvd 
Olla1do, FL 32817 
Orlando 
FL 
32817 

(407) 382-6238 

~ 

County Malllnel Atldma 1: 
Counlv MalllnA Addl'IIW 2: 
County Mallno Clly. 
County MalllnQ stni: 
CountvMallin!IZIP Code: 

Facllty Conllcl Nlllllfl: 
Woll<Pllone: 
Home: PhOne: 

~ 

Hetllth OMtlcn • Aecount-C<lPYI 

State of Florida 
Department of Health 

2090E~St 

FL -
33830 

DIIYenport Roal! South coo 

('407} 382-5238 

Notification of F8H Due 

53-80-1879331 Bmllll Code: 63-BID-43114273 
For: SwlmmlnQ Poola Publlc Pool> 2llOOO Gallono Fee Amoool: $280.00 

To: DawnpCM1 Road SOutll CDD 
12061 Corporate Blvd 
Olfando, FL 321117 

Total AmoLllt Due: $280.00 
Pevment Due G7I01/201t Upon~ 

~ ra!I.Wn lhe enln bollom pcllfonwlfh ,.,...payment. Thatop polllon (only)- bl -foryour-. 
~Oh-c.tartng &AccotrltlngCopyJ 

l'Mslnvolce 



Hopping Green & Sams 
Allomeys and Counselois 

119 s. Monroe Skeet, S1e. aoo 
P.O. Bo,c 6526 

Talahassee, R. 32314 
850.222.7500 

================================= STATEMENT================================= 
August 22, 2019 

Davenport Road South Community Development Bill Number 109376 
District Billed through 07/31/2019 
c/o PFM Group Consulting LLC 
12051 Corporate Blvd. 
Orlando, FL 32817 

General Counsel 
DRSCDD 00001 RVW 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
07/01/19 RVW Review documents for agenda. 0.40 hrs 

07/11/19 AHJ Finalize agenda items; transmit same to Gaarlandt. 0.30 hrs 

07/22/19 AHJ Confer with Patll regarding affidavits of publication for malled and published 
notices. 

0.10 hrs 

07/23/19 MKR Prepare for and travel to board meeting; review agenda Items; confer with 
Glasgow and Gaarlandt regarding same. 

2.70 hrs 

07/23/19 AHJ Confer with Gaarlandt regarding agenda Items. 0.20 hrs 

07/24/19 MKR Prepare for and attend board meeting; return travel. 1.80 hrs 

07/24/19 AHJ Prepare agreement regarding special events; confer with Patil regarding 
executed agenda Items. 

0.50 hrs 

07/25/19 MKR Follow-up from board meeting; prepare license agreement regarding special 
events on district property. 

1.80 hrs 

07/31/19 MCE Research new law regarding new definition of "home address" and property 
appraiser objections to confidential Information In assessment rolls; prepare 
memorandum to district manager regarding same. 

0.10 hrs 

07/31/19 MKR Research status of amenities improvement conveyance; prepare documents 
regarding same. 

2.20 hrs 

Total fees for this matter $2,402.50 

DISBURSEMENTS 
Document Reproduction 
Travel 
Travel - Meals 

45.50 
110.13 

4.24 

Total disbursements for this matter $159.87 



General Counsel BIii No. 109376 Page 2 

MAmR SUMMARY 

Jaskolski, Amy H. • Paralegal 1.10 hrs 145 /hr $159.50 
Eckert, Michael C. 0.10 hrs 365 /hr $36.50 
Rigoni, Michelle K. 8.50 hrs 245 /hr $2,082.50 
Van Wyk, Roy 0.40 hrs 310 /hr $124.00 

TOTAL FEES $2,402.50 
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $159.87 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER $2,562.37 

BILUNG SUMMARY 

Jaskolski, Amy H. - Paralegal 1.10 hrs 145 /hr $159.50 
Eckert, Michael C. 0.10 hrs 365 /hr $36.50 
Rigoni, Michelle K. 8.50 hrs 245 /hr $2,082.50 
Van Wyk, Roy 0.40 hrs 310 /hr $124.00 

TOTAL FEES $2,402.50 
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $159.87 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL $2,562.37 

Please include the bill number on vour check. 



e"\ HAVIT,U CHDIT coR,.•w A UNIUD C0M...t,UJtflf1' t,uu: C0M,ANY 

201 EXECUTIVE CENTER OR., SUITE 100 
COLUMBIA. SC 29210 

Relum SerAc6 ~led 

Invoice Date: 08/24/2019 

lf"l3&DDDIIO't PAl:SORT P9P800'i <lb 

ii..1lhhh,...,~ '1M111Ip1111.I~I'II• ,,11111,I•hI,111 •I .. I 
M DAVENPORT AOAO SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOP 
l:ISI ACCOIMTS PAYABlE: 

12061 CORPORATE Ill.VO 
ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 

□□□ 4 □ 53 □ 9242 □ 19 □ 824 □□□□ 1722bbb 

Remittance Section 
Contract Number: 
Du&Date: 
Amount Due: 

Amount Enclosed: 

40530924 
9/16/2019 
$1,722.66 

$□□□□□DD□ 
□ - - "- tt Y<"'·-hu changed.PIOvlde NWadli'llu on nmlf'ff lk:». 

uae encloled envelope end meJ<e - peyallle 1o 

NAVITAS CREDIT CORP. 
PO BOX 935204 
ATLANTA, OA 311935204 

111111,111I,111h h 111,,I1.,1,.,,,.1,111111....•I',1111 •hII'I'll 

. KHp-ponionlotycu,7-~rffi·Pt~•;"r'irttum!!!!!~ffi~~-fiJ~~F,auiPiiiiNFfiiii!ici!iiiiiii5iN7e,',\ HAVITAS CRIDIT co11,. I DUI! DATE I CONTRACT NO. EalllPMi:n, ··-··'W •IUIITID COMMUHlfl U.NI C0MP,OIY 9/15/2019 40530924 PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT 

Your Opinion Mau.r.t Cllck bllow; let ue know how we are doing. CUSTOMl!R NAIii! 
bDP§J/enga® llflYlllW1"dJ "®1§111tf1°C1iflc·Sur@ DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COMMUNITY 

PH:888-9= 

•IllImportant Messages 

NAVfTA8 ■
ADVANTAGE •Introducing Ille NIYIIII Customer Adnntap Progrm ■ 

N. N.-, ~--Ao aWluod CUlllonW, your company IWlomatlcalty qudlles for our-•••• ■ 
lqlliplMnt l'll••llng Program. Start onjoylng 1111q1Jo wvlcN and~ prlcflll deelgrlOd to make financing ■ 

■ 
,. Automlllc Pre-Apprc,,wo ,. Speolll FWlnClr1g Piograms ----· 
.. Payment Lock-In .. App-....~Approvals ■ 
.. lowNIPaymen!OUorlntN .. -8uppcrt ■ 
• Bonus Wor1dng Capbl • ~ l.oclllor Service 

Conlnand More lonowlng Power WIIII N11Yltal 

To learn more about our Advantage Program emett dlhomeaOnavilascnldl.com. 

CONTRACT DIii! PAYMl!HT SAU!S/ LATE INSURANCE OTHER TOTAL
DESCRIPTIONNUMBER DATE AMOUNT USE TAX CHARGE CHARO!& CHARQl!S AMOUNT 

40530924-1 Contract Payment 09115/2019 $1,625.73 $96.93 $1,722.66 

SUBTOTALS: Sl,825.73 $96.93 $1,722.66 

l)eAl!l 1 of 2 

https://1,722.66
https://Sl,825.73
https://1,722.66
https://1,625.73
https://dlhomeaOnavilascnldl.com
https://1,722.66


 

; 

I 

T
erms

 

A
u

nu
5 t

 26
, 2

0
19

 
p

fm
 

D
a
te

 
lnwk:e

 Nu
m

ber
 

A
ugu

st
 2

6,
 20

19
 

O
E

-E
X

P
-00

3
82

Du
e

D
e
te

 

U
po

n
 R

ecei
pt

 

Bi
l 
T

o
: 

av
en

po
rt

 S
ou

th
 R

oad
 comm

u
n

ity
 D

ev
el

op
men

t 
ia

tr
ic

t
o 

P
F

M
 G

ro
u

p
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 D
is

tri
ct

 A
tcOUn

ting
6

p
a

rtm
e

nt
12

05
1

C
orpo

ra
te

 B
lv

d 
11a

ndo
, F

L
 3

2
81

7
 

fAm
e

ric
a

R
em

itt
an

ce
 O

p
ti

o
n

s
: 

Va
ACM

(£nftmtd
t

R
E

: 
A

D
A

 W
eb

si
te

 Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

Fe
e 

T
o

ta
l A

m
o

u
nt

 D
u

e 

17
3

5
 M

arl<
et

 S
tr

ee
t 

4
3

rd
 F

loor
 

P
hi

la
d

el
ph

ia
, 

P
A

 1
9

103
 

+
1 

(2
15

) 
55

7-
6

100
6

F
ed

er
a

l T
ax

 ID
: 8

1-
164

24
7

8
 

llla.Mall:.
 

P
F

M
 G

ro
u

p 
C

o
ns

ul
tin

g 
LL

C
 

P
O

 B
ox

6
5

t2
6 

B
a

lti
m

or
e

, M
D

 2
12

64
·5

12
6

 
U

n
ited

 S
ta

te
s

 o
f A

m
er

ica
 

R
F
C
E
IV

E
O
 A

U
G 

2 
6 

20
19

 

1 
of

 
1 



DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Payment Authorization FY 19 #23 
9/16/2019 

Item Payee 
No. 

1 Board Meeting 
Rennie Heath August 21, 2019 Meeting 
Scott Shapiro August 21, 2019 Meeting 
Lauren Schwenk August 21, 2019 Meeting 
Patrick Marone August 21, 2019 Meeting 
Andrew Rhinehart August 21, 2019 Meeting 

2 Business Observer 
Legal Advertising 9/6/19 
Legal Advertising 9/6/19 

3 City of Davenport 
Pool Water 8/5-9/5 

4 Complete Pool Care 
October 2019 Pool Maintenance 

5 Creative Association Services, Inc. 
September 2019 Landscape Maintenance 

6 Duke Energy 
97796 57 410 000 Davenport Blvd Lite. 
34486 92325 1420 South Blvd W Lite 

57014 95486 Ludisia Loop Street Lite 
66995 79547 940 Orchid Grove Blvd 
97970 13229 1534 South Blvd Lite 
97883 80299 101 Sandestin Dr Entrance Wall 

7 Fuqua Janitorial Services 
September 2019 Clubhouse Cleaning 

8 Orkin 
September 2019 Pest Control 

9 Southeast Wrlrlng Solutions, Inc. 
Downpayment on Camera System 

Secretary I Assistant Secretary 

Invoice 
Number 

19-01909K 
19-01608K 

3365 

13255 

6256 

9.2019 
9.2019 
9.2019 
9.2019 
9.2019 
9.2019 

7891 

20204726 

Subtotal per FY 
Total 

General 
Fund 
FY19 

$ 200.00 
$ 200.00 
$ 200.00 
$ 200.00 
$ 200.00 

$ 63.44 
$ 50.31 

$ 28.73 

$ 2,390.00 

$ 1,325.70 
$ 16.46 
$ 24.41 
$ 1,174.54 
$ 16.46 
$ 14.58 

$ 935.00 

$ 48.15 

$ 4,580.00 

$11,667.78 
$13,192.78 

General 
Fund 
FY20 

$ 1,525.00 

$1,525.00 

https://1,525.00
https://1,525.00
https://13,192.78
https://11,667.78
https://4,580.00
https://1,174.54
https://1,325.70
https://2,390.00


Davenport Road South Community Development District 

Date of Meeting: August 21, 2019 

Board Members: Attendance Fee 

1. Rennie Heath X $200 

2. Scott Shapiro X (p) $200 

3. Lauren Schwenk X $200 

4. Patrick Marone X $200 

5. Andrew Rhinehart X $200 

$1,000 

Approved For Payment: 

~~C~Manar 

°' I \'J. / , f:\ 
Date ' ' 



----

Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236INVOICE 
l"'\A t nn,r .rv'tnr' ..,,,..,...Legal Advertising 

Invoice # 19-01609K Date 09/06/2019 

Attn: Rule Development for Davenport Road/Amanda Lane 
PFM Group Consulting LLC 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. 

Please make checks payable to: 
(Please note Invoice# on check) 
Business Observer 

ORLANDO FL 32817 1970 Main Street 
3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

Description Amount 
'Serial# 19·01609K 
Notice of Rule Development 

$63.44 I 

RE: Intention to Develop Amended and Restated Rules for Davenport Road 
South 
Published: 9/6/2019 

e 

Important Messag_e____,,j Paid f () 
Total =====$=63:.=4=4==== 

Payment Is expected within 30 days of the 
first publication date of your notice. 

Attention: If you are a government agency and you believe that you qualify for a 15% discount to the second Insertion of 
your notice per F.S. revision 50.081, please Inform Kristen Boothroyd dlrectly at 941·906-9386 x323. 

NOTICE 
The Business Observer makes every effort to ensure that its public: notice advertising is ac:curate and in full compliance with all applicable statutes and ordinances and 
that its information is correct. Nevertheless. we ask that our adverti$crs SCfUtinize published ads carefully and alert us immediately to any elTOrs so that we may correct 

them as soon as possible. We cannot ac:cept responsibility for mistalces beyond bearing the cost of republishing advertisements that contain errors 



Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 

INVOICE 
Legal Advertising 

NorJCBOFRULE 
DEVEWPMENTBYllIB 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOlTlll 
COMMUNITYDBVf.LOPMEm' 

Dl8TRICT 
In llt'OOl'd with Chapters 120 and 190, 
Florida Statutes, the Davenport Road 
South Community Development Dis
trict ("Districtj hortby gives notlc:c of 
its intention to dl!Vclop Amended ond 
lle$taled Rules of Procedun, to govern 
tho opemtions oftho District. 

Tho Amended and Kestalod Rules of 
Procedw,, wiU address such areas as the 
Boan! of Supcnisors, officers and vot
iog. district offiecs, public information 
and insp,dlon ofr.oord,, policieo, pub
lic meellngi, heariqp and worbh0[>$, 
rulemalung proceeding, and com
peliti,,, pun:hue including pmcedure 
nnder the O,nouhanta C-Ornpetitive 
Negntiation Act, pmcedure regarding 
auditor 1election, purchaoe nf huur
ance~ pre-qualification, constrw."lion 
ronl"""", goods, supplies and maleri
als. maintenance nnices. c:ootractud 
.,";""" and ptnt,,ts with rvpect m 
pmoeedin!,', u well .. any other are,, 
ortheg,111?ntloperation ofthe District. 

The purpose and effect uf the 
Amended and Restated Rules of l'm
cedul'I! i, to provide for efficiont and 
eft'ecth" District operatio:n• and to en
sure compliance with l'l!Cfnt c!w,g,s 
to Florida law. The legal authority f'or 
the adoption ofthe proposed Amended 
and Restated Rule■ of Procedure in• 
eludes sections 190.011(5), 190.011(15) 
and 190.035, Florida swu1ea (2019). 
The specific laws lmplemtnted in the 
Amended and Restated Rules of Pro
cedure include. but au not limi~ to. 
■ections 112.08, 112.3H3, 112,31-Hli, 
ll2.3H5, 119.07, 119,0701, 189.0$!, 
189.069(2)(11)16, 190.006. JS0.007, 
190.008, 190.011(3), 190.011(5), 
190.0111151 190.033, 190.035, 218.33, 
218.391, 255.05, 255.0518, 255.0525, 
255.20, 286.0105, 286.011, 286.0113, 
286.0114, 287.017, 287.055 and 
287.0II+, Florida Statutcs(2019,). 

A copy or the p11:>posed Amended 
and Reslaled Rules or Procedure may 
be obtained by contacting tho District 
Mantgtr, c/o PFM Group Consulting 
Group Lt.C, 12051 C-Orporate Bou!e
\-atd, Orlando, Florida :12817, Plloner 
(40i) 723-5900. 
Jane Gaarlandt 
Di,uict Mani&"• 
Sep!A!mber 6, 2019 19-01609K 

Sarasota, FL 34236 

Attention: If you are a government agency and you belleve that you qualify for a 15% discount to the second Insertion of 
your notice per F.S. revision 50.061, please Inform Kristen Boothroyd directly at 94MlO6·9386 x323. 

NOTICE 
The Business Observer makes every effort to ensure that its public notice advertising is accurate and in Ml compliance with all applicable statutes and ordinances and I 

that its infonnation is correct. Nevertheless. we ask that our advertiser.; scrutinize published ads carefully and alert us immediately to any errors so that we may correct 
them as soon as possible. We cannot accept responsibility for mistakes beyond bearing the cost of republishing advertisements that contain errors 



Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236INVOICE 

' n .t 1 nnr l"\.,or · · """'""Legal Advertising 

Invoice# 19-01608K Date 09/06/2019 

Attn: Davenport Road South/Amanda Lane Please make checks payable to: 
PFM Group Consulting LLC (Please note Invoice # on check) 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. Business Observer 
ORLANDO FL 32817 1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

Description Amount 
rial # 19-01608K $50.31P.0./Ref.# Davenport 

eeting Notice 
RE: Meeting for Davenport Road on September 18, 2019 @ 9:45 AM 
Published: 9/6/2019 

Important Message Paid I ()----- ----=-----~ 
Total ~====$=5~0-=3=1====: 

Payment Is expected within 30 days of the 
first publication date of your notice. 

Attention: If you are a government agency and you belleve that you quality for a 15% discount to the second Insertion of 
your notice per F.S. revision 50.061, please Inform Kristen Boothroyd directly at 941-906-9386 x323. 

NOTICE 
usiness Observer makes every effort to ensure that its public notice advertising is accurate and in full compliance with all applicable statotes and ordinances and 
infonnation is correct. Nevertheless, we ask that our advertisers scrutinize published ads carefully and alert us immediately to any errors so that we may correct 

them as soon as possible . We cannot accept responsibility for mistakes beyond bearing the cost of republishing advertisements that contain errors 



Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 

INVOICE 
Legal Advertising 

DavenportRoadSouth Communhy 
Dnelapment District 

Notlee ofBoard ofSnpenisors' 
MNlinR 

The Board ofSupervisors ofthe Davtn
port Road South Community Develop
ment District will hold a meeting on 
Wednesday, September18, 2019 at 9:45 
a.m. at the Offioos of Cassidy Homes, 
346 1!.ast Ccotnl A\'r:,, Winter Hn-..?n, 
f1orida 33880.Toe mectlng i., open lo 
the public and ,.,11 bo mnductcd in ac
coidanr:c with provision of l'lorida Law 
related lo Special Districls. The meet• 
ing may be r:ontinued lo a date, time, 
and pl= lo be ¢lied on the record 
at the meeting,. There may be n«a
slons when slall' or olhtt individuals 
may porucipate by speakertelephone. 

A oopy of the agenda for the meet• 
ing maybeobwned al the om...ofthe 
District l\lanagor, PPM Group Consult
ing LI.C, loc:ated at 12051 Corporate 
Rh-d., Orlando 32817, (4-0'/) 723-,5900, 
duringnormal busin.,.. hou~ 

AIJy penon requiring special ac
oommodations at the meeting becau.<e 
of a dtubillty or phy,ical impairment 
should contact tho District Office at 
(4-07) 723-$900 at 1..s1 furty-eighl 
C•u) hours prior lo the meeting. lfyo• 
are hearing or speech Impaired, please 
contact the Florida Relay Senico at 
I-800-955-sno, fur lid in contacting 
the District Office. 

!'.adi per10n who decides to appeal 
any deda!on made by the Baud wilh 
respect to any matter considered at 
tho meeting is ad,wd that pe=n wiD 
need a reeoid of the prooeedln~ and 
that ao:oidingly, the person may noed 
to eraure that a ,-.rt,a1im record ofthe 
proceedings [II made, Including the tas 
timony and ~vldonoo upon which such 
appeal Is to be based. 
Jane Gaarl111td1 
District Managor 
September 6, 2019 19-0l60BK 

Sarasota, FL 34236 

Attention: If you are a government agency and you belleve that you qualify for a 15% discount to the second Insertion of 
your notice per F.S. revision 50.061, please Inform Kristen Boothroyd directly at 941-906-9386 x323. 

NOTICE 
The Business Observer makes every effort to ensure that its public notice advertising is accurate and in full compliance with all applicable statutes and ordinances and 
that its infonnation is correct. Nevertheless, we ask that our advertisers scrutinize published ads carefully and alert us immediately to any errors so that we may correct 

them as soon as possible. We cannot accept responsibility for mistakes beyond bearing the cost of republishing advertisements that contain errors 



- - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - -

12 

CITY OF DAVENPORT 
FOR BILLING INFORMATION 

I SALLAPAHAAVE CALL: (863)419-3300 
DAVENPORT FL 33837-0l 2S 

7AQA 19280DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH CYCLE A 

Account# Service Address Billing Period BIii Date Due Date TOTAL DUE 

9458 POOL METER/ 940-1 Orchid Grove Blvd 08/05/19 to 09/04/19 09/10/2019 10/01/2019 $ 28.73 

CurrentI Previous 
Usage YearAgo ChargeService Code & Description Date Reading IDate Reading 1Mult I 

LAST PAYMENT 08/19/2019 30 . 73 

WT WATER SERVICE - INSID 08/05 252 09/05 258 100.000 600 0 9.75 * 
WW WASTEWATER SERVICE 08/05 252 09/05 258 100 .000 600 0 18.00 

* TAXES 0.98 

CURRENT CHARGES 28.73 
TOTAL AMOUNT DOB 28.73 

COD8Ulll)t1ou ,i: 1000 for ••rvie• NT ~1 19.2 

TRASH, RECYCLE AND BULK ITEMS PICKED UP EVERY WBDNBSDAY-

PLEASE CONT PLACE CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS ON THE CURB, AND DON'T PLACE 
1B TRASH OUT 24 HOURS BBPORE PICK UP . 

...........••••..........•••••.•...•..........•.••• 
COMMISSION MBBTINGS: THURSDAY SBPT 19th, MONDAY OCT. 7th AT 7 : 00PM 

VISIT OUR WEBSITE POR UPCOMING EVENTS : WWII.MYDAVBNPORT.ORG 
' 

-- •••NOTICE !Ii!•••• ALL BI LLS ARB DUB ON THE 1ST AND SUBJECT TO 
Jan l'~ Kar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov D•c 

DISCONNECTION APTBR THE l 0Tj3~c§E~ TT.rnN STUB WITH REMITTANCE 
2011 -

CITY OF DAVENPORT 

I SALLAPAHAAVE Bill Date TOTAL DUE Account# 
DAVENPORT FL 33837-012S 

9458 09/10/2019 $ 28.73 

Type Due Date 

CYCLE A 10/01/2019 

PaylD Bill No 
. 

7AQA 3365 

111ll11,l,ll1111111lll11111,1, ,I PAlO _________AMOUNT 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORLANDO FL 32817 

00000094581 □ 000028738 

https://WWII.MYDAVBNPORT.ORG


Complete Pool Care 

PO Box 2196 
Winter Haven, Fl 33883 Invoicecompletepool05@aol.com 
863-287-5015 

Date: 09/15/2019 
Invoice No.: 13255 
Due Date: 10/15/2019 

Bill To: 
Davenport Rd. South COD 
Orchid Grove 

Qty Item Description Unit Price Total 

1 Pool Service for October 2019 $1,525.00 $1,525.00 

Total $1,525.00 

Balance Due $1,525.00 

Please contact us for more information about payment options. 

Thank you for your business. 

https://1,525.00
https://1,525.00
mailto:completepool05@aol.com


InvoiceCreative Association Services, Inc. 
346 East Central Avenue 

Date Invoice#Winter Haven, FL 33880 
9/1/2019 6256 

Bill To 

Davenport Road South CCD 
(Orchid Grove) 
C/O Fishkind & Associates 
12051 Corporate Blvd. 
Orlando, FL 32817 

Terms Due Date 

9/1/2019 

Description Rate Amount 

Sept 2019 Landscape & Maintenance-Davenport Road 2,390.00 2,390.00 
South CCD (Orchid Grove) 

Thank you for your prompt payment/ Invoice Total $2,390.00 

Applied Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due this Invoice $2,390.00 

Phone# (863) 293-7400 Fax# (863) 508-1067 E-mail info@creativeassociations.com 

mailto:info@creativeassociations.com
https://2,390.00
https://2,390.00
https://2,390.00
https://2,390.00


( ~ DUKE STATEMENT OF SERVICE 

ENERGY. SEPTEMBER 2019 

FOR CUSTOMER SERVICE OR DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD DUE DATE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 
PAYMENT LOCATIONS CALL: ORCHID GROVE SEP 25 2019 1,325.70 
1-877-372-8477 FISHKDI> & ASSOCIATES 

12051 CORPORATE BLVD NEXT READ DEPOSIT AMOUNT 
ORLAl'llO FL 32817WEB SITE: www.duke-energy.com DATE ON OR ON ACCOUNT 
SERVICE ADDRESS ABOUT 
000 DAVENPORT BLW LITE,TO REPORT A POWER OUTAGE: NONE 
ORCHID GROVE SL1-800-228-8485 

PIN: 071282712 

METER READINGS 

PAYlo£NTS RECEIVED AS OF AUG 22 2019 1,345.46 THANK YOU 

LS-1 017 LIGHTING SER COMPANY OWNED/MAINTAINED 
Sn.LING PERIOD •. 08-02-19 TO 09-03-19 32 DAYS 

CUSTOMER CHARGE 1.31 
EJIERGY CHARGE 3192 KWH~ 2.92000¢ 93 . 21 
FUEL CHARGE 3192 KWH .:I 3.80500¢ 121.46 
ASSET SECURITIZATION CHARGE 3192 KWH~ 0.03000¢ 0 . 96 

•TOTAL ELECTRIC COST 216.94 
EQUIPl'ENT RENTAL FOR: 

76 
76 

ST CON30/3S 
HPS UG RDWAY 9500L 

FIXTURE TOTAL 856.52 
MAINTENANCE TOTAL 130.72 
GROSS RECEIPTS TAX 5 . 56 
MUNICIPAL FRANCHISE FEE 14.26 
MUNICIPAL urn.ITV TAX 13.76 
STATE AND OTIER TAXES ON ELECTRIC 18. 83 
SALES TAX ON EQUIPtENT RENTAL 69.11 

TOTAL CURRENT Bll.L 1, 325.70 

TOTAL DUE THIS STATEMENT $1,325.7( 

Payment of your bill prior to the above due date will avoid a 
late payment charge of $5.00 or 1.5%, whichever is greater. 

To help us repair malfunctioning streetlights, quickly: 1. Call us at 
1-800-228-8485 or visit duke-energy.com/lightrepair 2. Provide us 
with the light's location and your contact information 3. Specific 
addresses, landmarks and directions work best 

ENERGY USE ----
DAILY AVG. USE - 100 KWH/DAY 
USE ONE YEAR AGO - 0 KWH/DAY 
MDAILY AVG. ELECTRIC COST - $37.63 

BF_8L_DEF _20190903_212809_1 CSV•14900-000021627 
DETACH ANO RETURN THIS SECTcON ZP05 0000614 

Make checks payable to: Duke Energy 

ACCOUNT NUMBER • 97796 57410 

P.O. BOX 1004
014900 000021627 CHARLOTTE, 

NC 28201-1004 TOTAL DU E
1,1111,111,1,1,1,11Ih11,,I 1111•111IIIIhiI• 11111 11Ih11III111111 
DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD 1,325.701
ORCHID GROVE 
FISHKIND & ASSOCIATES PLEASE ENTER 

12051 CORPORATE BLVD AMOUNT PAID 

ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 

9779b5741010000013257030 □ 00000000000000013257030100000000009 

I 

https://duke-energy.com/lightrepair
www.duke-energy.com
https://1,325.70


16.46 

( "') DUKE STATEMENT OF ELECTRIC SERVICE 
34486 92325 

SEPTEMBER 2019 ENERGY* 
FOR CUSTOMER SERVICE OR DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH CDD DUE DATE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 
PAYMENT LOCATIONS CALL: SEP 26 2019 
1-877-372-8477 12051 CORPORATE BLVD 

ORLANDO FL 32817 NEXT READ DEPOSIT AMOUNT 
WEB SITE: www.duke-energy.com DATE ON OR ON ACCOUNT 

SERVICE ADDRESS ABOUT 
1420 SOUTH BLVD WLITETO REPORT A POWER OUTAGE: OCT 04 2019 240.00
DAVENPORT FL 338371-800-228-8485 

PAYI-ENTS RECEIVED AS OF AUG 22 2019 21.46 THANK YOU 
PIN: 071282712 

GS-1 060 GENERAL SERVICE - NON DEMAND SEC 
BILLING PERI00.. 08-05-19 TO 09-04-19 30 DAYSMETER READINGS CUSTOMER CHARGE 12.78 

HETER NO. 003619857 MTOTAL B.ECTRIC COST 12.78PRESENT l ACTUAL l 000000 
GROSS RECEIPTS TAX .33PREVIOUS I ACTUAL I 000000 
lt.JNICIPAL FRANCHISE FEE .84DIFFERENCE 000000 HlJIIICIPAL UTil.ITY TAX 1.40TOTAL KWH 0 STATE AND OTH:R TAXES ON B.ECTRIC l.ll 

TOTAL CURRENT BILL 16.46 

TOTAL DUE THIS STATEMENT $16 .46 

Payment of your bill prior to the above due date will avoid a 
late payment charge of $5.00 or 1.5%, whichever is greater. 

To help us repair malfunctioning streetlights, quickly: 1. Call us at 
1-800-228-8485 or visit duke-energy.com/lightrepair 2. Provide us 
with the light' s location and your contact information 3. Specific 
addresses, landmarks and directions work best 

---- ENERGY USE ----
DAILY AVG. USE - 0 KWH/DAY 
USE ONE YEAR AGO - 0 KWH/DAY 
MDAILY AVG. ELECTRIC COST - $.43 

BF_8L_DEF_20190904_213059_3.CSV-3'401-000000704 
DETACH ANO RETURN THIS SECTION MM 0003289 BILL 111 OF 3 GRP ~6 

Make checks payable to: Duke Energy 

ACCOUNT NUMBER· 34486 92325 - SEP 26 2019 
P.O. BOX 1004 

003401 000000704 CHARLOTTE, 
NC 28201-1004 TOTAL DUE 

I•h,I,I, I,111111I111•I••1111II• 111111111111111111I1111II11111111 ~ 
DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COO 16.46112051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 PLEASE ENTER 

AMOUNT PAID 

I 
34486923256000000016469000000000000000000016469 □ 100000000009 

https://duke-energy.com/lightrepair
www.duke-energy.com


( "J DUKE STATEMENT OF ELECTRIC SERVICE 
97883 80299 ENERGY. SEPTEMBER 2019 

FOR CUSTOMER SERVICE OR DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD DUE DATE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 
PAYMENT LOCATIONS CALL: SEP 26 2019 14.58 
1-877-372-8477 l20Sl CORPORATE BLVD 

ORLAN>O FL 32817 NEXT READ DEPOSIT AMOUNT 
WEB SITE: www.duke-energy.com DATE ON OR ON ACCOUNT 

SERVICE ADDRESS ABOUT 
101 SAK)ESTIN DR,TO REPORT A POWER OUTAGE: OCT 04 2019 240.00
ENTRANCE HALL1-800-228-8485 

PAYMENTS RECEIVED AS OF AUG 22 2019 14.58 THANK YOU 
PIN: 071282712 

RS-1 001 RESIDENTIAL SERVICE 
SD.LING PERI00 .. 08-05-19 TO 09-04-19 30 DAYSMETER READINGS CUSTotER CHARGE 9.66 

ENERGY CHARGEHETER NO. 003512817 FIRST 1000 KHH 22 KWH~ 7.63300¢ l.68PRESENT I ACTUAL I 000298 
ABOVE 10D0 KWH 0 KWH Q 9.25900¢ .00PREVIOUS I ACTUAL I 000276 

FUEL CHARGEDIFFERENCE 000022 FIRST 1000 KWH 22 KWH Q 3.69800¢ .81TOTAL KHH 22 
ABOVE 1000 KHH 0 KWH~ 4.69800¢ .00 

ASSET SECURITIZATION CHARGE 22 KWH Q o.24900¢ 0.05 

*TOTAL ELECTRIC COST 12.20 
GROSS RECEIPTS TAX .31 
HUNICIPAL FRANCHISE FEE .80 
HUNICIPAL UTil.ITY TAX 1.27 

TOTAL CURRENT BILL 14.58 

TOTAL DUE THIS STATEMENT $14.58 

Payment of your bill prior to the above due date will avoid a 
late payment charge of $5.00 or 1.5%, whichever is greater. 

To help us repair malfunctioning streetlights, quickly: 1. Call us at 
1-800-228-8485 or visit duke-energy.com/lightrepair 2. Provide us 
with the light' s location and your contact information 3. Specific 
addresses, landmarks and directions work best 

SONDJFMAMJJAS 

---- ENERGY USE ----
DAILY AVG . USE - l KHH/DAY 
USE ONE YEAR AGO - 0 KHH/DAY 
*DAILY AVG. ELECTRIC COST - $.41 

BF~BL_Df.F_20190904_213059. 3 CSV--3402-000000704 
DETACH ANO RETURN THIS SECTION MM 0003290 BILL II 2 OF 3 GRP 456 

Make checks payable to: Duke Energy 

ACCOUNT NUMBER • 97883 80299 SEP 26 2019 
P.O. BOX 1004

003402 000000704 CHARLOTTE, 
NC 28201-1004 TOTAL DUE1•1111• 1 • 1•1"I I 11•11•1 111 11111 •1•III I111•11 I111••I11111I11111111 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH CDD 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD - ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 PLEASE ENTER 

AMOUNT PAID 

97883802995000000014589000 □ 000000000 □ 00000145890100000000009 

14.581 

I 

https://duke-energy.com/lightrepair
www.duke-energy.com


( ~ DUKE 
ENERGY. 

FOR CUSTOMER SERVICE OR 
PAYMENT LOCATIONS CALL: 
1-877-372-8477 

WEB SITE: www.duke-energy.com 

TO REPORT A POWER OUTAGE: 
1-800-228-8485 

PIN: 071282712 

METER READINGS 

HETER NO. 003619856 
PRESENT I ACTUAL> 000000 
PREVIOUS I ACTUAL l 000000 
DIFFERENCE 000000 
TOTAL KHH 0 

---- ENERGY USE ----
OAILY AVG. USE - 0 KHH/DAY 
USE ONE YEAR AGO - 0 KHH/DAY
M0AILY AVG. ELECTRIC COST - $.43 

BF_Bl_DEF _20190904_213059_3 CSV-3403-000000704 

STATEMENT OF ELECTRIC SERVICE 

SEPTEMBER 2019 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH CDD 

12051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORLANX> FL 32817 

SERVICE ADDRESS 
1534 SOUTH BLVD LITE 
DAVENPORT FL 33837 

PAYt£NTS RECEIVED AS OF AUG 22 2019 

GS-1 060 GENERAL SERVICE -
BILLING PERI00.. 08-05-19 TO 09-04-19 

CUSTOMER CHARGE 

MTOTAI.. ELECTRIC COST 
GROSS RECEIPTS TAX 
l'l.lNICIPAL FRANCHISE FEE 
I-IJNICIPAL UTILITY TAX 
STATE AND OTHER TAXES ON ELECTRIC 

TOTAL CURRENT BILL 

TOTAL DUE THIS STATEMENT 

97970 13229 

DUE DATE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 
SEP 26 2019 16.46 

NEXT READ DEPOSIT AMOUNT 
DATE ON OR ON ACCOUNT 
ABOUT 
OCT 04 2019 240.00 

21.46 THANK YOU 

NON DEMAND SEC 
30 DAYS 

12.78 

12.78 
.33 
.84 

1.40 
1.11 

16.46 

$16 . 46 

Payment of your bill prior to the above due date will avoid a 
tate payment charge of $5.00 or 1.5%, whichever is greater. 

To help us repair malfunctioning streetlights, quickly: 1. Call us at 
1-800-228-3485 or visit duke-energy.com/lightrepair 2. Provide us 
with the light's location and your contact information 3. Specific 
addresses, landmarks and directions work besl 

DETACH ANO RETURN THIS SECTION 

Make checks payable to: Duke Energy 

ACCOUNT NUMBER· 97970 13229 

003403 000000704 

1,1,,1a1,1,111111l•11•1••1u111•1•1111111•1•l••1•1l1••11l1•111111 
DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD -

MM 0003291 BIU. # 1 OF 3 GRP ~ 

'::' -~,:: ou._~-PA.II;~; :"!., 

SEP 26 2019 
P.O. BOX 1004 
CHARLOTTE, 
NC 2820 1 ·1004 TOTAL DUE 

ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 PLEASE ENTER 

AMOUNT PAID 

9797013229b00000001b4690000000000000000000164690100000000009 

I 

https://ou._~-PA.II
https://duke-energy.com/lightrepair
www.duke-energy.com


~ DUKE 
ENERGY* 

FOR CUSTOMER SERVICE OR 
PAYMENT LOCATIONS CALL: 
1-877-372-8477 

WEB SITE: www.duke-energy.com 

TO REPORT A POWER OUTAGE: 
1-800-228-8485 

PIN: 071282712 

METER READINGS 

METER NO. 003632130 
PRESENT I ACTUAL • 007846 
PREVIOUS I ACTUAL I 007827 
DIFFERENCE 
TOTAL KWH 

a.. 

"' 40_ 

~ 32_ 

24....~ 
~ --L~ 

0 
I I I I 1 

S O N D J 

000019 
19 

T 
F M A M J J A S 

---- ENERGY USE ----
DAILY AVG. USE - l KWH/DAY 
USE ONE YEAR AGO - 0 KWH/DAY 
MOAILY AVG. ELECTRIC COST - $.50 

BF_ Bl_DEF_20190905_211459_2 CSV·:10&4-000000794 

-
002084 

.....~.A",":
_'t,....

STATEMENT OF ELECTRIC SERVICE 

SEPTEMBER 2019 
Duke Energy 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COO 

12051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORI.AM)() FL 32817 

SERVICE ADDRESS 
177 LUOISIA LOOP LITE 
DAvaFORT FL 33837 

GS-1 060 GENERAL SERVICE -
BILLING PERI00.. 08-06- 19 TO 09-05-19 

CUSTOI-ER CHARGE 
ENERGY CHARGE 
FUEL CHARGE 
ASSET SECURITIZATJ:ON CHARGE 

•TOTAL ELECTRIC COST 
GROSS RECEIPTS TAX 
MUNICIPAL FRANCHISE FEE 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY TAX 

• I 

DUE DATE 
SEP 27 2019 

NEXT READ 
DATE ON OR 
ABOUT 
OCT 07 2019 

NON DEMAND SEC 
30 DAYS 

19 KWH~ 8.07800¢ 
19 KWH~ 3.97400¢ 
19 KWH~ 0 . 24100¢ 

STATE AN) OTHER TAXES ON ELECTRIC 
LATE PAYMENT CHARGE FOR PREVIOUS Bll.L 

TOTAL CURRENT BILL 
AMCU,IT PAST DUE 

TOTAL DUE THIS STATEMENT 

Payment of your bill prior to the above due date will avoid a 
late payment charge of $5.00 or 1.5%, whichever is greater. 

Your account has a past due amount of $142.40 and electric 
service may be disconnected. Please pay immediately. 
To help us repair malfunctioning streetlights, quickly: 1. Call us at 
1-800-228-8485 or visit duke-energy.com/lightrepair 2. Provide us 
with the light's location and your contact information 3. Specific 
addresses, landmarks and directions work best 

OETACU ANO RETURN THIS SECTION MM 0000487 BILL# 1 OF ~ GRP 386 

DELINQUENT CURRENT 

24.41 

P.O. BOX 1004 000000794 CHARLOTTE, 
NC 28201-1004 

11 •11111ll•11 11111•11•n11111IMl,1••hllhll1•111'11111111•1•11 
DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 

57014 95486 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 
166.81 

DEPOSIT AMOUNT 
ON ACCOUNT 

240.00 

12.78 
1.53 

.76 
0.05 

15.12 
.39 
.99 

1.59 
1.32 
5.00 

24.41 
142.40 

$166 .81 

CHARGES 

SEP 27 2019 

PLEASE ENTER 

AMOUNT PAlO 

570149548bb □□□□□□ 1bb81900000014240b □ 000000244140100000000009 

I 

https://duke-energy.com/lightrepair
www.duke-energy.com


STATEMENT OF ELECTRIC SERVICE ( ~ DUKE 66995 79547 
SEPTEMBER 2019 ENERGY. 2 

FOR CUSTOMER SERVICE OR 
PAYMENT LOCATIONS CALL: 
1-877-372-8477 

WEB SITE: www.duke-energy.com 

TO REPORT A POWER OUTAGE: 
1-800-228-8485 

PIN: 071282712 

METER READINGS 

HETER NO. 003622494 
PRESENT (ACTUAL I 031134 
PREVIOUS (ACTUAL I 023765 
DIFFERENCE 007369 
TOTAL KWH 7369 

240_ 

i 200.. 
>! 160_ 

~ 120-

~ 80.. 

~ 4L 

o_._..-,,,-,,,,--,,,-..-,- ..--, .-.,1...... 
S O N D J F M A M J J A S 

ENERGY USE ----
DAILY AVG. USE - 246 KWH/DAV 
USE ONE VEAR AGO - 0 KWH/DAV 
•DAILY AVG. ELECTRIC COST - $30.62 

BF_BL_OEF_20190905_211 ◄59_2 CSV-2085-000000794 

ACCOU -
002085 

11111111ll•11••1•1•11•111••1111•1••11•hllldl'•h1•11111lll••1II 
DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 

Duke Energy 
DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH CDD DUE DATE 

SEP 27 2019 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORLANDO FL 32817 NEXT READ 

DATE ON OR 
SERVICE ADDRESS ABOUT
940 ORCHID GROVE BLW OCT 07 2019
DAVENPORT FL 35837 

GS-1 060 GENERAL SERVICE - NON DEMAND SEC 
BILLING PERIOD .. 08-06-19 TO 09-05-19 30 DAYS 

CUSTOMER CHARGE 
ENERGY CHARGE 7369 KHH ~ 8.07800¢ 
AJEL CHARGE 7369 KWH~ 3.97400¢ 
ASSET SECURITIZATION CHARGE 7369 KHH ~ 0.24100¢ 

•TOTAL ELECTRIC COST 
GROSS RECEIPTS TAX 
t-UIICIPAL FRANCHISE FEE 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY TAX 
STATE ANO OTHER TAXES ON ELECTRIC 
LATE PAVl£NT CHARGE FOR PREVIOUS BILL 

TOTAL CURRENT BILL 
Al10UNT PAST DUE 

TOTAL DUE THIS STATEMENT 

Payment of your bill prior to the above due date will avoid a 
late payment charge of $5.00 or 1.5%, whichever is greater. 

Your account has a past due amount of $1,072.00 and electric 
service may be disconnected. Please pay immediately. 
To help us repair malfunctioning streetlights, quickly: 1. Call us at 
1-800-228-8485 or visit duke-energy.com/lightrepair 2. Provide us 
with the light's location and your contact information 3. Specific 
addresses, landmarks and directions work best 

DETACH ANO RETURN THIS SECTION MM 00004118 BILL # 2 OF 2 GRP 386 

DELINQUENT CURRENT 

P.O . BOX 1004
000000794 CHAR LOTTE, 

NC 28201 °1004 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 
2,246.54 

DEPOSIT AMOUNT 
ON ACCOUNT 

240.00 

12 . 78 
595.27 
292 . 84 

17.76 

918.65 
23.56 
60.40 
76.13 
79.72 
16.08 

1 , 174.54 
1,072.00 

$2,246.54 

CHARGES 

SEP 27 2019 

TOTAL DUE 

PLEASE ENTER 

AMOUNT PAID 

bb99579547b00000224b5440000010720080000011745490100000000009 

I 

https://2,246.54
https://1,072.00
https://2,246.54
https://duke-energy.com/lightrepair
https://1,072.00
www.duke-energy.com


Fuqua Janltortal Services Invoice 
5962 Murphy Road 

Bartow, FL 33830 
(863) 651-9348FUQU 

SIU. TO SHIPTO - "-

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD 

12051 CORPORATE BLVD. 940 ORCHID GROVE BLVD. 
ORLANDO, FL 32817 DAVENPORT, FL 33837 

INVOICE I DATE TOTAi.DUE DUE DATE TERMS ENCLOSED 

I7891 09/15/2019 $935.00 10/15/2019 Net30 

QTY DESCRIPTION NET PRICE EXT PRICE 

11 SEPTEMBER CLUBHOUSE CLEANING 85.00 935.00 

BALANCE DUE $935.00 

Thank you for your business! 



Page 1of 2 

B/27/2019 

CUSTOMER INFORMATION 
1Orkin !Account Number: 332671923400 RECKERHWY 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880·1957 
12051 Corporate Blvd 

Customer Address: Orlando, FL 32B17·1450AB 01 300249 53447 B 826 A 

I• 11111 1111111 1111111I11,111Ilullll1 1111 111'I 1lh I• I'1111 11111 II 
DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH CDD BRANCH INFORMATION 
12051 Corporate Blvd 
Orlando, FL 32817- 1450 !Branch Name: , 148,WINTER HAVEN, FL 

!Branch Phone#': '(800) 329-3201 

!Branch Manager: !DAVID BERNSTEIN 

We want to ensure your complete satisfaction. 
Please contact your local Orkin Branch at 
(800) 329-3201. 

DATE INVOICE# SERVICING BRANCH PO# DESCRIPTION CHARGES TAX 

SERVICE ADDRESS 1 940 ORCHID GROVE BLVD DAVENPORT, FL 33831 
Sep,2019 191111977 148-WINTER HAVEN, FL SCH SVC 09/10/2019 PC $45.00 $3.15 $48.15 S0.00 $48.15 

Standard - Monthly.pc 
Standard 

Subtotal $48.15 

Unapplltd Credits S0.00 

► TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $48.15 

Thank you for choosing Orkin. Visit www.orkln.com/myaccount to create your onllne profile. 
Payments received after 8/2612019 are not reflected in the above detail. Payment Is due when service Is rendered. 

Please detach and mall lower portion with check made payable to Orkin. Please include your account number on your check. 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COO Now you can pay online: www.orkin.com/myaccount. 
12051 Corporate Blvd 
Orlando, FL 32817-1450 !Account Number: 33267192 .. 

PIIT =r 1lU !Amount Due: 
AUi:'• 

!Amount Enclosed: 

, ,,, 111111111111 11 lhl h• 111,1 I ,I I 111 11111Ill II 11111111 IIiiii"I I 
Orkin D Want to sign up for Autopay? 

Please see reverse side.3400 RECKER HWY 
WINTER HAVEN, FL 33B80-1957 If you have achange ofaddress, 

please contact your branch. 

□ 0148332b7192 □□ 0 □ 0400000481S2 

www.orkin.com/myaccount
www.orkln.com/myaccount
https://Monthly.pc


Invoice 

~ I ,\' WIRING l
8390 CHAMPIONSGATE BLVD
SUITE 310
CHAMPIONSGATE, FL 33896
(407) 290-5911 

Invoice # Customer I Invoice Date Due Dale Amount Due Amount Enclosed
20204726 PROJ-0043 09/13/2019 09/13/2019 $4,680.00 $ 

To: DAVENPORT RD COD Remk To: Southeast Wiring Solutions, Inc.
C/0 PFM Group 8390 CHAMPI0NSGATE BLVD
12051 Corporate Blvd SUITE 310
Orlando, FL 32817 CHAMPI0NSGATE, FL 33896 

---- --------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------------------------- --------- Detach and return with your payment. 

Customer Name Customer# Invoice# Invoice Date PO Number Amount Due
DAVENPORT RD COD PROJ-0043 20204726 09/13/2019 $4,580.00 

Description QTY Rate Amount
Orchid Grove Amenity Center, Orchid Grove Amenity Davenport, FL 

CUSTOM COMMERCIAL CAMERA SYSTEM - Furnish and install 8 cameras w/ 1.00 4,580.00 4,580.00 
zoomffocus, 16 channel recorder, and configure for remote view on customer
provided internet connection 

Payment terms: 60% to order equipment/start, 40% due on Sub Total: 4,580.00
completion of project. Total Sales Tax: 0.00-----=~

Invoice Total:____4..,.,..,5...80,_....,0....0
Payments/Credits Applied:_____.,(0__._00_.,) 

Invoice Amount Due:____4_.,....5_80_._0__0 

Amount Due: $4,580.00 

CONTACT US
Bijling Questions Central Station Service Email
(407) 290-6911 BILLING@SWSPROTECTION.COM 

To lease visit: h :/lsoutheaatwlrin .alarmbiller.com R lstration Ke : ACD9BD 



DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Payment Authorization FY 19 #24 
9/23/2019 

Item Payee Invoice General General 
No. Number Fund Fund 

FY19 FY20 

1 Business Observer 
Legal Advertising 9/13/19 19-01665K $ 105.00 

2 City of Davenport 
Water meter 1548689338 8/5-9/5 $ 53.63 

3 egis Insurance & Risk Advisors 
FY20 Insurance renewal 9611 $14,083.00 

4 Fishkind & Associates, Inc 
August 2019 Conference Calls 24594 $ 10.27 

5 PFM Group Consulting LLC 
Travel and Miscellaneous expenses March -July 2019 105924 $ 954.16 

6 Wood & Associates 
Review Requisitions 378 $ 62.50 

Subtotal per FY $1,185.56 $14,083.00 
Total $15,268.56

LALt~_ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary 

https://15,268.56
https://14,083.00
https://1,185.56
https://14,083.00


Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236INVOICE 

Legal Advertising 

Invoice # 19-01665K Date 09/13/2019 

Attn: Sonali Patil; Davenport Road South COD Please make checks payable to: 
PFM Group Consulting LLC (Please note Invoice # on check)
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. Business Observer 
ORLANDO FL 32817 1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota,- FL 34236 

Description Amount 
Serlal # 19-01665K 

otice of Rulemaking Regarding the Amended and Restated 
$105.00 

oles of Procedure of the Davenport Road South Community 
evelopment District 

RE: Public Hearing Conducted by the Board of Supervisors of the Davenport 
Road South Community Development District on October 16, 2019 at 9:45 a. 

Published: 9/13/2019 

Important Message Paid I 7) J 
Total _1--_-_-_----::;:$=1_0~5=._0~0= ===j 

Payment Is expected within 30 days of the 
first publication date of your notice. 

Attention: If you are a government agency and you believe that you quallfy for a 15% discount to the second Insertion of 
your notice per F.S. revision 50.061, please Inform Kristen Boothroyd directly at 941-906-9386 x323. 

NOTICE 
The Business Observer makes every effort lo ensure that its public notice advertising is accurate and in full compliance with all applicable statutes and ordinances and 
that its infonnation is correct. Nevertheless, we ask that Ollr advertisers scrutinize published ads carerully and alert us immediately to any errors so that we may correct 

them as soon as possible. We cannot accept resJJQnsibility for mistakes beyond bearing the cost of republishing advertisements that contain errors 



Business Observer 

INVOICE 
Legal Advertising 

NOTICBOFRULEMAK.ING 
REGARDING THE AMENDED 
AND RESTATED RULF.S OF 

PROCEDURE OF TIIE 
DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH 

COMMUNITYDEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

A public hearing will be conducted by 
the Board ofSupervisors ofthe Daven
port Road South Community Develop
ment District ("District") on October 
16, 2019 at 9:45 a.m., at the Offices of 
Cassidy Home:i, 346 East Central Av
enue, Winter Haven, Florida 33880. 

In accord with Chapters 120and 190, 
Florida Statutes, the District hereby 
gives the public notioe of its intent to 
adopt its proposed Amended and Re
stated Rules ofProcedure. The purpose 
and effect of the proposed Amended 
and Restated Rules of Procedure is to 
provide for efficient and effective Dis
trict operations and to ensure compli
ance with recent changes to Florida law. 
Prior notice of rule development was 
published in the Polk County edition of 
the Business Observer on September 6, 
2019. 

The Amended and Restated Rules 
of Procedure may address such areas 
as the Board of Supervisors, officers 
and voting, district offices, public in
formation and inspection of records, 
policies, public meetings, hearings and 
workshops, rulemaking proceedings 
and competitive purchase including 
procedure under the Consultants Com
petitive Negotiation Act, procedure re
garding auditor selection, purchase of 
insurance, pre-qualification, construc
tion contracts, goods, supplies and ma
terials, maintenance services, contrac
tual services and protests with respect 
to proceedings, as wellas anyotherarea 
ofthe general operation ofthe District. 

Specific legal authority for the adop
tion of the proposed amended and 
Restated Rules of Procedure includes 
Sections 190.011(5), 190.011(15) and 
190,035, Florida Statutes (2019 ). 
The specific la"M implemented in the 
Amended and Restated Rules of Pro
cedure include, but are not limited to, 

1970 Main Street 
3rd Floor 

Sarasota, FL 34236 
, 

n,1, nnr n"lnr ..""'"' 

Sections 112.os, 112.3143, 112.31++6, 
112.3145, 119.07, 119,0701, 189.053, 
189,069(2)(a)l6, 190.006, 190.007, 
190.008, 190.011(3), 190.011(5), 
190.011(15), 190.033, 190.035, 218.33, 
218.391, 255.05, 255.0518, 255.0525, 
255.20, 286.0105, 286.011, 286.0113, 
286.0ll4, 287.017, 287.055 and 
287.084, Florida Statutes (2019), 

A copy of the proposed Amended 
and Restated Rules of Procedure may 
be obtained by contacting the District 
Manager's Office at 12051 Corporate 
Boulevard, OrlBJ1do, Florida 32817 or 
by calling ( 407) 723.5900. 

Any pers,n who wishes to provide 
the District with a proposal for a lower 
()()St regulatory alternative as provided 
by Section 120.541(1), Florida Statutes, 
must do so in writing within twenty one 
(21) days after publication ofthis notice 
to the District Manager's Offioe. 

This public hearing may be con
tinued to a date, time, and plllCe to be 
specified on the record at the hearing 
without additional notice. If anyone 
chooses to appeal any decision of the 
Board with respect to any matter con
sidered at a public hearing, suchperson 
\\ill need a record of the proceedings 
and should accordingly ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is 
ma.de which includes the testimonyand 
evidence upon which such appeal is to 
be based. At the hearing, staff or Su• 
pervisors may participate in the public 
hearing byspeaker telephone. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the 
Americans ,vith Disabilities Act, any 
person requiring special accommoda
tions at this meeting because of a dis
ability or physical impairment should 
contact the District Manager's Office at 
least forty-eight (4-8) hours prior to the 
meeting. Ifyou are hearing or speech 
impaired, please contact the Florida 
Relay Ser\'ice at 1·800-955·8771 or l 
800-955•8770 for aid in contacting the 
District Office. 
Davenport Road South Community 
Development District 
Jane Gaarlandt, District Manager 
September 13, 2019 19·01665K 

Attention: If you are a government agency and you belfeve that you quallfy for a 15% discount to the second Insertion of 
your notice per F.S. revision 50.061, please Inform Kristan Boothroyd directly at 941-906-9386 x323. 

---- NOTICE - - ---------.. 
The Business Observer makes every effon to ensure that its public notice advenising is accurate and in full compliance with all applicable statutes and ordinances and 
that its infonnation is correct. Nevenhcless . we ask that our advenisers scrutinize published ads carefully and alen us immediately to any errors so that we may correct 

them as soon as possible. We cannot accept responsibility for mistakes beyond bearing the cost of republishing advenisements that contain errors. 



, 
= . City Of Davenport 
: · 1 South Allapaha Ave. 
~~~ Davenport, Fl. 33837 ACCOUNT# LOCATION# PAY ID 

For BIiiing Inquiries, please call: I 9056 19003 6ZKA 
ADDRESS SERVICE REQUESTED (863) 419-3300 ==================::: 

utllltyservlces@mydavenport.org 
=· 

BILL DATE DUE DATE TOTAL DUE 
Office Hours: Monday-Friday 8:00 - 5:00 · · 

After Hours (863) 419-3306 1 09/10/19 10/01/19 53.63 
Superintendent: pglll@mydavenport.org '-------'- ---- ~----~ 

**AUTO••Al l fOK AADC 32& lD AAD( ll527~AAL0-A-l 
25'1'1 l AB 0,'IO'l 

,II11IIh1•111,11I111111111 I I•I111111111111111•11 111I.,11•I111111 

11 
ORCHID GROVE LLC 
REC CENTER 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD ATTN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 

ACCOUNT# SERVICE ADDRESS BILLING PERIOD BILL DATE DUE DATE TOTAL DUE 

9056 940 Orchid Blvd 1 oa,05,19 to 09104,19 1 oe,10,19 10/01/19 53.63 

PREVIOUS 
DATE READ 

CURRENT 
DATE READ 

METER 
NUMBER 

CONSUMPTION 
(100 gal) 

YR. AGO DESCRIPTION CHARGE 

08/05/19 5514 09/05/19 5514 1548689338 0 WATER SERVICE - 11
TAXES 

/2" 48.75 
4.88 

CURRENT CHARGES 
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 

53.63 
$ 53.63 

SPECIAL MESSAGES 

TRASH, RECYCLE AND BULK ITEMS PICKED UP EVERY WEDNESDAY-
PLEASE DONT PLACE CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS ON THE CURB, AND DON'T PLACE 
TRASH OUT 24 HOURS BEFORE PICK UP . . 
*****************************••·················•tt 
COMMISSION MEETINGS: THURSDAY SEPT 19th, MONDAY OCT. 7th AT 7:00PM 
.....................************************************• 
VISIT OUR WEBSITE FOR UPCOMING EVENTS : WWW.MYDAVENPORT.ORG 
***NOTICE 1111**** ALL BILLS ARE DUE ON THE 1ST AND SUBJECT TO 
DISCONNECTION AFTER THE 10TH OF THE MONTH. 

ayment

Coupon 
ACCOUNT# LOCATION# PAY ID 

9056 19003 6ZKA 

BILL DATE DUE DATE TOTAL DUE 

09/10/19 10/01/19 53.63 

ORCHID GROVE LLC 
REC CENTER 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD ATTN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 

PLEASE RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT 
MAKE YOUR CHECKS PAYABLE TO: CITY OF DAVENPORT 

AMOUNT ENCLOSED 

____________ IREMIT PAYMENT TO: 

In1111I .... 1h1h11111•1111111111 nl,I1111111111111111111'•1•111 

CITY OF DAVENPORT 
1 SOUTH ALLAPAHA AVE 
DAVENPORT FL 33837-4161 

WWW.MYDAVENPORT.ORG
mailto:pglll@mydavenport.org
mailto:utllltyservlces@mydavenport.org


INVOICE 
Cuetomer Davenport Road South Community 

Development District 

Acctl 696 

Dltit 09/13/2019 

Cuatomer& Risk Advisors~91~. ..... Charisse Bitner 

Page 1 of 1 

. 
Invoice Summary $ 14,083.00 

Davenport Road South Community Development District 
clo PFM Group Consulting, LLC for: lnvoice#9611 

12051 Corporate Blvd. 100119299 

Orlando, FL 32817 Thank You 

Please detach and return with payment

X
Customer: Davenport Road South Community Development District 

IJNcNIIIMI AmountInvoice ar.ctM n■ 11cllon 
Policy #10011l:l.!99 10/01/2019-10/01/2020 

Florida Insurance Alliance 
14,083.00 

9611 10/01/2019 Renewpohcy General Liability - Renew pohcy 

Due Date: 9/13/2019 

~~~ 
s<8- '-

~<v~
~~~~ 

Total 

$ 14,083.00 

Thank You 

FOR PAYMENTS SENT OVERNIGHT
Egis Insurance Advisors LLC, Fifth Third Wholesale Lockbox, Lockbox #234021, 4900 W. 95/h St Oak/awn, IL 60453 

Remit Payment To: Egla Insurance Advisors, LLC (321)233-9939 Dea 

Lockbox 234021 PO Box 84021 09/13/2019
Chicago, IL 60689-4002 sclimer@egisadvisors.com 



I Florida 
(Ii ll Insurance 
~ P!I Alliance~ 

PREMIUM SUMMARY 

Davenport Road South Community Development District 
c/o Flshkind &Associates, Inc. 
12051 Corporate Blvd. 
Orlando, FL 32817 

Term: October 1, 2019 to October 1, 2020 

Quote Number: 100119299 

PREMIUM BREAKDOWN 

Property (Including Scheduled Inland Marine) $8,445 

Crime Not Included 

Automobile Liability Not Included 

Hired Non-Owned Auto Included 

Auto Physical Damage Not Included 

General Liability $3,101 

Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability $2,537 

TOTAL PREMIUM DUE $14,083 

IMPORTANT NOTE 
Defense Cost - Outside of Limit, Does Not Erode the Limit for General Liability, Public Officials Liability, and 
Employment related Practices Liability. 

Deductible does not apply to defense cost. Self-Insured Retention does apply to defense cost. 

AdditionaI Notes: 

Quote SubjectTo: 

Davenport Road South Community Development District making their website ADA Compliant. If not 
completed, an ADA Exclusion will be added to the policy. 

Page 17 



Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 
12051 Corporate Blvd. EISHKINDOrlando, FL 32817 

& ASSOCIATES 

Davenport Road South 
c/o Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 
12051 Corporate Blvd 
Orlando, FL 32817 

File· Davenport Road South 

Services: 
Conference Calls 

Invoice 
Invoice #: j24594 

9/13/2019 

Davenoort R oad South 

Amount 

"I:) ~ 
t$~ 

~~'\~~ 
~~ 

Please include the invoice 
Balance Due $10.27number on your remittance 

and submit to: 
Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 

12051 Corporate Blvd. 
Orlando, FL 32817 
Ph: 407-382-3256 
Fax: 407-382-3254 
www fishkinn r.nm 

10.27 



• •1nvo1ce PAGE 10 

INVOICE NUMBER 
INVOICE OAT£ 
ACCOUNT NO. 
DUE DATE 
TAXID 
AMOUNT DUE 

28299102 
08/26/2019 
85735742 
09/25/2019 
58-2421656 
US0$577.17 

MODlltATOR 84618295 - Jane Gaarlandt LOCATION 

BIWNGRU#i 
BILLING REF# 4 

!IILUNG Rlf# Z lllLUNG REF# 3 

COlll.110 

126777511 

COST CIIITH COllf. DATE 

pa/08/2019 

CONF. TITLI / IIAMl / ANI 

1158456540 

TtMl SHVIU 

10:S2AM • 11:08AM ~LOIIAI.MHf® AUOIO 

A<CISS TYPI 

OllhU 

PUSOIIS 

1 

UIIITS 

16 

IIATl 

0.00/Mltl 

C"AltGI 

0.00 

TAX 

11. 00 

CALL TOTAL 

1)8/08/2019J'P. ,'L . 
-\\Y'U" -:Y-,r Da/08(20191

P8/Daf2019 ............~"" 
126777511 1)8/14/2019 

18616197103 

171037896,s 

1813Z441981o 

14078olo685 

10:57AM • t 1:0AM ~lO...I.MUfl!) AUDIO 

10:SIIAM • 11:13AM ~LO ...IMUT«I Auoto 

11:)0AM • l l :)3AM 6LOUI.Mltl0 AUOIO 

12:S)PM • 1:02PM l(it.o...\lllUTCSI A11010 

Ollfl([ 

OUflU 

ouftu 

Oll FtU 

1 

l 

1 

I 

47 

lS 

) 

9 

o.oo/M111 

o.oo/M•• 

0 .00(MIN 

0.00/Mttl 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

p.oo 

p.oo 

p.oo 

p.00 

~-00 

JMS/l4(20l'l 2158456540 12: 55PM • l:02PM ~lOUlMfU(!) AUOIO ouFtu I 7 o .oo (MtN 0.00 p.oo 

'.,.,,__\ 
!.<'.,.,\"~~
"~v-

1111/H/201' 

PIJ/14(2019 

Pll/16/2019 

1n2so53445 

13523184544 

13sz318451o4 

12:57PM • 2:UPM 

1:01PM • 1:05PM 

1:09PM • 1:11PM 

~LOIAIMUTCSI Auo10 

~lOIAlMtO\t IIUOIO 

~lOtALMUTCSI AUDIO 

OllftU 

OllhU 

ou Ftu 

I 

1 

1 

107 

• 
9 

0 ,00/MIN 

o.oo/MtN 

0.00/MIN 

0.00 

0.00 

o.oo 

, .oo 
o.oo 

, .oo 

pe/14/2019 1401aoeo68s l :lOl'M • 2:)l~M ic.,0..,,1.Mu,e Au010 ourtu l 81 o.oo/M111 0.00 ,.oo 

I 
)8/1'/2019 

p&/14/2019 

z158456s40 

z1ss4s6s40 

I : 13PM • 2:44"" 

l :S8PM • 2:44PM 

Gtou1Mu,e AUDIO 

~lOIAIMHTC!t AUDIO 

OLl fl(f 

OllfU( 

I 

I 

91 

46 

o .oo/MIN 

0.00/MIN 

0.00 

0.00 

~-00 

~-00 ?.00 

124777511 

- ,_,J-\-
- -R<''< r 

\J(icffe~ ...., 
'~v-..r~ 

-

)11/21/201'1 

JG/21/2019 

'"5/21/2019 

Pll/21/2019 

P6/21/2019 

~ /21/2019 

2158456540 

l77l'37896~ 

18633143698 

215845~0 

1163)201>98 

1163:µ43698 

9:39AM • 10,32AM ~ OIAIMUTCII AUDIO 

9:41AM • 10:SlAM 1.1.0IAIMUfcD A11010 

9:47AM • 10:S2AM GLOtAlMU~ AUDIO 

9:sa.u, • 10:s2•• ,-;,o .,.,MtoS Auo,o 

10:lUM • 10:)IAM ~L0141MflfS AUDIO 

10:32AM - lO;S2AM ~014lMUfCSI AUOIO 

OltfltH 

ouFtu 

Oltf•U 

ouftll 

Oll fltlr 

ouftu 

-- 1 

1 

I 

1 

1 

I 

53 

71 

65 

54 

l 1 

20 

0 ,00/MIN 

o .oo/MIN 

o .oo/MIN 

0 .00/MIN 

0.00/..11,i 

0 .00,..,.. 

0 .00 

0 .00 

0 .00 

0 .00 

0 .00 

0.00 

~.00 

~.00 

~.00 

~.00 

~-00 

~-00 

c)~}t 

, 

I 
J.00 

124777511 
(\-

...._--.n' \¥4" IA

VJ" ~ -

lfS/23/2019 

P8/ll/2019 

lfS/23/2019 

13162558171 

215S.56540 

8 :S'AM • 9:47AM 

8:57AM • 9 :48AM 

8:59AM • 9:48AM 

GlOIAlMUfCSI AUDIO 

Gto IAIMUtcD AUDIO 

GLOIA\MUYC, AUDIO 

Ottf•U 

OllftU 

OltFIU 

l 

l 

I 

50 

51 

49 

0,00/MIN 

o.oo/ MIII 

o.oo/M111 

0.00 

0 .00 

0.00 

o.oo 

~.oo 

~-00 ).00 

124777511 pll/23/2019 1407473839'; 10:55AM • 11: ISAM GlOIAlMUr<t AUDIO Oll ftH 1 20 o .oo/M111 0 .00 ~-00 I 

('\ 

-;,~'l,
'-..:.,, 

pe123/2019 

P&/23/2019 

)8/23/2019 

)8/23/2019 

13862574100 

13862n92o6 

2158456540 

13867)67700 

10:SSAM • ll:ISAM GLOIALM(fT$ AUDIO 

10:57AM • l l :ISAM GlOIAlMlU(D AUDIO 

10:Sll&M • 11: l SAM GlDIAIM[U. Auo,o 

10:59AM • 11:lSAM GI.OIAIMIUI!) Auo10 

OU flU 

Olt f•u 

OllhU 

OLLFttf 

l 

I 

1 

1 

20 

18 

17 

16 

o .oo/M111 

O.OO{MIN 

0.00/MIII 

0 ,00/MIN 

0.00 

0 .00 

0 .00 

0 .00 

,.oo 
o.oo 

~.oo 

~.00 ~-00 

TOTAL PRl•TAX o.oo TOTAL ~5f/0TNER 0,00 TOTAL STAT£ TAX/OTHER o.oo TOTAi. MODERATOR CHARGU us1 ►so.oo 



 

 

 

  

 

� 

Date Invoice Number 

September 9, 2019 105924 

Payment Terms Due Date 

Upon Receipt September 9, 2019 pfm 

Davenport South Road Community Development 
District 
c/o PFM Group Consulting District Accounting 
Department 
12051 Corporate Blvd 
Orlando, FL 32817 
United States of America 

Remittance Options: 

Via ACH (pr;eferred): 

RE: Billable expenses through July, 2019. 

Expenses 

Total Amount Due 

Bill To: 

Via.Wim; 

Company Address: 

1735 Market Street 
43rd Floor 
Philadelphia, PA 19103 
+1 (215) 567-6100 

Federal Tax ID: 81-1642478 

VJa..Mail;_ 

PFM Group Consulting LLC 

PO Box 65126 
Baltimore, MD 21264-5126 
United States of America 

$954.16 

of 2 



Date Invoice Number 

Gas (Rental Car) 
Gas (Rental Car) 
Gas (Rental Car) 
Gas (Rental Car) 
Gas (Rental Car) 
Gas (Renta1 Car) 
Gas (Rental Car) 
Gas (Rental Car) 
Gas (Rental Car) 
Gas (Rental Car) 
Gas CRental Car) 
Gas lRental Car) 

Mileage Reimbursement 

Miscellaneous Expense 
Miscellaneous Expense 
Miscellaneous Expense 

Rental Car 
Rental Car 
Rental Car 
Rental Car 
Rental Car 
Rental Car 
Rental Car 
Rental Car 
Rental Car 
Rental Car 
Rental Car 
Rental Car 

September 9, 2019 105924 

Payment Terms Due Date 

Upon Receipt September 9, 2019pfm 
Expense Supporting Detail 

Worker Transaction Date Amount Billed 

Dexter Glasgow 03/14/19 $5.84 • 
Dexter Glasgow 03/19/19 $16.16. 
Dexter Glasgow 04/03/19 $12.34• 
Dexter Glasgow 04/08/19 $19.47 .. 
Dexter Glasgow 04/18/19 $6.22. 
Dexter Glasgow 04/24/19 $14.09 • 
Dexter Glasgow 05/09/19 $14.48· 
Dexter Glasgow 05/22/19 $8.73-.. 
Dexter Glasgow 06/12/19 $23.50-
Dexter Glasgow 06/20/19 $10.oo~ 
Dexter Glasgow 06/27/19 $12.88 -o 
Dexter Glasgow 07/05/19 $4.50 

Gas (Rental Car) $148.2{ 

Dexter Glasgow 05/23/19 $63.68 

Mileage Reimbursement ~ 

Dexter Glasgow 04118119 - .-noi,n-r $49.54 • 
Dexter Glasgow 04118119 # m~•·"~ $6.38. 
Dexter Glasgow 04130119 - ~10 fe e~f\c.dt $384.87 • 

~ \\e~,o WIA-ro Miscellaneous Expense ~ 
Dexter Glasgow 03/14/19 $28.25 • 
Dexter Glasgow 03/19/19 $38.75 · 
Dexter Glasgow 04/03/19 $20.88• 
Dexter Glasgow 04/08/19 $29.83+ 
Dexter Glasgow 04/18/19 $11.46 • 
Dexter Glasgow 04/24/19 $22.52 • 
Dexter Glasgow 05/09/19 $32.87 ~ 
Dexter Glasgow 05/22/19 $12.16 • 
Dexter Glasgow 06/12/19 $37.24• 
Dexter Glasgow 06/20/19 $15.28' 
Dexter Glasgow 06/27/19 $39.11... 
Dexter Glasgow 07/05/19 $13.13~ 

Rental Car m1A§ 

Total Expenses: $954.16 

2 Of 2 

https://e~f\c.dt


RaceTrac 265
10 Alafaya Woods Blvd.

Oviedo.FL 32765
(407) 366-4620

Frn r,u;,!;t Exper ience. Comments 
PJe3se Call 888 636.5589

O, go to ,acetrac.com 
( DUPLICAff RECEIPT )

Qty AmountL.i De~u ipt ion 

lJn l -8 / Pump 17 
3.000 G~ $2. 699/ G $8. 10 

A'> adver ti~Pcl. E20 Flex Fue l may be 
nfte, ed in plare of El5 Gasol ine 

Sub Tota1 $8. 10
Tax: $0. 00 

Total Visa :$8.$~~ (y 
Change $0.00 

Caplur e 

Visa
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369
Swiped 

04/04/2019 17:24 :09 

I agree to pay th~ 
above Tota I Amm1nt
a1.cor<ling to Card 
Il>suer Ayr ee111ent. 

fer~ : JD121571590U1 
APPi : 00626A 
Seqll : 010622 

( fU>LIC'ATf PECEIPT ) 
Rl:G : lOOCSH: ICR TAAN: 1178188 

4/ 4/2019 5:24:26 PM
OFFER ON BACK

NO LONGER VAL ID 

HOW ARE WE DOING?
GUEST@RACETRAC.COM 



.lt/3/201914:26:0 
Order Humber: 

Circle K 2709758 
14000 Town Loop Blud 
Orlando FL 32837 

( 407) 240-1126 
SHELL 
14000 TOWH LOOP BLUO 
ORLAHDO FL 
32837 
Merch a: 57542485008 
Appr: 03216A 
lnuoice a: 825877 
UHL - REG 
PUMP Ho . 16 
Gallons 15 . 073 
PRICE/G $2 . 699 
TOTAL FUEL $.lt0.68 
TOTAL SALE $110 .68 
UISA 
xxxx xxxx xxxx 9369 

Choose Shell U-Power 
HiTRO+ Premium 
Gasoline. 
Our best (most 
aduanced) fuel ... 

04/03/2019 1.lt:23:1.lt 

THANK YOU 
HAUE A HICE DAY 

https://1.lt:23:1.lt


RaceTrac 601 
11801 University Blv 
Orlando , FL 32817 
(407) 249-9215 
For Guest Experience 

Comments, Please 
Call 888.636.5589 or 
go to racetrac.com 

Term: JD12086375001 
Appr: 05459A 
Seq#: 035824 
PUMP No. 13 
Grade: Unl -87 
Gallons: 13.880 G 
Price: $2.709/Gal 
Total Fuel: $37 .60 

As advertised, 
E20 Flex Fuel may be 
ottered in place of 

E15 Gasoline 
TOTAL SALE $37.60 
Visa $37 .60 

Capture 

Visa 
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369 
Swiped 

04/01/2019 15:29:52 

I agree to pay the 
above Total Amount 
according to Card 
Issuer Agreement. 

OFFER ON BACK 
NO LONGER VAL ID 

HOW ARE WE DOING? 
GUEST©RACETRAC . COM 

4/1/2019 15 : 31:59 

https://racetrac.com


--------------

-- -----------

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

DoNotReolv@erac.com 
Dexter Glasgow 
ENTERPRJSE Rental Agreement 59KC7G 
Thursday, April 4, 2019 5:35:40 PM 

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Use care with links and attachments. 

[ij 

RA#: 59KC7G 

Renter: GLASGOW,DEXTER 

----------------------.
Dates & Times 

Pickup 
Apr 01, 2019 
9:26 AM 

Return 
Apr 04, 2019 
5:32 PM 

Vehicle 

Make/Model: HYUN/SANF 
Color: WHITE 
Mileage: 819 
Fuel Out: 3/4 
License: JAIW45 
Unit#: 7QJHK0 
Charges 

TIME & DISTANCE 04/01 - 04/04 

FL WASTE TIRE & BATTERY FEE 

SC REC - FL SURCHG RECOV 

VEHICLE LICENSE FEE RECOVERY 

SALES TAX 

2019-04·04 17:35:08 

Location 

1441 ALAFAYA TRAIL 
OVIEDO, FL 32765-9171 
4079714933 

1441 ALAFAYA TRAIL 
OVIEDO, FL 32765-9171 
4079714933 

Fuel In: 7/8 

Vehicle#: JGS41567 
Price/Unit 

4 @ $31.34/DAY 

4 @ $0.02/DAY 

4 @ $2.00/DAY 

4 @ $0.80/DAY 

7.0000% 

Total Charges: 

Charge To: 

Total 

$125.36 

$0.08 

$8.00 

$3.20 

$9.56 

$146.20 ~ 

VISA xxxx9369 

mailto:DoNotReolv@erac.com


RaceTrac 265 
10 Alafaya Woods Blv
Oviedo . Fl 3276~
(407' 366-4620
For duest Exoer1ence

Comments Ple<1:HJ
Call 888.6~6 . 5589 or 

go to racetrac.com 
Term: JDl2157159001 
Appr; Ol 408Z
Seq#: 044403 
PUMP No. 04 
Grade: Unl-87
Gallons: 8.997 G 
Pr lee: $2.599/Gdl
Total Fuel: $23.38

As advertised,
E20 Flex Fuel may ~e
offered In place of 

El5 Gasol lne
TOTAL SALE $23.38 
MasterCard $23.3¼ 
Capture 7 

Mastei-Carcl 0.'ht).XXXXXXXXXXXX2206
Swiped 

03/14/2019 lJ:37:~8 
OFFER ON BACK

NO LONGtR VAL IU 
HOW ARE WE DOING?
GUEST~RACETRAC.COM

3/14/2019 15:39:34 

https://GUEST~RACETRAC.COM
https://racetrac.com


Dexter Glasgow 

From: Customerservice@enterprise.com 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2019 3:57 PM 
To: Dexter Glasgow 
Subject: ENTERPRISE RENTAL AGREEMENT 53NP3N 

ENTERPRISE LEASING COMPANY OF ORLANDO, 1441 ALAFAYA TRAIL, OVIEDO, FL 327659171 (407) 971-4933 

RENTAL AGREEMENT REF# SUM MARY OF CHARGES 
2073 53NP3N 

Char11e Descrietion Date Quantity Per Rate Total 
RENTER TIME & DISTANCE 03/13 • 03£14 2 DAY iso.oo $100.00 
GLASGOW, DEXTER REFUELING CHARGE 03/13 - 03/14 10.00 

Subtotal: !100.00DATE & TIME OUT 
Taxes & Surcharges 

DATE & TIME IN 03/13 • 03/14 2 DAY $0.02 $0.04 
03/13/2019 09:07 AM 

FL WASTE TIRE & BATTERY FEE 

03/14/2019 03:55 PM SALES TAX 03/13 - 03/14 7% $7.39 
SC REC - FL SURCHG RECOV 03/13 - 03/14 2 DAY $2.00 $4.00 

BILLING CYCLE VEHICLE LICENSE FEE RECOVERY 03/13 • 03/14 2 DAY io.ao !1.60 
24-HOUR Total Cha!]leS: !113.03 

Bill-To l Deeosits 
VEH #1 2018 CHEV MALI 1LT4 DEPOSITS ($113.03 ¼VIN# 1G1ZDSSTSJF153027 
LIC# GHTD23 

Total Amount DueMILES DRIVEN 273 $0.00 °' 
PAYMENT INFORMATIONRATE SOURCE ACCOUNT 
AMOUNT PAID TYPE CREDIT CARD NUMBER ':i-ct)1J .FISHKIND & ASSOCIATES INC 
$113.03 Mastercard xxxxxxxxxxxx2206 ~ 

1 

mailto:Customerservice@enterprise.com


--

Rental Agreement #: 5527D5~; nterprise Bill Ref#: 9500-3154-5338 
! ---- ~ Invoice Date: 03/20/2019 
1441 ALAFAYA TRAIL 
OVIEDO, FL 32765-9171 

IBILL TO 
DEXTER GLASGOW 
216 LITTLE CREEK LN 
WINTER SPRINGS, FL- 32708IRENTAL INFORMATION 
._____________________. Total Charges (USO) 155.11 
Date/Time Out Date/Time In l~PA-:-=-:Y"""M,:-:E,:-:N~T:;,-:S=------~---------~ 
03/18/2019 09:07 AM 03/20/2019 04:06 PM 

Payment Visa -155.11 
Renter 
GLASGOW, DEXTER Total Payments (USO) -155.11. /r....RENTAL_VE _ _c_ _ _ ✓-~._ _ _ _ _ _" ' LEs ____________,,1 

......__________________, Amount Due (USD) 0.00 

Account#: 

Li':!'.LING DETAIL______________,_ _ _ _ _
Description Qty/Per Rate Amount 
TIME & DISTANCE 3 DAY 47.50 142,50 

Subtotal 142.50 
3 DAY 0.02 0.06 

VEHICLE LICENSE FEE RECOVERY 3 DAY 0.80 ~:~~1I SALES TAX PCT 7.00 

L. M d ICO Ior Icense O e 
SIL VER LDHY68 RANGER 
VIN:1 FTE R4EH8KLA05952 

ICLAIM INFORMATION 

Claim#/ PO#/ RO# 

Date of Loss Type of Loss 

Repair Shop 

M iles/Kms Individual line ilern cha~• such as rental rates fornTime ;u,d Distance, perc~l1e•b•m•d cha~~·U • 0 I e,\I., SJll&s la~ arid- n or surcharQesl, and c arges arvrded b,:lween mu , pa es ma oemt ut n a'liwgf,o't&o~~ lr~M. ce~fs cent lo ensure that • charges equal lne actua Olal unt ue 
7RX4J6 2,127 2,676 

Insured 

Type of Vehicle 

-
!!!!!!!! 
!!!!!!!! 

!!!!!!!!For Billing Inquiries/ Payment Terms : === 
Tel#:4074477999 -!!!!!!!!ORLARADMIN@EHI.COM --Payment Due within days of invoice date -!!!!!!!! 
Late oavments are subiect to a finance charae. 

Thank You For Choosing Enterprise 

Please Return This Portion With Remittance 

Remit To: 
ENTERPRISE RENT-A-CAR 
5442 HOFFNER AVE 
ORLANDO, FL 32812 

Amount Due (USO) 0.0 0 

Paid By: 
DEXTER GLASGOW 
216 LITTLE CREEK LN 
WINTER SPRINGS, FL 32708 

Fed Tax Id: 59-1356140 Account# Rental Agreement Amount GPBR 
5527D5 0.00 0762 

mailto:ORLARADMIN@EHI.COM


RaceTrac 601 
11801 University Blv 
Orlando I FL 32817 
(407) 249-9215 
For Guest Experience 

Comments, Please 
Call 888.636.5589 or 

go to racetrac.com 

Term: JD12086375001 
Appr: 08140A 
Seq#: 017988 
PUMP No. 16 
Grade: Unl-87 
Gallons: 12.000 G 
Price: $2.539/Gal 
Total Fuel: $30.47 

As advertised, 
E20 Flex Fuel may be 
offered in place of 

E15 Gasoline 
TOTAL SALE $30.47 
Visa $30.47 

Capture 

Visa 
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369 
Swiped 

03/20/2019 10:06:41 

I agree to pay the 
above Total Amount 
according to Card 
IssL1er Agreement. 

OFFER ON BACK 
NO LO~JGER VAL ID 

HOW ARE WE DOING? 
GUEST@RACETAAC.COM 

3/20/2019 10:08:28 

mailto:GUEST@RACETAAC.COM
https://racetrac.com


wawa #5118 
3000 N. Alafaya 
Oviedo FL 32765 

******************** 
3/19/2019 8:34:17 AM 
Term: JD12067146001 
Appr: 06504A 
Seq#: 047897 
Product: Unleaded 
Pump Gallons Price 
10 11.428 $2.549 
Total Sale $29.13 
Capture 

Visa 
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369 
Swiped 

03/19/2019 08:32:33 

I agree to pay the 
above Total Amount 
according to Card 
Issuer Agreement. 
******************** 
YOUR OPINION MATTERS 
Tell us about your 

e>1perience ,1t
* MyWawaVisit. com ·•, 
Take our survey for 

a chance to win 
Wawa swag 

gift baskets and 
gift cards valued 

at up to $500! 
Disponible 
en Espanol 

Survey Code: 1495271 
Store Number:05118 

*******************~ 
Please respond 
within 5 days 

NO PURCHASE 
NECESSARY 

See rules at wetsite 



RaceTrac 265
10 Alafaya Woods Blv
Oviedo , FL 32765 
(407) 366-4620
For Guest ExQerience

Comments Please 
Call 888.6~6.5589 or 

go to racetrac.com 
Term: JD12157159001 
Appr: 09742A 
Sea#: 053346
PUMP No. 01 
Graae: Unl-87 
Gallons: 2.000 G
Price: $2.529/Gal
Total Fuel: $5.06 Cl)

As advertised, ,
E20 Flex Fuel may be u
offered 1n place of · 

El5 Gasoline 
TOTAL SALE $5.06
Visa $5.06 
Capture 
Visa 
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369
Swiped 

03/20/2019 15:50:50 
OFFER ON BACK 

NO LONGER VAl ID 
HOW ARE WE DOING? 
GUEST@RACETRAC.COM

3/20/2019 15:51:47 

mailto:GUEST@RACETRAC.COM
https://racetrac.com


--------------------------

_________________________ _ _ _ _

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

DoNotReoly@erac.com 
Dexter Glasgow 
ENTERPRISE Rental Agreement 5CVZ64 
Wednesday, April 10, 2019 9:47:43 AM 

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Use care with links and attachments. 

I 
r 

RA#: 5CVZ64 

Renter: GLASGOW,DEXTER 

Dates ll Times 

Pickup 
Apr 08, 2019 
9:48 AM 

Return 
Apr 10, 2019 
9:41 AM 

Vehicle 

Make/Model: FORD/F25C 
Color: WHITE 
Mileage: 429 
Fuel Out: Full 
License: LHNP90 
Unit #: 7S85C8 

Location 

1441 ALAFAYA TRAIL 
OVIEDO, FL 32765-9171 
4079 714933 

1441 ALAFAYA TRAIL 
OVIEDO, FL 32765-9171 
4079714933 

Fuel In: Full 

Vehicle #: KEE34595 
Charges 

TIME & DISTANCE 04/08 - 04/ 10 

FL WASTE TIRE & BATTERY FEE 

VEHICLE LICENSE FEE RECOVERY 

SALES TAX 

Price/Unit Total 

2@ $40.99/DAY $81.98 

2 @ $0.02/DAY $0.04 

2 @ $0.80/DAY $1.60 

7.0000% $5.85 

Total Charges: $89.47/4
C_ha-rg& To_: ------VIS A xxxx9369 3 

2019-04-10 09:47:15 

mailto:DoNotReoly@erac.com


RaceTrac 265 
10 Alafaya Woods Blvd. 

Oviedo.FL 32765 
(407) 366-4620 

Fo1 Guest Experience. Comments 
Please Call 888,636.5589 

Or go to racetrac.com 
( DUPLICATE RECEIPT) 

Tax Description Qty Amount 

Unl -87 Pump 20 
3.003 G@ $2. 799/ G $8.41 

As advertised, E20 Flex Fuel may be 
offored in place of E15 Gaso l ine 

Sub fatal $8.41 
Tax: $0. 00 

Total $8.41 
Visa: $8. 41 

Change $0.00 

Capture 

Visa 
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369 
Swiped 

04/10/2019 09: 24 :48 

I agree to pay the 
above Total Amount 
according to Card 
Issuer Agreement. 

l erm: JDl 2151159001 
Appr : 01216A 
Seq#: 0194 ll 

( DUPLlf.AT~ RECEIPT l 
REG: 1OOCSH: ICR fRAN: 1192523 

4/10/2019 9:25:04 AM 
OFFER ON BACK 

NO LONGER VAi.ID 

HOW ARE WE ODJNG? 
GUEST~RACETRAC. COM 

https://DUPLlf.AT
https://racetrac.com
https://Oviedo.FL


AaceTrac 283 
38425 us Highway 27 
Davenport , Fl 33837 

For Guest Experience 
Comments, Please 

Call 888.636.5589 or 
go to racetrac.com 

Term: JD12397455001 
Appr : 03129A 
Seq# : 057070 
PUMP No. 
Grade: Unl-87 
Gallons: 17.862 G 
Price: $2.799/Gal 
Total Fuel: $50.00 

As advertised, 
E20 Flex Fuel may be 
offered in place of 

E15 Gasoline 
TOTAL SALE $50.00 
Visa $50.00 

Capture 

Visa 
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369 
Swiped 

04/08/2019 12: 18:44 
OFFER ON BACK 

NO LONGER VAL ID 

HOW ARE WE DOING? 
GUEST@RACETRAC.COM 

4/8/2019 12:21:57 

mailto:GUEST@RACETRAC.COM
https://racetrac.com


From: DoNotReolv@erac com 
To: Dexter Glasgow 
Subject: ENTERPRISE Rental Agreement SH86LR 
Date: Thursday, April 18, 2019 5:15:28 PM 

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Use care with links and attachments. 

RA#: 5HB6LR 

Renter: GLASGOW,DEXTER 

Dates & Times 

Pickup 
Apr 18, 2019 
9:17 AM 

Return 
Apr 18, 2019 
S: 13 PM 

Vehicle 

Make/Model: HYUN/TUCS 
Color: SILVER 
Mileage: 140 
Fuel Out: 1/2 
License: LDIH13 
Unit#: 7SLCX3 
Charges 

TIME & DISTANCE 04/18 - 04/18 

Fl WASTE TIRE & BATTERY FEE 

SC REC - FL SURCHG RECOV 

VEHICLE LICENSE FEE RECOVERY 

SALES TAX 

2019-04-18 17: 14 : 59 

Location 

1441 ALAFAYA TRAIL 
OVIEDO, FL 32765-9171 
4079714933 

1441 ALAFAYA TRAIL 
OVIEDO, FL 32765-9171 
4079714933 

Fuel In: 3/4 

Vehicle#: KU947058 
Price/Unit 

1 @ $40.00/DAY 

1 @ $0.02/DAY 

1 @ $2.00/DAY 

1 @ $0.80/DAY 

7.0000% 

Total Charges: 

Charge To : 

Total 

$40.00 

$0.02 

$ 2.00 

$0.80 

$3.00 

$45.82/2 

VISA xxxx9369 ~ 



•• ICR RECEIPT•• 

7-ELEVEN 
8250 WORLD CENTER ORI 

ORLANDO Fl 328215404 
4072391157 

STORE#: 29775 
CHECK OUT OUR $1 VALUE MENU 
TRV OUR NEW OORITOS LOADED! 

0# 2 RUL 
14.269 GAL i 2.689 /GAL 38.37 

CREDIT PREPAV 38.37 

SUBTOTAL 38.37 c-,
TOTAL DUE 38.37 (J,;I
VISA 38.37 
GLASGOW/OEXTERR
ACCT# : ••••••••••••9369 
APPROVAL#: O2131A AUTH CODE: 0 
APPROVAL TIME: 112857 
ENTRV: SWIPE 
STORE# 29775 
TERM# : 00072977541 08 
REF# : 92000 59 020 6 

PLEASE COME AGAIN. BRING AFRIEND 
LAK GREWAL. FRANCHISE OWNER 
WW REPRINT"""'" 

T#03 OP TRN2028359 04/22/2019 11:31 am 



RaceTrac 601 
11801 Uni V81'Si ty 81V 

Orlando , FL 32817 
(407) 249-9215 
For Guest fxperience 

Comments, Please 
Call 888.636.5589 or 

go t,:i racet1'ac. com 

Term: JD12086375001 
Appr: 09823A 
Seq#: 003010 
PUMP No. 19 
Grade: Unl-87 
Gallons: 14.211 G 
Price: $2.659/Gal 
Total Fuel: $37.79 

As advertised, 
E20 Flex Fuel may be 
offer ed in place of 

E15 Gasoline 
TOTAL SALE $37.79 
Visa $37.79 

Capture 

Visa 
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369 
Swiped 

04/23/2019 17:16:07 

I agree to pay the 
above Total Amount 
according to Card 
Issuer Agreement . 

OFFER ON BACK 
NO LONGER VAL ID 

HOW ARE WE DOING? 
GUEST@RACETRAC.COM 

4/23/2019 17:19:34 

mailto:GUEST@RACETRAC.COM


RaceTrac 601 
11801 university Blv 
Orlando , Fl 32817 
(407) 249-9215 . 
For Guest Experience 

comments, Please 
call 888.636.5589 or -,°tgo to racetrac.com 

~'I . J 
Term: JD12086375001 {i) ~ "b 
Appr: 05211A ~ ?j~· ./\
Seq#: 004456 ~ _...,~."' 
PUMP No. 17 ~ v I 
Grade: Unl-87 ~ 3 1 
Gallons: 8 . 451 G n4-,.lo 
Price: $2.659/Gal "'\v 
Total Fuel : . $22. 4 7 !t0 QO\ 

As advertised, ~ '16.\\X. 
E20 Flex Fuel may be :JI..\ • 
offered in place of 

E15 Gasoline 
TOTAL SALE $22.47 
Visa $22.47 

Capture 

Visa 
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369 
Swiped 

04/24/2019 17:25:10 

I agree to pay the 
above Total Amount 
according to Card 
Issuer Agreement. 

OFFER ON BACK 
NO LONGER VAL IO 

HOW ARE WE DOING? 
GUEST@AACETAAC.COM 

4/24/2619 17:26:55 

mailto:GUEST@AACETAAC.COM
https://racetrac.com


RaceTrac 265
10 Alafaya Woods Blv
Oviedo , Fl 32765
(407) 366-4620
For

Comaents
Guest Exoer1ence

Please
Call 888.6~6.5589 or

go to racetrac.com 
Term: J012157159001
Appr: 02805A
Seq#: 033209
PUMP No. 08
Grade: Unl-87
Gallons: 9.118 G
Price: $2. 729/Gal
Total Fuel: $24.88

As advertised,
E20 Flex Fuel ~ay be
offered in place of

E15 Gasoline
TO TAL SALE $24.8¼8Visa $24.88 
Captu r e t\
Visa 'y
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369
Swiped ~\a~ 
04/18/2019 17:02:55 
I agree to pay the
above Total Amount
according to card
Issuer Agreement.

OFFER ON BACK
NO LONGER VAL IO 

HOW ARE WE DOING?
GUEST@RACETRAC.COM4/18/2019 17:04:46 



From: customerserv;ce@enterprjse.com 
To: Dexter Glasgow 
Subject: ENTERPRISE RENTAL AGREEMENT SJ83P7 
Date: Thursday, April 25, 2019 5:28:33 PM 

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Use care with links and attachments. 

ENTERPRISE LEASING COMPANY OF ORLANDO, 1441 ALAFAYA TRAIL, OVIEDO, FL 327659171 (407) 
971-4933 

RENTAL AGREEMENT REF# SUMMARY OF CHARGES 
3320 5J83P7 

Charge Description Date Quantity Per Rate Total 
RENTER TIME & DISTANCE 04/22 - 04/ 25 4 DAY $34.00 $136.00 
GLASGOW, DEXTER REFUELING CHARGE 04/22 • 04/ 25 $0.00 

Subtotal: $136.00 
DATE & TIME OUT Taxes & Surcharges 
04/22/2019 10:23 AM FL WASTE TIRE & BATTERY _

04122 04125 4 DAY $0.02 $0.08DATE & TIME IN FEE 
04/25/2019 05:25 PM SALES TAX 04/22 • 04/ 25 7% $10.31 

SC REC - FL SURCHG 
04/22 • 04/ 25 4 DAY $2.00 $8.00

BILLING CYCLE RECOV 
24-HOUR VEHICLE LICENSE FEE 

04/22 • 04/ 25 4 DAY $0.80 $3.20
RECOVERY 

YEH Total Charges: $157.59 
#1 2019 NISN ROGU SV2W Bill-To / Deposits 
VIN# KNMAT2MTXKP5049 03 DEPOSITS ($157.59)/ 
LIC# EVZW18 7
MILES DRIVEN995 Total Amount Due $O,of 

RATE SOURCE ACCOUNT PAYMENT INFORMATION 
PUBLIC FINANCIAi.. AMOUNT PAID TYPE CREDIT CARD NUMBER 
MANAGEMENT $157.59 V1sa xxxxxxxxxxxx9369 

mailto:ce@enterprjse.com


• • 

lM 'S HOHE C[HIERS, LLC 
37051 US HIGll!IAV 27 

HAI HES CIIV, FL 33844 (863> 422-9116 

- SALE -
SALbM: FSTLANEJ 13 TRAHSN: 6605306 04-18 ·19 

63241 IIK HEIAL ~NAP I\OOk 111TH R 1. 97 
63250 1 l/21H 5Pllf RING I. 48 
33l81 HK 195 SLHLAGE HIN BRAS 42.84 

18 i 2.38 

SUBIOIAL: 46,29 
TAX: 3. 25 

INVUIC[ 06188 TU!Al: 49.54 
H/C: 49.54 

H/C: XXXXXXXXXXXX4006 AHOUHT:49.54 t\UIHCO: 123616 
1.HlP Rff!0:270206172492 04/18/19 12:33:08 

CUSTOHER CODE: holl hi 11 cdd 
APL: Hds tercard IVR: 0000008000 

AID: A00000000410l0 TS!: EBOO 
STORE: 2702 TERIIINM.: ~ 04/18/19 12:~:~ 

HOF ITEHS PURCHASED: 20 
[XCLUO[!i ms. SERVICESAHO SPECIAL OROfR llfHS 

: i 1111 1!11111Iii H !111111 I :1 1111[1 i I 
ltlANK YOU FOR SHOPPING UME S. 

:il( REVERSE SIDE FOR RHURH POLICY. 
STORE KAHMiER: APRIL HCCURRV 

Ll)f[' S PRICE HAICH GUARAHIEE 
FOR HORE OfIAll S, VISII LWES.COH/PRICEHAICII 

• YOUR OPINIONS Cotlllll •
• REGISTER FOR A CHANCE TO BE • 

ltHE OF FIVE $300 WINNERS ORAIIH KONTHLV! •
• iREGISTRESE EN EL SORfEO HENSUAL • 
• PARA SERUNO D£ L~', ClllO GAHAOOR[S 0£ $100! ' 
• RlGISIEU BY l"UNf'LflJN~ A6UESI SA!lSFACflUH SURVEY • 
• WlltHN ONE Wf[K Al: wv. loves.co1/survev • 

V O U R 1 0 N06788 2702 108 • 
• 

NO PURCHASt NECESSARY TO ENTER OR WIH. • 
• VOID WHERE PROHl81fEO. NU'il BE 18 OR IK.0£R TO ENTER. • 
• OFFICIAL RllES &WIHHERS Al : wv. loves.co1/survey • ........................................................ 

STIJE: 2702 IERIIIIW.: 06 04/18/19 12:35:!Wi 

https://AHOUHT:49.54


•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Wile• to Ynt 15230 
Phone:863-810-9069 
13582 Hlshwey 27 

Devenport , FL 33837 
5/8/2019 10:08:06 AH Trx I 3162090 
Re9ilter 1100 Ceshler : ICR 

Cuato~tr CoPY / Du,llceted R1ceJpt 

Total : ...2.86 
--------------------·------------------· 
Qtv 

Ttr~: J012397880001 
Appr : 00◄90A 
St'll : 002518 

Pay at Pu~p Seit 
Pu~p l :16Unleaded 
15 .876 Gallona 9 $2 .699/Ga! $12 85 

Sub-Total $12 .85 
Tax : so 00 
Total : $42 .85 0 
Vl11: , ..2 .16 
Ch11n91 : so.oo 

c,,turt 

Visa 
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369 
SwlPed 

05/08/2019 10:07 :53 

I 119r11 to pa~ tht 
1b0ve Tatel A~ount 
1ccordln9 to Cerd 
I11u1r A9r1t~ent . 

• YOUR OPINION HATTERS! • 
• Tell u1 1bout your experience et • 
• www .HyW1weV111t .co~ • 
• Take our surve~ For I chance to wln • 
• Wewe 1we9 t1Ft b111ket1 and • 
• tlft c1rd1 valued et up to 1500! • 
• Oisponlble en Espanol • 

• Surve~ Codt : 3462090 •
• Store Nu~ber :05230 • 

Pl1111 respond wlthtn 6 deya 
NO PURCHASE NECESSARY 
S11 rul11 on websitt 

www.HyW1weV111t.co


• • 

• • 

LIJIE' SHON£ CENTERS, LLC 
37051 US HIGtt!AV 27 

HAIN~SCITY, FL 33844 (863) 422-9116 

- SALE -
SALESM: rSTLAHE4 13 TRANSR: 7602436 04-18-19 

750075 H~ 6-CT 1·1/4 IN COLOR PA 5.96 
2 I 2.98 

susroTAL: 5.96 
TAX: 0. 42 

llfJOICE 07815 TOTAL: 6.38 
N/C: 6.38 

N/C: XXXi<XXXXXXX4006 ANOUHT:6.38 AUTHCO: 1W54 
CHIP RcfIO: 270207153329 04/18/19 It:46: 56 

WSTO/IER GOO£: holly hill cdd 
AP1. : Hastemrd lVR: 0000008000 

AID: A0000000041010 TSI: E800 
STIIE: 2702 TERIUIW.: 07 04/18/19 11: 47:16 

M OF ITEHS PURCHASED: 2 
[XruJD[S ms, SERYIC£S Niil 5'£Clll OROCR HEMS 

I 1111111111 lilll 1111111111111 UI 
THANK VOU fOR SHOPPING LIME ' S. 

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RETURN POUCV. 
STORE HANAGER: APRIL HCCURRV 

L~E'S PRICE HATCH GUARANTEE 
FOR HOR~ DETAILS. VISIT LMS.COH/PRICEHATCH ........................................................ 

• VOIIR OP INIOHSCOUNT! • 
, REGISTER FOR ACHANCE TO BE • 
• ONE Of FIVE $300 WINNERS DRAHH HOHTHLVI • 
• tREG! STRESE EN EL SORTED NEHSUAL • 
• PARA SE:l UHO DE LOS CINCO GAHAOORES DE $3001 • 

• REGISTER Si' COHPLEflHG AGUEST SATISFACTION SURVEY • 
• WITH!~ ONE WEEK AT: vw. loves.co1/survey • 
• i O U R I OM07875 2702 108 • 

• NO P1JRCHASE NECE55ARV TO ENTER OR WIN. • 
• VOID I/HERE i>ROHIBITEO. "UST BE 18 OR Ol0£R TO ENTER . • 

1• OFFICIAL RJLES & WINNERS AT: wv. l011es.co1/sumy • 
........................,u............................. 

ST"1f:: 2702 TERNIIW.: 07 04/18/19 11:47:16 

® 

https://ANOUHT:6.38


Wawa #5118 
3000 N. Alafaya 
Oviedo Fl 32765 

******************** 
5/7/2819 18:24:27 A 
Term: J012867146881 
Appr: 84213A 
Seq#: 009629 
Product: Unleaded 
Pump Gallons Price 
03 16.331 $2.699 
Total Sale $44.08 
Capture 

Visa 
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369 
Swiped 

05 87/2019 18:22:11 

I agree to pay the 
above Total Amount 
according to Card 
Issuer Agreement. 
****-************** 
YOUR OPINION MATTERS 

Tell us about your 
experience at 

* MyWawaVisit.com * 
Take our survey for 

a chance to win 
Wawa swag 

gift baskets and 
gift cards valued 

at up to $5001 
Disponible 
en Espanol 

Survey Code: 1514868 
Store Number:85118 

**************-**** 
Please respond 
within 5 days 

NO PURCHASE 
NECESSARY 

See rules at website 

https://MyWawaVisit.com


--------------------------------

------------------------------

From: DoNotReplv@erac.com 
To: Dexter Glasgow 
Subject: ENTERPRISE Rental Agreement SP74FQ 
Date: Friday, May 10, 2019 8:25:40 AM 

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Use care with links and attachments. 

RA#: SP74FQ 

Renter: GLASGOW,DEXTER 

Dates & Times Location 

Pickup 1441 ALAFAYA TRAIL 
May 07, 2019 OVIEDO, FL 32765-9171
9 :52 AM 4079714933 

Return 1441 ALAFAYA TRAIL 
May 10, 2019 OVIEDO, FL 32765-9171 
8:22 AM 4079714933 

Vehicle 

Make/Model : FORD/FlSC 
Color: SILVER 
Mileage: 769 
Fuel Out: 7/8 Fuel In: 7/8 
License: LDHN57 
Unit # : 7RYBH8 Vehicle #: KFA64436 
Charges Price/Unit Total 

TIME & DISTANCE 05/07 - 05/10 3@ $41.00/ DAY $123.00 

FL WASTE TIRE & BATTERY FEE 3 @ $0.02/ DAY $0.06 

VEHICLE LICENSE FEE RECOVERY 3 @ $0.80/DAY $2.40 

SALES TAX 7.0000% $8.78 

Optional Products And Protections_Acce~ted 
DAMAGE WAIVER 3 @ $20 .99/ DAY $62.97 

Total Charges: $197.21 / 

Charge To : VISA xxxx936g/' lp 
2019-05-10 08:25:24 

mailto:DoNotReplv@erac.com


SCHOOL For assistance, please contact: Payment Receipt OUTFITTERS Jason Rapp 

www.schooloutfitters.oom Phone: 866-619-0260 Order# ORD11192698 
1-800-260-2776 Fax: 866-619-0261 Apr30,20193736 RegentAve. 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45212-3724 jason.rapp@schooloutfitters.com Page 1 of 1 

Bill To Ship To 
The North Blvd Community Developement District The North Blvd Community Developement District 
Dexter Glasgow Dexter Glasgow 
12051 Corporate Blvd 12051 Corporate Blvd 

Orlando, FL32817-1450 USA Orlando, FL 32817-1450 USA 
Phone: 1 (407) 723-5928 Fax: Phone: 1 (407) 723-5928 Fax: 
Email: Glasgowd@pfm.com Email: Glasgowd@pfm.com 

SKU# Description Qty List % off Your Price 

1. NOR-ATA-1001-S OUTDOOR/INDOOR ENLCOSEO CORK BULLETIN 3 $502.50 31 .36% $344.86 
0 BOARD W/ Tl/VO DOORS (4' W X 3' H) 

Shipping & Handling Breakdown 

Items shipping from: Shipping Via: 

Norwood Commercial SOUTHEASTERN 
Furniture FREIGHT LINES 

Total Charged: $1, 154.63 

Payment Information 

Date Received 4/ 30/ 2019 

Payment Method~redit Card 

Name on Card dexter glasgow 

Type of Card Master 

C.C. / Check Number XXXX • XXXX-XXXX-4006 

Exp 11/ 22 

Transaction ID 5566485560496496604080 

Purchase Order No. 

If you are paying with a credit card, your card wm be 
charged the day you order. In cases where your order 
does not ship immediately, this would be considered a 
prepayment. 

Important notes about this order: 

Please contact your Florida account 

Product SubTotal: 

Shipping & Handling: 

Sales Tax: 

Grand Total: 

Ext. Price 

$1.034.64 

$1,034.64 
$119.99 

$0.00 

$1,154.sy 

(5 

manager Jason Rapp at 866-619-0260 or 
jason.rapp@schooloutfitters.com for additional information. I am here to help you find the right solutions for 
your business and learning environments. 

Thank you for your business. 

mailto:jason.rapp@schooloutfitters.com
https://1,154.sy
https://1,034.64
https://1.034.64
mailto:Glasgowd@pfm.com
mailto:Glasgowd@pfm.com
mailto:jason.rapp@schooloutfitters.com
www.schooloutfitters.oom


6/24/2019 Enterprise Plus Login IEnterprise Rent-A-Car 

RENTAL FOR MAY 22, 2019 

Rental Agreement #: 5V5597 CJ Customer Service: 855-287-4216 

PICK-UP RETURN 
Oviedo Autonat1on Coll1s1on 22 May 2019 Oviedo Autonation Collision 23 May 2019 
Oviedo, FL 852AM ➔ Oviedo. FL 900 AM 
'I l,07-971 -L.933 • l 407 97 I-L,933 

FINAL TOTAL (USD) 

RENTAL CHARGES RENTER DETAILS 

VEHICLE Name: DEXTER GLASGOW 

TIME & DISTANCE $ 54.00 / day $ 54.00 Member#: WSJ872R 

Address On File: ····LITTLE CREE···· 
EXTRAS 

............ ............ 
REFUELING CHARGE $ 0.00 / gallon Fee Waived Account Name Public Financial 

Management 
TAXES&FEES 

SALES TAX $3.98 

VEHICLE DETAILS$ 0.02 / day $0.02 

SC REC • FL SURCHG RECOV $ 2.00 / day $2.00 
Class Driven: MVAR 

VEHICLE LICENSE FEE RECOVERY $ 0.80 / day $ 0.80 
Class Charged: MVAR 

TOTAL Make/Model: CHRY PACI 

total (USO) License Plate; JBIT45 
$60~ 

DISTANCE,~.\ \o 

Odometer Start: 34320 Miles 

Odometer End: 35912 Miles 

Distance Driven: 1592 Miles 

Thank you for choosing Enterprise. 

htt0s://www.enterprise.com/en/account.html#reservation 



Wawa #5118
3000 N. Alafaya
Oviedo FL 32765

********************
6/12/2019 8:51:45 AM 
Term: J012067146001
Appr: 00493A
Seq#: 007813
Product: Unleaded
Pump Gallons Price 
10 18.758 $2.479
Total Sale $46.50
Capture 

Visa
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369
Swiped 

06/12/2019 08:49:01 

I agree to pay the
above Total Amount
according to Card
Issuer Agreement.
****·k·k*************-A·
YOUR OPINION MATTERS
Tell us about your

experience at
* MyWawaVisit.com *
Take our survey for 

a chance to win
Wawa swag

gift baskets and 
gift cards valued

at up to $500!
Disponible
en Espanol

********************
Survey Code: 1526849
Store Number:05118

********************
Please respond
withins days

NO PURCHASE
NECESSARY

See rules at website 



Wawa #5118 
3000 N. Alafaya 
Oviedo FL 32765 

******************** 
5/22/2019 9:09:54 AM 
Term: JD12067146001 
Appr: 01308A 
Seq#: 036045 
Product: Unleaded 
Pump Gallons Price 
1 2 17. 497 $2 • 49; / 
Total Sale $43. 7/'s 
Capture /'L -'13 
~sa ~~-
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369 \Y 
Swiped 

05/22/2019 09:07:34 

I agree to pay the 
above Total Amount 
according to Card 
Issuer Agreeme~t. 
******************** 
YOUR OPINION MATTERS 
Tell us about your 

e1<perience at 
* MyWawaVisit.com * 
Take our survey for 

a chance to win 
Wawa swag 

gift baskets and 
gift cards valued 

at up to $500! 
Disponible 
en Espanol 

Survey Code : 1519460 
Store Nurnber:05118 

******************** 
Please respond 
within 5 days 

NO PURCHASE 
NECESSARY 

See rules at website 

https://MyWawaVisit.com


RENTAL FOR JUN 12, 2019 

Rental Agreement #: 6206KG CCustomer Service: 855-287-4216 

PICK-UP RETURN 
Oviedo Autonat1on Collision 

Oviedo Fl 
12 Jun 2019 

833 AM ➔ 
Oviedo Autonat1on Coll1s1on 
Oviedo. Fl 

13 Jun 2019 
114 PM 

+11,07-971-4933 • l 407-971 -4'133 

FINAL TOTAL (USO) 

RENTAL CHARGES RENTER DETAILS 

VEHICLE Name: DEXTER GLASGOW 

TIME & DISTANCE $ 34.00 / day $68.00 Member #: WSJ872R 

EXTRAS 
Address On File: ,...LITTLE CREE..•• 

REFUELING CHARGE $ 0.00 / rental Fee Waived Account Name Public Financial 

TAXES&FEES 
Management 

SALES TAX $4.87 

$ 0.02 / day $0.04 VEHICLE DETAILS 
VEHICLE LICENSE FEE RECOVERY $ 0.80 / day $ 1.60 

Class Driven: PPAR 

TOTAL Class Charged: SCAR 

total (USO) 
$74~ 

Make/Model: FORD F150 

License Plate: LDIW38 

1J,? DISTANCE 

Odometer Start: 9666 Miles 

Odometer End: 10052 Miles 

Distance Driven: 386 Miles 

Thank you for choosing Enterprise. 

https://www.enterprise.com/en/account.html#reservation 1/2 

https://www.enterprise.com/en/account.html#reservation


RaceTrac 2343 
32886 U.S. Hwy 27 
Haines Cit, FL 33844 
863-4"19-0582 
For Guest Experience 

Comments, Please 
Call 888.636.5589 or 

go to racetrac.com 

Term: JDi2335589003 
Appr: 02099A 
Seq#: 007516 
PUMP No. 14 
Grade: Unl-87 
Gallons: 13.047 G 
Price: $2.299/Gal 
Total Fuel: $30,00 

As advertised, 
E20 Flex Fuel may be 
offered in place of 

E15 Gasoline 
TOTAL SALE $30.00 
Visa $30.0¼ 

Capture ,/ 

Visa I'\ oo 
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369 \ \J. 
Swiped 

06/20/2019 11:15:i1 
Download our app! 

HOW ARE WE DOING? 
GUEST©RACETRAC . COM 

6/20/2019 11:17:33 

https://racetrac.com


.

- • r • • • ·- - · - - · • - - . • • ,.. . - - • · -· · · ·• . .. - · 

RENTAL FOR JUN 20, 2019 

Rental Agreement#: 64SLN2 IJCustomer Service: 855-287-4216 

PICK-UP RETURN 
Oviedo Autonatton Co l s·on 20 Jun 2019 Oviedo Autonation Coll1s1on 20 Jun 20 19 
Oviedo, FL 911 AM ➔ Oviedo, FL 3.21PM 
+) t,07-971 -4933 •1 L,07-971 4933 

FINAL TOTAL (USO) 

RENTAL CHARGES RENTER DETAILS 

VEHICLE 
Name: DEXTER GLASGOW 

TIME & DISTANCE $ 40.00 / day $ 40.00 Member#: WSJ872R 

Address On File: '"•LITTLE CREE·"·
EXTRAS ....... . ............. 
REFUELING CHARGE $ 0.00 / rental Fee Waived 

Account Name Public Financial 

Management 
TAXES &FEES 

SALES TAX $ 3.00 

VEHICLE DETAILS$ 0.02 / day $ 0.02 

SC REC - FL SURCHG RECOV $ 2.00 / day $ 2.00 
Class Driven: PXAR 

VEHICLE LICENSE FEE RECOVERY $ 0.80 / day $0.80 
Class Charged: FCAR 

TOTAL Make/Model: CHEV IMPA 

total (USO) $ 45.82 License Plate: S752559 

1 
DISTANCE~ d-Go\ ' 

Odometer Start: 19426 Miles 

Odometer End: 19569 Miles 

Distance Driven: 143 Miles 

Thank you for choosing Enterprise. 

https:/lwww.enterprise.com/en/account.html#feservation t l2 

https:/lwww.enterprise.com/en/account.html#feservation


RaceTrac 283 
38425 US Highway 27 
Davenport , FL 33837 

For Guest Experience 
Comments, Please 

Call 888 , 636.5589 or 
go to racetrac.com 

Term: JD12397455001 
Appr: 04416A 
Seq#: 014610 
PUMP No. 12 
Grade: Unl-87 
Gallons: 15. 589 G 
Price: $2.479/Gal 
Total Fuel: $38.65 

As advertised, 
E20 Flex Fuel may be 
offered in r lace of 

E1 5 G,;; ·s ,1 1ne 
TOTAl SAl F $38. 65 
Visa $38.6¾ 

CaptLtr-e 3 
~ 4:;ct:J

Visa \tr· 
XXXXXXXXXXXX9369 
Swiped 

06/27/2019 14:22: 22 
Download oLtr app ! 

HOW ARE WE DOING? 
GUEST@RACETRAC. COM 

6/27/2019 14: 24:5b 

https://racetrac.com


7/2"L/'/.01!:1 t:nterpnse 1-'lus Login 11:.nterpnse Kent-A-<.;ar 

RENTAL FOR JUN 27. 2019 

Rental Agreement#: 676FSQ CCustomer Service: 855-287-4216 

PICK-UP RETURN 
Oviedo Autonat1on Coltision 27 Jun 2019 Oviedo Aulonat on Collision 28 Jun 2019 
Oviedo, Fl 915AM ➔ 0'1iedo, Fl 349 PM 
• 1 k07-97 l-li933 +I 407-971-4933 

FINAL TOTAL (USO) 

RENTAL CHARGES RENTER DETAILS 

VEHICLE Name: DEXTER GLASGOW 

TIME & DISTANCE $ 54.00 / day $108.00 Member#: WSJ872R 

EXTRAS 
Address On File: ....LITTLE CREE••·• 

.. ,....... ............ . 
' 

REFUELING CHARGE $ 0.00 I gallon Fee Waived Account Name Public Financial 

TAXES & FEES 
Management 

SALES TAX $7.67 

VEHICLE DETAILS$ 0.02 / day $0.04 

VEHICLE LICENSE FEE RECOVERY $ 0.80 / day $1.60 
Class Driven: SPAR 

TOTAL Class Charged: SFAR 

total (USO) Make/Model: GMC CANC$117% 

1 License Plate: LKZP78 

DISTANCE 

Odometer Start: 23 Miles 

Odometer End: 249 Miles 

Distance Driven: 226 Miles 

Thank you for choosing Enterprise. 

https://www.enterprise.com/en/account.htm !#reservation 112 

https://www.enterprise.com/en/account.htm


RaceTrac 265 
10 Alafaya Woods Slv 
Oviedo , FL 32 765 
(407) 366 · 4620
For Guest Experience

Comments Please 
Call 888.6~6.5589 or 

go to racetrac.com 
Term: J012157159001 
Appr: 04139A
Seq#: 026124 
PUMP No. ,
Grade: ~1 
Gallons: 'J.• ,'., G
Price: $2.64 ';/Gal
Total Fuel: $1 3. 50

As advert isr: cl 
E 2 0 F 1 ex Fu e I ,I! .: , . 
offe red ln pla ~t· vi 

E15 Gasoli ne 
TOTAL SALE $1 3. 50 
Visa $1 3.50/, 

Capt ur e ~ , t) 
Visa ~ 
XXXXXX XX XXX X936 9 \A~ 
Swiped 

07/05/2019 16:00 :2? 

I ag ree to pay t he 
above Total Amou nt
accord ing to Card
Issuer Agreement.

Download our app! 

HOW ARE WE DOING?
GUEST~RACETRAC.COM 

7/5/2019 16:01:54 

https://GUEST~RACETRAC.COM
https://racetrac.com


Enterprise Plus Login IEnterprlla Rant-A-Car 

RENTAL FOR JUL 05, 2019 

Rental Agreement #: 6CJT5BS CCustomer Service: 855·287-4216 

Oviedo Autonat1on C0Hts1on 05 Jul 2019 Oviedo Autonauon CoH1s1on 05Jul 2019
Oviedo, FL 953AM Oviedo, FL l,1.9 PM
• 1 407-971-1.933 • 1l.07-971-4933 

RENTAL CHARGES RENTER DETAILS 
VEHICLE 

Name: DEX ER GLASGOW 

TIME & DISTANCE $ 34.00 / day $ 34.00 Member#: WSJ872R 

EXTRAS Address On File: ....LITTLE CREE···•
......... ...........

REFUELING CHARGE $ 0.00 / rental Fee Waived 
Account Name Public Financial 

TAXES&FEES Management 

SALES TAX $2.58 

$ 0.02 / day $0.02 VEHICLE DETAILS 
SC REC - FL SURCHG RECOV $ 2.00 / day $2.00 

Class Driven: FCARVEHICLE LICENSE FEE RECOVERY $ 0.80 / day $0.80 
Class Charged: SCAR 

TOTAL 
Make/Model: TOYOCAMR 

total (USD) $39.% License Plate: GIAF41 

DISTANCE'"·'~
J 

Odometer Start: lt.882 Miles 

Odometer End: 35003 Miles 

Distance Driven: 121 Miles 

Thank you for choosing Enterprise. 

hllpa://www.ent«prise.com'enlaccount.html#ntlefvat on 
1/2 



Invoice 
Date Invoice # 

9/14/2019 378 

1925 Bartow Road Suite 100 
Lakeland, FL 3380 I 

Bill To 

Rennie Heath 
Davenport Road South CDD 
346 East CcntraJ Avenue 
Winter Haven. FL 33880 

/?f/. 
Quantity Description Rate Amount 

0.5 Principal Engine.er 8-5-19 Review requisitions 125.00 62 . .50

l>o~ 

s~"' 
~~ 

~<v~ 
~~~~ 

SEP t 9 2019 

$62..50Total 
Davenport Road South CDD 
Billing 7-8-19 thru 9-1-19 

https://Engine.er


DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Payment Authorization FY 19 #25 
9/30/2019 

Item Payee 
No. 

1 Business Observer 
Legal Advertising 4/19/19 

2 Hopping Green & Sams 
District Counsel Through 8/31/19 

3 PFM Group Consulting LLC 
September 2019 District Management Fee 
September 2019 Website Fee 
FY20 Tax Roll Preparation and Submission 
August 2019 Copies and Postage 

Secretary / Assistant Secretary 

Invoice 
Number 

19-00732K 

109834 

DM-09-2019-0016 
DM-09-2019-0017 

OE-TR-00007 
OE-EXP-00419 

Subtotal per FY 
Total 

General 
Fund 
FY19 

$ 41.56 

$ 2,130.35 

$ 1,666.67 
$ 75.00 

$ 291.50 

$4,205.08 
$11,705.08 

General 
Fund 
FY20 

$ 7,500.00 

$7,500.00 

https://7,500.00
https://7,500.00
https://11,705.08
https://4,205.08
https://1,666.67
https://2,130.35


Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236INVOICE •n Al, nnr. n.,n,.. __ .,"'""Legal Advertising 

Invoice # 19-00732K Date 04/19/2019 

Attn: Please make checks payable to: 
PFM Group Consulting LLC (Please note Invoice # on check) 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. Business Observer 
ORLANDO FL 32817 1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

Description Amount 
Serlal # 19-00732K $41.56 
Notice of Rulemaking 
RE: Davenport Road South Community Development District & Highland 
Meadows West Community Development District 
Published: 4/19/2019 

Important Message Paid () 

Total $41.56 
Payment Is expected within 30 days of the 

first publication date of your notice. 

Attention: If you are a government agency and you believe that you quality for a 15"" discount to the aecond lnaertlon of 
your notice per F.S. revlelon 50.081, please Inform Kristen Boothroyd directly at 941 •906-9386 x323. 

NOTICE 
The Business Observer makes eVefl effort to ensure that its public notice advertising is accurate and in full compliance with all applicable statutes and ordinances and 

i that ils information is correct. Nevertheless. we ask that our ad,·crtisers scrutinize published ads carefully and alert us immediately to any errors so that we may correct 
them as soon as possible. We cannot accept responsibihty for mistakes beyond bearing the cost of republishing advertisements that contain errors 



Hopping Green & Sams 
Altolney$ andCooo181ors 

119$,~Street, St&, 300 
P.O. Box 6626r.-. fL 3231, 
llli0.222.7500 

September 16, 2019 
Davenport Road South Community Development BIR Number 109834 
District BIUed through 08/31/2019 
c/0 PFM Group Coosultlng LLC 
12051 Corporate Blvd. 
Onando, FL 32817 

G-ral Counsel 
DRSCDD 00001 RVW 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
08/05/19 RVW Research and revise rules of procedure. 0.20 hrs 

08/12/19 AHJ Confer with Patil regarding published notices of budget and assessment 0.40 hrs 
heal'ings, 

08/13/19 MKR Review draft meeting minutes and provide comments. 0.40 hrs 

08/13/19 AHJ Prepare amended and restated rules of procedure, resolution and memorandum 0.80 hrs 
regarding same; prepare notice of rulemaklng and ootlce of rule development. 

08/14/19 AHJ Finalize agenda items; transmit same to Patil. 0.20 hrs 

08/15/19 MKR Research ®tstanding meeting materials regarding board meeting. 0.10 hrs 

08/15/19 AHJ Confer with Patil regarding agenda items. 0.20 hrs 

08/16/19 MKR Revtew final agenda; prepare for board meeting. 1.'10 hrs 

08/19/19 MKR Follow-up with Patil regarding updated agenda. 0.10 hrs 

08/20/19 RI/W Prepare for and travel to board meeting. 1.20 hrs 

08/21/19 RI/W Prepare for and attend board meeting. 2.60 hrs 

08/27/19 AHJ Rnalize notice of rulemaking and rule development; transmit same to Pab1. 0.30 hrs 

Total fees for this matter $2,005.50 

DJSBUBBHENJS 
Document Reproduction 122,00 
Travel 2.85 

Total disbursements for this matter $124,85 

MAffiRSUMMA8,Y 

https://2,005.50


General Counsel Bill No, 109834 Page 2 

Jaskolski, Amy H. - Paralegal 1.90 hrs 145 /hr $275.50Rigoni, Michelle K. 2.00 hrs 245 /hr $490.00Van Wyk, Roy 4.00 hrs 310 /hr $1,240.00 

TOTAL FEES $2,005.50
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $124.85 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER $2,130.35 

11!1IJN§ SUMMARY 

Jaskolski, Amy H. • Paralegal 1.90 hrs 145 /hr $275.50Rigoni, Mlchelle K. 2.00 hrs 245 /hr $490.00Van Wyk, Roy 4.00 hrs 310 /hr $1,240.00 

TOTAL FEES $2,005.50
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $124.85 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL $2,130.35 

Please include the bill number on vour check. 



; 
l 

I ·~ i 

t 

p
fm

 

T
o:

 
BII

 

av
enpo,t

 South
 

Com
RU1ity

R
oad

 
Developmen

t
strict

 
o

 P
AA

 
Dl

ltrlct
Gr

OIJP
 Conou

ltlng
 

Acco<.nlln
g

partme
nt

12
05

1
Cotporat

e 
Blvd

 
!Otll

lndo
, FL

 328
17

 

R
em

 
DptloM

:
lltanca

YM
ACH

Ul'l(l(lld);
 

lllLWlm;
 

R
E

: 
August

 20
19

 P
os

tage
-$

92
.00

 
Aug

Uil
 2

01
9 

Cop
les

-
$

199
.50

 

T
ot

al
 

D
ue

Amou
nt

 

Dal
e

 
lnw>loe

 Number
 

-
r 

19
. 20

19
 

OE
-EX

P
-004

19

Terms
 

Due
Dn

 

Upon
 Recei

pt
 

se
 

19
, 20

19
 

17
35

 Me
rkel

 S
veet

 
-43rd

F
loor

Phladolp
hl

a,
 P

A
 1

9
10

3 
•1

 (
21

5)
 !56

7-6
100

 

Federal
 T

ax
 ID

: 8
1-

164
24

78
 

lllullL. PF
M

Group
 C

onsu
lting

 LL
C

 
PD

 Bo
x

6
51

26
Ballmont

, M
D

 2
126

4-
51

26
U

nited
 S

ta
te&

America
of

 

1 
of

 
1 



IJa'llerllPOrt South Roed Community Development 

Consu~ Olatrlct Accounting 

eleBl\l'd 

Remittance Optlona; 

YIIACttfcDlwildk 

:;;. 
DM-09-2019-0018 

Dale lnYolce Number 

......_ 24, 2019 

Tlfflll OueDate 

UponR...- se .. .- 24. 2019 pfm 

BIi To: 

l.1LYm; 

RE: District Management. September, 2019 

Total Amount Due 

1735 Martcet Street 
43n:I Floor 
Phlladell>hia, PA 19103 
+1 (215) 567-6100 

Federal Tax ID: 81-1642478 

-.. 

PFM Group Consulllng LLC 

POBox85126 
BIitmore, MD 21264-6126 
United Slales ol America 

U,IH.§7 

1 of 1 



Account Summary Report
Dst•Aantt:Auttnt1,U:tffoA....,.i11,I019
Meter Group: Aft~ 
M!ter 1WOO ~ 1376538 OU) at ORtAH:00, Fl
Meter 4WOO • 0317354 at ORlAffl)O.- Fl 

tWOO • llmM:a.o 137'"8 

-



DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Payment Authorization FY 19 #26 
1017/2019 

Item Payee Invoice General General 
No. Number Fund Fund 

FY19 FY20 

1 Navitas Credit Corp 
Playground equipment October 2019 $ 1,722.66 

2 Orkin 
October 2019 Pest Control 191111978 $ 48.15 

3 PFM Group Consulting LLC 
August 2019 Expenses 106206 $ 954.20 

Subtotal per FY $954.20 $1,770.81 

-tl~
Secretary I Assistant Secretary Chairperson 

https://1,770.81
https://1,722.66


Remittance Sectione'\ HAY.TAI CRID•T COltP.w A UMlflD COMMUIIITT •ANS: co,..ANY 
Conlract Number. 40530924 
Due Dat9: 10(1512019 

201 EXECUTIVE CENTER DR., SUITE 100 Amount Due: $1,722.66 
COLUMBIA, SC 29210 

RBlum &Hvbt~tBd 

Invoice Date: 09/24/2019 

,oesOOOlfl, PRESORT P9PS002 <lb 

11..•11•111i••••l••l•h••11 .. 1111•11••"11••1•111•••l•'"l•l11•• 
DAVENPORT ROAO SOU1H COMMUNITY DEVELOP 
ACCOUNTS PAYABI.E: 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 

000405309242019092400001722665 

Amount Enclosed: ,□□□□□mo 
D --hem I your addnlos hall chengod.---..-

U..ancloaod_and_chocl<payablo lo: 

NAVITAS CRl:DIT CORP. 
PO BOX 935204 
ATt.ANTA, GA 311935204 

11•11•1•1"•··••1•••1••···•....11,11111••••1•••1•1'11••·••1••11•• 

,et,\ HAVITAS CRED•T COltP. 
•..,, A UNIHD COMMUN ITT 9ANIC COMl>UY 

Your Opinion Ma1ww! Clcl< below; IOI us know how we aradolng. 

hllpf/tml919t-Of!YHatcm<ilcgn/SaJ:'1£1i2D:'llfYty 
PH: 888-97&-6353 

Important Messages 

NAVITAS 
ADVANTAGE 

KNp iu-ponlon ""yourur~.....iffi..~·-~~7'"r-~~~~~W~!'l!/~:.,;miaiiii:i:i'ri'ii:1iiriiii!i;i;;:..r--,roll! DATI! ONIQUI 
10/15/2019 40530924 PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT 

CUSTOMER NAMl! 
DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COMMUNITY 

!!!!!iii---Introducing the Navltas Customer Advantage Program 
liiiiii 

At Navttaa, •oyalty matters. Aa a valued customer, your company automatlcally quallfles for our Advantage 
Equ•pmant Financing Program. Start enjoying unique 1191Vlces and preferred pricing designed to make financing ~ 
With Navttaa eflorlleaa. 

,+ Autornatlc Pre-Approvals ,+ Special Flnanclng Programs 
.+ Payment Lock-In ,+ Application Only Approvals 
-+ Lcwest Payment Guarantes * P-Support -
-+ Bonus Working Cspltal * Dealer Locater SalVlce -

Command Mora Borrowing Powar With Navltas 

To leam more about our Advantage Program email dlhomasOnavflaacredlt.com. 

CONTRACT DUE PAYM!NT SALES/ LATE INSURANCE OTHER TOTAL
DESCRIPTIONNUMBER DATE AMOUNT USE TAX CHARGE CHAROES CHARGES AMOUNT 

40530924•1 Contract Payment 10/1!5/2019 $1,625.73 $98.93 $1,722.66 

SUBTOTALS: f1,825.73 '911,13 $1,722.66 

~:\. NAVITAI ..,_,111COIWl-l;llllffUUCOUAfl pagolc.12~.,,. AHO ..U' 

https://pagolc.12
https://1,722.66
https://f1,825.73
https://1,722.66
https://1,625.73
https://dlhomasOnavflaacredlt.com
https://1,722.66


Orkil 
34/J/JRECKERHWY 
WINTER HAVfN, FL33880-l1157 

AB 01 247070 82084 8 816 A 
11,11, 1111,, 1111IhIh1h1,I, 111 11,1111 11111Ill1111111111111ii II I 
DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD 
12061 Corpor1t• Blvd 
Dr11ndo, FL 32817-1460 

~ATE 1NV01caf:SERV1c1ka BRANCH, POI . : D£$CIIIPTION. .. . CHARGES,;, 

SERVICEAOORESS I NII OIICHIDIIROVl!ILVD DAVENPOIIU!.11117 
Oo\2019 191111978 148-WINTER HAVEN, fl SCH SVC 10/08/2019 PC $45.00 

Sllodtrd · Monlhly-PC 
Sllodtrd 

Pago 1012 

9/2e/2019 

Htt1C&Jt*t IIIll#14•1 U,'1 tilI[•It 

12051 CorponII Blvd 
Orlando, Flffl17•1450 

lBr@ncbPl>one#, •• j1aoo1329-3201
Ieta1111h Mtnager. dDAVID BERNSTEIN 

-- ., ,_,. 

We want to ensure your co~ete setltfactlon. 
Please contact vour local Orkin Branch at 
18001329·3201. 

,TAA. ' ,, r~TA11,AD:~\tE:~ Atlo~~: 

$3.li $48.15 S0.00 $48.16 

$48.16 

U.epplltd C!wdlll S0.00 

► TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 148.1& 

Thank you for choosing Orkin. Visit www.orkln.com/myeccount to create your onlln• profile. 
Peymente received after 8/26/2019 are not reflected In the above detail. Payment 11 due when ffl'Vlca la rendered, 

P11111 detech and mill lower portion with chacl< mlde peyable to Orkin. Plouo Include your eccount number on your check. 

DAVENPORT ROAD SOUTH COD Now you can pay onllne: www.orkln.com/myaccounL
12051 Corporale Blvd 
Orlando, FL 32817-1450 IAIIGOlin!NuMtier.<. ·, 5 33287182 

imoe( ·< ,Mua 

1111'1111111 II, I'11, 11 11 I II I,, 111,11111111 II• I'II•,, 111, 111111,,, 
□ Wantto sign up for Autopay?Orkin 

Plane sae revers, side.3400 RECKER HWY 
WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880-1967 ff you htws I ch1noe of1ddrus, 

p/81,s contact l'l)Ur branoh. 

CC11f6332b7J."12 □ aaaa4aaaaalf!J.s2 

https://aaaa4aaaaalf!J.s2
www.orkln.com/myaccounL
www.orkln.com/myeccount


............. 

� 

. Dale Invoice Number 

Se"'=ber24.2019 106206 
.P-ITerma - -_- Due Date 

Upon Receiol September24,2019pfm 
. 

BIi To: 

venport Sou1h Road Commooity Development 
istrlct 
0 PFM Group Consultlng Olsllict Accounting 
pertment 

12051 Corporate Blvd 
IO"'lndO,, FL 32817 

nitod Slates of America 

Remittance Options: 

Yta ACH lQtebKJM)' llliLWiDI: 

RE: Billable expenses for August 2019. 

Expenses 

Total Amount Due 

. 

. 

1735 Markel Street 
43rdF
Philadelphla, PA 19103 
+1 (215) 567-6100e

Federal Tax ID 81-1842478 

llllJ!III:. 

PFM Group Consulting LLC 
POBox 65126 
Beltimore, MD 21284-5128 
United States of America 

$954.20 

1 of 2 



  
 

 

Davenport Road South
Community Development District 

Monthly Financials 



 

 

 
 

 

Davenport Road South CDD 
Statement of Financial Position 

As of 9/30/2019 

Current Assets 
General Checking Account 
Prepaid Expenses 
Deposits 
Debt Service Reserve S 2018 Bond 
Revenue S 2018 Bond 
Acquisition/Construction S 2018 Bond 

Total Current Assets 

Investments 
Amount Available in Debt Service Funds 
Amount To Be Provided 

Total Investments 

Total Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

Long Term Liabilities 
Revenue Bonds Payable - Long-Term 

Total Long Term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

General Fund Debt Service Fund 

Assets 

$98,212.17 
21,736.91 
1,121.00 

$223,637.50 
308,392.47 

$121,070.08 $532,029.97 

$0.00 

$121,070.08 $532,029.97 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

$5,159.28 

$5,159.28 $0.00 

$0.00 

$5,159.28 $0.00 

Capital Projects Fund 

$765.81 

$765.81 

$0.00 

$765.81 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

Long Term Debt 
Group 

Total 

$0.00 

$98,212.17 
21,736.91 
1,121.00 

223,637.50 
308,392.47 

765.81 

$653,865.86 

$532,029.97 
6,297,970.03 

$6,830,000.00 

$532,029.97 
6,297,970.03 

$6,830,000.00 

$6,830,000.00 $7,483,865.86 

$5,159.28 

$0.00 $5,159.28 

$6,830,000.00 

$6,830,000.00 

$6,830,000.00 

$6,830,000.00 

$6,830,000.00 $6,835,159.28 

https://5,159.28
https://5,159.28
https://5,159.28
https://5,159.28
https://532,029.97
https://121,070.08


 

 

 

Net Assets 
Net Assets, Unrestricted 
Net Assets - General Government 

Current Year Net Assets - General Government 

Net Assets, Unrestricted 
Current Year Net Assets, Unrestricted 

Net Assets, Unrestricted 
Current Year Net Assets, Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

Davenport Road South CDD 
Statement of Financial Position 

As of 9/30/2019 

General Fund Debt Service Fund Capital Projects Fund Long Term Debt 
Group 

Total 

($4,335.25) 
4,987.17 

115,258.88 

$115,910.80 

$121,070.08 

$454,229.30 
77,800.67 

$532,029.97 

$532,029.97 

$484,867.24 
(484,101.43) 

$765.81 

$765.81 

$0.00 

$6,830,000.00 

($4,335.25) 
4,987.17 

115,258.88 

454,229.30 
77,800.67 

484,867.24 
(484,101.43) 

$648,706.58 

$7,483,865.86 



 

Davenport Road South CDD 
Statement of Activities 

As of 9/30/2019 

Revenues 

Off-Roll Assessments 
Developer Contributions 
Other Income & Other Financing Sources 
Off-Roll Assessments 
Other Revenue 
Developer Contributions 
Inter-Fund Transfers In 

Total Revenues 

Expenses 

Supervisor Fees 
Public Officials & EPLI 
Trustee Services 
Management 
Engineering 
Dissemination Agent 
District Counsel 
Audit 
Travel and Per Diem 
Telephone 
Postage & Shipping 
Copies 
Legal Advertising 
Miscellaneous 
Contingency 
Leased Space 
Web Site Maintenance 
Dues, Licenses, and Fees 
Maintenance Staff 
Electric 
Amenity - Water 
Amenity - Insurance 
Amenity - Pool Maintenance 
General Liability Insurance 
Property & Casualty 
Irrigation 
Landscaping Maintenance & Material 
Contingency 
Equipment Repair & Maintenance 
Pest Control 

General Fund 

$276,750.00 
1,081.00 

60.00 

$277,891.00 

$7,400.00 
2,475.00 
2,168.47 

20,000.04 
2,153.75 
5,000.00 

20,600.85 
6,000.00 

589.22 
80.49 

429.95 
807.30 

2,673.23 
1,859.88 
7,627.45 

14,443.32 
900.00 
455.00 

4,815.79 
8,349.40 

438.90 
378.00 
647.62 

3,025.00 
3,632.00 
3,600.00 

21,510.00 
4,260.93 

954.20 
148.30 

Debt Service Fund Capital Projects Fund Long Term Debt Total 
Group 

$461,250.00 
$614,684.00 

469,107.50 
802.50 

$276,750.00 
1,081.00 

60.00 
461,250.00 
614,684.00 
469,107.50 

802.50 

$461,250.00 $1,084,594.00 $0.00 $1,823,735.00 

$7,400.00 
2,475.00 
2,168.47 

20,000.04 
2,153.75 
5,000.00 

20,600.85 
6,000.00 

589.22 
80.49 

429.95 
807.30 

2,673.23 
1,859.88 
7,627.45 

14,443.32 
900.00 
455.00 

4,815.79 
8,349.40 

438.90 
378.00 
647.62 

3,025.00 
3,632.00 
3,600.00 

21,510.00 
4,260.93 

954.20 
148.30 

https://4,260.93
https://21,510.00
https://3,600.00
https://3,632.00
https://3,025.00
https://8,349.40
https://4,815.79
https://14,443.32
https://7,627.45
https://1,859.88
https://2,673.23
https://6,000.00
https://20,600.85
https://5,000.00
https://2,153.75
https://20,000.04
https://2,168.47
https://2,475.00
https://7,400.00
https://277,891.00
https://1,081.00
https://276,750.00


 

 

Davenport Road South CDD 
Statement of Activities 

As of 9/30/2019 

Streetlights 
Swimming Pools 
Interest Payments - Series 2018 
Engineering 
District Counsel 
Contingency 

Total Expenses 

Other Revenues (Expenses) & Gains (Losses) 

Interest Income 
Interest Income 

Total Other Revenues (Expenses) & Gains (Losses) 

Change In Net Assets 

Net Assets At Beginning Of Year 

Net Assets At End Of Year 

General Fund 

8,318.53 
6,889.50 

$162,632.12 

$0.00 

$115,258.88 

$651.92 

$115,910.80 

Debt Service Fund 

$394,113.89 

$394,113.89 

$10,664.56 

$10,664.56 

$77,800.67 

$454,229.30 

$532,029.97 

Capital Projects Fund 

$4,750.00 
2,475.50 

1,564,317.85 

$1,571,543.35 $0.00 $2,128,289.36 

$10,664.56 
$2,847.92 2,847.92 

$2,847.92 

($484,101.43) 

$484,867.24 

$765.81 

Long Term Debt 
Group 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

Total 

8,318.53 
6,889.50 

394,113.89 
4,750.00 
2,475.50 

1,564,317.85 

$13,512.48 

($291,041.88) 

$939,748.46 

$648,706.58 

https://648,706.58
https://939,748.46
https://291,041.88
https://13,512.48
https://1,564,317.85
https://2,475.50
https://4,750.00
https://394,113.89
https://6,889.50
https://8,318.53
https://484,867.24
https://484,101.43
https://2,847.92
https://1,564,317.85
https://2,475.50
https://4,750.00
https://532,029.97
https://454,229.30
https://77,800.67
https://10,664.56
https://10,664.56
https://394,113.89
https://394,113.89
https://115,910.80
https://115,258.88
https://162,632.12
https://6,889.50
https://8,318.53


    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 
 

 

Davenport Road South CDD 
Budget to Actual 

For the Month Ending 9/30/2019 

Year To Date 
Actual Budget Variance FY 2019 

Adopted Budget 

Revenues 

Off-Roll Assessments 
Developer Contributions 
Other Revenue 

$ 276,750.00 
              1,081.00 

60.00 

$ 268,263.00 
-
-

$ 8,487.00 
             1,081.00 

60.00 

$ 268,263.00 
-
-

Net Revenues $ 277,891.00 $ 268,263.00 $ 9,628.00 $ 268,263.00 

General & Administrative Expenses 

Supervisor Fees 
D&O Insurance 
Trustee Services 
Management 
Engineering 
Dissemination Agent 
District Counsel 
Audit 
Travel and Per Diem 

$ 7,400.00 
              2,475.00 
              2,168.47 
            20,000.04 
              2,153.75 
              5,000.00 
            20,600.85 
              6,000.00 

589.22 

$ 6,000.00 
            2,800.00 
            6,000.00 
          20,000.00 
          15,000.00 
            5,000.00 
          25,000.00 
            6,000.00 
               500.00 

$ 1,400.00 
              (325.00)
           (3,831.53)

0.04 
         (12,846.25)

-
           (4,399.15)

-
89.22 

$ 6,000.00 
             2,800.00 
             6,000.00 
           20,000.00 
           15,000.00 
             5,000.00 
           25,000.00 
             6,000.00 

500.00 
Telephone 
Postage & Shipping 
Copies 
Legal Advertising 
Bank Fees 
Miscellaneous 
Web Site Maintenance 
Dues, Licenses, and Fees 
Contingency 

Total General & Administrative Expenses $ 

80.49 
429.95 
807.30 

              2,673.23 
-

              1,859.88 
900.00 
455.00 

              7,627.45 
81,220.63 $ 

               200.00 
               300.00 
               500.00 
            8,000.00 
               250.00 
            1,100.00 
            2,900.00 
               250.00 
          19,124.20 

118,924.20 $ 

              (119.51) 
129.95 
307.30 

           (5,326.77)
              (250.00) 

759.88 
           (2,000.00)

205.00 
         (11,496.75)

(37,703.57) 

200.00 
300.00 
500.00 

             8,000.00 
250.00 

             1,100.00 
             2,900.00 

250.00 
           19,124.20 
$ 118,924.20 

Field Expenses 
General Insurance 
Irrigation 
Landscaping Maintenance 
Landscaping Improvements - Mulch & Flowers 
Fertilization 
Contingency 
Streetlights 
Total Field Expenses 

$ 

$ 

3,025.00 
              3,600.00 
            21,510.00 

-
-

              4,260.93 
              8,318.53 

40,714.46 

$ 

$ 

3,400.00 
            1,000.00 
          70,000.00 
          12,500.00 
            5,616.00 
            5,334.00 
          18,154.80 

116,004.80 

$ 

$ 

(375.00) 
             2,600.00 
         (48,490.00)
         (12,500.00)
           (5,616.00)
           (1,073.07)
           (9,836.27)

(75,290.34) 

$ 3,400.00 
             1,000.00 
           70,000.00 
           12,500.00 
             5,616.00 
             5,334.00 
           18,154.80 
$ 116,004.80 

Cabana & Pool Expenses 
Playground Lease 
Amenity Insurance 
Security 
Maintenance Staff 
Contingency 
Electric 
Cabana Electric 
Pool Electric 
Cable Television 
Property & Casualty 
Equipment Repair & Maintenance 
Pest Control 
Signage & Amenities Repair 
Swimming Pools 
Pool and Cabana Water 
Total Cabana & Pool Expenses 

$ 

$ 

14,443.32 
              4,010.00 

-
              4,815.79 

-
              8,349.40 

-
-
-
-

954.20 
148.30 

-
              7,537.12 

438.90 
40,697.03 

$ 

$ 

-
-

            4,000.00 
            5,000.00 
            2,967.00 
            6,333.00 
               667.00 
            1,250.00 
               300.00 
            2,000.00 
            1,167.00 
               333.00 
               250.00 
            6,400.00 
            2,667.00 

33,334.00 

$ 

$ 

14,443.32 
             4,010.00 
           (4,000.00)
              (184.21)
           (2,967.00)
             2,016.40 
              (667.00) 
           (1,250.00)
              (300.00) 
           (2,000.00)
              (212.80)
              (184.70) 
              (250.00) 
             1,137.12 
           (2,228.10)

7,363.03 

$ -
-

             4,000.00 
             5,000.00 
             2,967.00 
             6,333.00 

667.00 
             1,250.00 

300.00 
             2,000.00 
             1,167.00 

333.00 
250.00 

             6,400.00 
             2,667.00 
$ 33,334.00 

Total Expenses $ 162,632.12 $ 268,263.00 $ (105,630.88) $ 268,263.00 

Income (Loss) from Operations $ 115,258.88 $ - $ 115,258.88 $ -

Other Income (Expense) 

Interest Income $ - $ - $ - $ -

Total Other Income (Expense) $ - $ - $ - $ -

Net Income (Loss) $ 115,258.88 $ - $ 115,258.88 $ -


	DRS Agenda 10-16-19
	Minutes
	Resolution 2020-01
	Proposal between the District and VGlobalTech
for Website Auditing Services
	Agreement between the District and VGlobalTechfor Website Auditing Services
	Lease Agreement between the District andNavitas for Shade Structure
	Payment Authorization Nos. 20 – 26
	Monthly Financials
	davenport 09.2019 sofp.pdf
	Sheet1

	davenport 09.2019 sofa.pdf
	Sheet1

	DRS BTA 9.2019.pdf
	Sheet1




